AGENDA
Escambia County
Community Redevelopment Agency
August 16, 2018—Time 9:00 a.m.
BOARD CHAMBERS, FIRST FLOOR
ERNIE LEE MAGAHA GOVERNMENT BUILDING
221 PALAFOX PLACE, PENSACOLA FLORIDA

Call to Order.

(PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONE TO THE VIBRATE, SILENCE, OR OFF
SETTING)

Proof of publication

Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) Meeting was properly
advertised in the Pensacola News Journal.

l. Public Forum

Il. Technical/Public Service

Recommendation Concerning Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting

Minutes, July 19, 2018 Tonya Gant, Neighborhood & Human Services Department
Director

That the Board accept for filing with the Board's Minutes, the July 19, 2018,
Community Redevelopment Agency's (CRA) Meeting Minutes, prepared by Melanie
Johnson, CRA Administrative Assistant.

Recommendation Concerning to Schedule and Advertise of a Public Hearing to amend
the Atwood Redevelopment Area Plan as to boundaries only - Tonya Gant,
Neighborhood and Human Services Director

That the Board take the following action to schedule and advertise a Public Hearing for
Thursday, September 20, 2018, at 5:31 p.m., for consideration to amend the

Atwood Redevelopment Area Plan as to boundaries only, as requested by the
Community Redevelopment Agency.



Recommendation Concerning to Schedule and Advertise of a Public Hearing to
amend an Ordinance relating to the Atwood Redevelopment Trust Fund - Tonya
Gant, Neighborhood & Human Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action to schedule and advertise of a Public Hearing
for Thursday, September 20, 2018 at 5:32 p.m., for consideration to amend an
Ordinance of Escambia County, Florida, amending Chapter 46, Article VI, Section
46-292(b) of the Escambia Code of Ordinances relating to the Atwood Redevelopment
Trust Fund; providing for amended legislative findings to expand the boundaries of the
area consistent with R2018-44; providing for severability; providing for inclusion in the
code; and providing for an effective date.

lll. Budget/Finance

Recommendation Concerning the Cancellation of Residential Rehab Grant Program
Liens - Tonya Gant, Neighborhood & Human Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the cancellation of the Residential
Rehab Grant Program Liens:

A. Approve the following cancellations of seven Residential Rehab Grant Program
Liens, as the Grant recipients have met their one-year of compliance with
the Residential Rehab Grant Program:

|Property Owners |Address |Amount
|Joseph M. Baudendistel 424 Gibbs Road 1$5,900
|Richard L. Burdess |116 West Sunset Avenue |$3,276
IDK2 R E Investments, LLC, 13981 West Gadsden Street |$6,000
|John W. and Kelly A. Gilkerson 1121 Gilliland Road 1$3,867
|Robert G. Handshumaker and Anna J. Erikson |104 Brandywine Road |$5,475
\Michael E. Jackson 1817 North Green Street 1$2,380
IMavis Shelby Rosetti 14117 West Belmont Street  |$3,812

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Cancellation of Lien documents.

IV. Discussion/Information Items

Recommendation Concerning Community Redevelopment Agency Grant
Analysis - Tonya Gant, Neighborhood & Human Services Department Director

That the Board review for any modifications and provide guidance to the existing CRA
Grant Programs as needed.

Adjournment.






BoARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Escambia County, Florida

Technical/Public Service 1.
Community Redevelopment Agency
Meeting Date: 08/16/2018

Issue: Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes, July 19, 2018
From: Tonya Gant, Director

Organization: Neighborhood & Human Svcs

CAO Approval:

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommendation Concerning Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes, July 19,
2018 Tonya Gant, Neighborhood & Human Services Department Director

That the Board accept for filing with the Board's Minutes, the July 19, 2018, Community
Redevelopment Agency's (CRA) Meeting Minutes, prepared by Melanie Johnson, CRA
Administrative Assistant.

BACKGROUND:

On August 16, 2018, the CRA meeting was convened to consider approval of multiple
agenda items.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Legal consideration is not necessary for this recommendation.

PERSONNEL.:

Neighborhood & Human Services Department/Community Redevelopment Agency
(NHS/CRA) staff compile the minutes for all CRA Board Meetings. No additional
personnel is necessary.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
It is policy that all Board Minutes be approved by the CRA Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
There are no implementation or coordination tasks associated with this recommendation.




Attachments

CRAMinutes_July192018




MINUTES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
July 19, 2018
9:00 a.m.

BOARD CHAMBERS, FIRST FLOOR,
ERNIE LEE MAGAHA GOVERNMENT BUILDING
221 PALAFOX PLACE, PENSACOLA, FLORIDA

Present: Commissioner, District 3 - Chairman Lumon May
Commissioner, District 2 Doug Underhill
Commissioner, District 4 Grover Robinson, IV
Commissioner, District 5 Steven Barry
Commissioner, District 1- Vice Chair Jeff Bergosh

Staff Present:  Jack R. Brown, County Administrator
Alison Rogers, County Attorney
Amy Lovoy, Assistant County Administrator
Tonya Gant, Department Director
Clara Long, Division Manager
Melanie Johnson, Administrative Assistant

Call to Order. 9:10 a.m.

(PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONE TO THE VIBRATE, SILENCE, OR OFF
SETTING)

Proof of publication

Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) Meeting was properly
advertised in the Pensacola News Journal.

l. Public Forum

Il. Technical/Public Service

Recommendation Concerning Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting

Minutes, June 21, 2018 Tonya Gant, Neighborhood & Human Services Department
Director

That the Board accept for filing with the Board's Minutes, the June 21, 2018, Community
Redevelopment Agency's (CRA) Meeting Minutes, prepared by Melanie Johnson, CRA
Administrative Assistant.



Motion made by Commissioner, District 4 Grover Robinson, IV, Seconded by
Commissioner, District 1- Vice Chair Jeff Bergosh

Vote: 5-0
lll. Budget/Finance

Recommendation Concerning the Cancellation of Residential Rehab Grant Program
Liens - Tonya Gant, Neighborhood & Human Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the cancellation of the Residential
Rehab Grant Program Liens:

A. Approve the following cancellations of nine Residential Rehab Grant Program Liens,
as the Grant recipients have met their one-year of compliance with the Residential Grant
Program:

|Property Owners |Address |Amount
|Kim M. and Randy Conradson |707 Rue Max Street |$1 ,825
\Willie G. Gray, Jr., 3812 West Cervantes Street 1$5,333
|Curtis and Elizabeth A. Hughley |303 Lakewood Road |$3,608
|Marjory E. Tandy |16 Ruberia Avenue |$1 ,887
|Travelstar Properties, LLC |211 Lakewood Road |$3,050
|James C. and Cheryl I. Tellefson |202 Bryant Road |$4,687
| Winifred Wallace 13119 West La Rua Street 1$3,799
|Edward G. and Sandra L. Wilson 414 Greve Road 1$3,846
[Jay A. Yedrysek 209 Greve Road 1$1,300

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Cancellation of Lien documents.

Motion made by Commissioner, District 1- Vice Chair Jeff Bergosh, Seconded by
Commissioner, District 4 Grover Robinson, 1V

Vote: 5-0

Recommendation Concerning the Cancellation of Commercial Facade, Landscape. and
Infrastructure Grant Program Liens - Tonya Gant, Neighborhood & Human Services
Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the cancellation of the Commercial
Facade, Landscape, and Infrastructure Grant Program Lien:

A. Approve the following three cancellations of the Commercial Facade, Landscape, and
Infrastructure Grant Program Lien, as the Grant recipients have met the one-year of
compliance with the Commercial Fagade, Landscape, and Infrastructure Grant Program:

| Property Owner | Address | Amount

Basic Chemicals, Inc. | 8677 North Old Palafox | $3,455

|Coastline Commercial, LLC | 3470 Barrancas Avenue | $10,000



Du Thi Le & Tran Nhuong 1800 North Pace Boulevard | $10,000

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Cancellation of Lien document.

Motion made by Commissioner, District 2 Doug Underhill, Seconded by
Commissioner, District 4 Grover Robinson, 1V

Vote: 5-0

IV. Discussion/Information Items

Adjournment. 9:17 a.m.



BoARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Escambia County, Florida

Technical/Public Service 2.
Community Redevelopment Agency
Meeting Date: 08/16/2018

Issue: Schedule and Advertise of a Public Hearing to Consider Amending the
Atwood Redevelopment Area Plan as to boundaries only

From: Tonya Gant, Director

Organization: Neighborhood & Human Svcs

CAO Approval:

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommendation Concerning to Schedule and Advertise of a Public Hearing to amend the

Atwood Redevelopment Area Plan as to boundaries only - Tonya Gant, Neighborhood and
Human Services Director

That the Board take the following action to schedule and advertise a Public Hearing for
Thursday, September 20, 2018, at 5:31 p.m., for consideration to amend the

Atwood Redevelopment Area Plan as to boundaries only, as requested by the
Community Redevelopment Agency.

BACKGROUND:

On May 17, 2018, the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners adopted a
Resolution (R2018-44) amending the Atwood Redevelopment Area Plan as to
boundaries only.

On July 10, 2018 at 8:35 a.m., a Public hearing was conducted by the Planning Board
to review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) adoption of the
Atwood Redevelopment Area Plan as to boundaries only and determine that the Plan is
in conformance with the local Comprehensive Plan.

On August 16, 2018 at 9:00 a.m., a CRA meeting was convened to recommend to the
Board to schedule and advertise of a Public Hearing for September 20, 2018, at 5:31
p.m., for consideration to amend the Atwood Redevelopment Area Plan as to boundaries
only. A copy of the Plan is attached.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:

Funding for the proper advertisement will be provided through the CRA Atwood, Fund
151, Cost Center 370120.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:




The Plan has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Meredith Crawford,
Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel is necessary to carry out this process.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:

Schedule a Public Hearing to consider adoption amending the Atwood Redevelopment
Area Plan is in compliance with the Board guidelines and procedures.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:

Upon adoption by the BCC, the CRA will continue to work with these residents,
neighborhood associations, and area businesses to implement the plan.

Attachments

Atwood Redev Area Plan_Aug2018
Atwood Map_Aug2018




OAK TREES ON KLINGER STREET. CRA STAFF

ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

Escambia County
Community Redevelopment Agency
Neighborhood & Human Services Department

Adopted October 2016
Amended as to boundaries only {Month, Year}



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Table of Contents

CRAPTEE 1 OVEIVIEW ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt b ettt b et e s ae e e bt e e sab e e b et e s ae e e b et e abb e e b et e sabeeabe e e smbeeanaeesmneenneeennneeneeas -4-
Plan Content ANd Organization .........cccueeiiieiiieiiieei ettt sttt sttt e st e st e s b e e sab e e sabeesneeesabeesnteesaneennee -4-
(00T oY R @ 1Y T oY T SRR -5-
Chapter 2: INVENTOrY & ANAIYSIS .....oiiuiiiiieiiiie ettt ettt et e s bt e sae e s b et e saee s beeenneeeas -5-
Chapter 3: CONCEPT Plan ..ottt ettt e bt e s b et e bt e s be e e saee s baeenneeeas -5-
Chapter 4: Capital IMPrOVEMENTS. ... ..uiiiiiieeecctie e et e s tee e eree e eete e e e sareeestteeeesstaeeeasaeaessseeeeassseeesssneesssseeaanns -5-
Chapter 5: Project Implementation ..........co ittt st -5-
AAPPENAICES ..ttt ettt s b e et b e st e s bt e e a bt e s b e e e a bt e s bt e e bt e s bt e e a b s b e e e bt e s bt e eabeesbeeeabeesbeeeanees -5-
Introduction & GEOZrapPhiC CONTEXLE ..oc.uuiiiiiiieeeeiiieecciee ettt e e et e e et e e e st e e e stteeesstseeseasseeeesseeessnsaeesanssneesnsseeeans -6-
Redevelopment Area BOUNGAIY .......coiiiiiiieiiie ettt sttt sttt e st e s it e sab e e sat e e sabeesseeesabeesnneesaneenes -7-
Chapter 2: INVENTOrY @nNd AN@IYSIS ... ..ciiuiiiiiiiiiieieei ettt ettt e s bt e bt esabe e sbe e e sabeesbaeesane e st e e saneenneeas -9-
oI AL = 1= T o Yo I U LY SRS -9-
RESIAENTIAN ...ttt sttt e st e e b et e s ab e e b et e s bt e e b et e ebe e s be e e saee e bbe e st e ebeeenneeas -11-
COMMIEICIAL .ttt sttt st e et e s bt e et e s bt e eabe e s b e e e b e e s beeeabeesabeeebeesabaeeneesares -11-
RV 107 L LT =TT -12 -
PUDBIIC USES @Nd ULIlITIES. .. .eiiiieiiie ittt et et be e s be e s b e e e sneesbeeeneeea -12-
Future Land Use & COMPrehensive Plan .........coouiiiiiiiiieiiieeesee ettt -13 -
Land Development REGUIGLIONS. ......cccuiii ittt e e e e et e e e st e e e s nte e e e sbeeeeansaeeeennneessnnneaanns -21-
PACEI SIZE .ttt s bRt e R ettt a e R e e Rt Rt e r e e nesne e e sre et -23-
[ (e TV Y= 6T oo [14Te] o H T TP P RO P P UPRT PPN -24 -
Transportation and INTrastrUCTUNE.........ii i e e e e ete e e st e e e e s ata e e e enseeeenbeeeesssseeeanneeessneaeanns -25-
Pedestrian CiFCUIGTION .....cc.eiiiieiieeeee et sttt et et re e nesanesmeesree et -26-
SANIEAIY SEWET ..ttt et e e s e et e e e e s bt e e e b et et e b e e s s b b e e e e aar e et ean e e sraeeeas -27 -
[DTT oY= =Y o] 1Y 013 SR -28-
20 o 10 ] =1 o T o RSN -29-
HOUSERNOIAS ... ettt e e e bt e s b e e e bt e s b e e e bt e s b e e e beesabeeeseesabeeenneesas -29-
Y Yol @0 T3 Y o 1Y 1 1SRNt -30-

LY OO OR SRS OROUSESUORORORORORORPUOUOROUOROROUOTOROTOUOPOROROROPORORORORONE . . . ..::ocococococococ dBE R TOTOTELRROROTORORORR (4 | -30-
EMPIOYMENT ..ottt sttt b e st bt e sa e e s bt e sat e s bt e s st e s b eesntesareesantesareesanneras -31-
2o U Tor 1A To T o H TP -31-

Yol o s =S -32-




Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

[T =TT T OO PPRRPPI -33-

(0 T o1t T g T 0o g Vol =Y o Al =] = o 1SS -34 -
[ofe] aTel=T o1 A e EY o T i aY1To XY o] ] o 1Y AP UUR PP -34-
PNV Yoo I @l 2{ D 6o TaTol=Y o} f o =1 o VO PURPR -35-
(6] ¢ T Lo TP PR PSP PRR PR -35-
Primary CoOmMMErCial COMTIAONS ..uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e e e ettt e e e e et e e e e e e et a e e e e e e seeaaabeseeeeseaaansaaseaeesessssssseeasseannnses -36-
Neighborhood CommeErcial CorTidOrS. ......uuiiiiiiiiiiiiee et e e e e e e are e e e e e s e e eabaeeeeeeeeesasbaaseeeeeeennnses -37-
[NVI=TF=d 0] o Yo a o Yoo I @oT oY Y=ol o SRS -39-

LT (=17 1Y -40 -
P ANy GalEWaAY S i -40 -
Y=Tele gL E YA G 1 11T 12 S -40 -
COMMUNIEY ANIENITIES 1. -41 -
Yo LAV foT o T4 = g L] o = (=Y = L= ST -42 -
Commercial Redevelopment and INFill ........cooiiiiiiii et e e e e nreee s -42 -

Infill Opportunities for Single- and Multi-Family HOUSING .....cccuvieiiiiiie e -43 -
Encourage Citizen Groups and CiVIC Prid@ ......ccoouiiiiiiei ettt e e e e et ee e e e e e e e snbaaseeaeeeennnnes -43 -
PUDIIC HEAIth @Nd SAfELY.....cucuiciiece ettt ettt st et ettt e e e r s sttt sbsesesasare et seesenseneesensanestenn -44 -
Residential Preservation and ENNanCemMeNt.......cc.ooiiriiiieiieneeece e e s -44 -
Chapter 4: Capital IMPrOVEMENTS. ...ccii ittt ettt e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e s e baereeaeeeeeensbbaeeeaeeseasssaessaaesesannsseneas -45 -
(0 o111 I [ o] o] o121 0 0 T=T Y £ -46 -
Chapter 5: IMplementation SEratEGIES ......ccccuiiiieciie ettt e e e e s tre e e s aee e e e ateeeesstaeeeestseesssseaeeasseeeaanes -49 -
IMPIEMENTALION STrAtEGIES .. . euiiiiiii e e e e e e e e e e e e e tb e e e e e e e e e e aaaaeeeaeeseennntaeseaassennnranneas -49 -
ApPPENdiX A: PUDIIC WOTKSNOPS ....ceiiiiie ettt e e e e e e st e e e ata e e esasaeeessteeeesstaeesansseeesnsenenn -54 -
Appendix B: STAatULOry REGQUITEIMENTS ....cc.uviiiiiiieeeiiee e ettt ettt e e ettt e e eete e e s stteeeestteeeesasseeesasaeeessseeeenssseesanssneesansenenn -55-
Appendix C: TaxX INCremMeENnt FINANCING ....ooi it e e e e etre e e e e e e e aabb e e e e e e sesaasaeseeaeseasantaaseaaeeeananees -63 -
Appendix D: RESOIUTION R20L5-64.......cccccieeeiiiieeeeiieeeeieeeestteeestae e e s steeessssaeeeasseesasssseesansseeessseseasssseesanssnessassenenn -65 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

CHAPTER 1: OVERVIEW

PLAN CONTENT AND ORGANIZATION

The Community Redevelopment Act of 1969 was enacted to provide local governments within the State of Florida
with the tools necessary to revitalize deteriorated communities. These tools include the establishment of the
Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) to administer redevelopment plans and delegate certain powers to this
agency such as the power to designate certain areas as: slum or blight; propose modification to community
redevelopment plans; issue revenue bonds; and approve the acquisition, demolition, removal, or disposal of
property.

On July 1, 1977, the Florida Legislature amended the Community Redevelopment Act to allow governments to use
tax increment financing (TIF) as a tool for redevelopment. The amended Act also allows a designated CRA to utilize
the revenues from the sale of tax increment bonds for specific projects aimed at redeveloping and improving
community slum or blight. The location and extent of such areas and redevelopment projects must first, however,
be objectively established and so designated by the local governing authority.

Community Redevelopment Agencies are granted the authority to undertake redevelopment projects following
adoption of a community redevelopment plan as outlined in the Community Redevelopment Act F.S. 163.360. The
Redevelopment Plan guides future development and expenditures from the Trust Fund so as to eliminate existing
conditions of blight and to create a condition for continued private reinvestment in the district. The Plan provides
a framework for coordinating and facilitating public and private redevelopment of the Area. Development and
implementation of the Plan involves the efforts of the Agency, the private sector financial and business community
and other governmental agencies. Following the adoption of the initial Plan, subsequent modifications and
amendments may be adopted by the Governing Body pursuant to F.S. 163.361.

On May 21, 2015, the Board of County Commissioners designated Atwood as a Redevelopment District finding that
it was blighted and the area had a shortage of affordable homes for low- and moderate-income households. This
designation was necessary in the interest of public health, safety, moral and welfare of the residents in order to
eliminate, remedy and prevent conditions of blight. This Redevelopment Plan, developed with broad community
involvement, supports the future redevelopment of the Atwood Redevelopment District and is written in
compliance with Florida Statues Part Ill, Chapter 163.

The Atwood Redevelopment Plan represents the synthesis of a series of planning efforts conducted by the
Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency and area residents and community leaders. The intent of
the Redevelopment Plan is to facilitate positive transformation, preservation, and revitalization of the
neighborhoods in the Atwood Redevelopment District. Each of the planning initiatives contained herein involved a
series of community workshops and meetings designed to create a unified vision for Atwood. The stakeholder-
driven planning process integrates several objectives: Enhance the physical environment; preserve residential
character; support commercial activity; introduce a diverse mix of uses along primary corridors; pursue new
development opportunities; create a community focal point to foster positive change in the District’s core;
improve the pedestrian environment; and overcome the obstacles to economic development.

To be useful as a long-term redevelopment guide, the Redevelopment Plan must be flexible to accommodate
unanticipated changes and should be monitored closely and updated to reflect changes in the economy, public
concerns and private sector development opportunities.

The Redevelopment Plan is a comprehensive resource for community leaders and stakeholders engaged in
reshaping the social, economic, and physical form of Atwood. Future actions targeted in this area are anticipated
to follow the recommendations of the Redevelopment Plan through continued discussions with residents,
community stakeholders, and County agencies.



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

CHAPTER 1: OVERVIEW

This chapter consists of an overview of the plan content and organization, introduction and geographic context
and a map of the Atwood District boundary.

CHAPTER 2: INVENTORY & ANALYSIS

This chapter presents a summary of existing conditions, including existing land uses, zoning districts, future land
use designations, demographic profile, housing conditions, and neighborhood identity and aesthetics. The
summary of inventory results employs data generated by past studies from the Escambia County Community
Redevelopment Agency, the Escambia County Property Appraiser GIS database, the 2010 U.S. Census, and
University of West Florida’s Haas Center for Business Research and Economic Development.

CHAPTER 3: CONCEPT PLAN

The information generated from the inventory, analysis, and the public involvement phases is the foundation for
the recommendations contained in Chapter 3. This chapter details action strategies based on established
objectives, providing guidelines for sound development and redevelopment of properties in Atwood.

CHAPTER 4: CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

This chapter identifies projects that can be pursued in the short-term, mid-term, and long-term. It also includes
anticipated costs for the proposed improvements and funding sources to assist the CRA with budgeting and
financial planning.

CHAPTER 5: PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

This chapter presents the organizational framework and financial strategies that will be required for successful
implementation of the Redevelopment Plan. It defines the roles and responsibilities that should be undertaken by
the various agencies and stakeholders that are involved in shaping the future development of the Atwood
Redevelopment District.

APPENDICES

Five appendices conclude the Redevelopment Plan: A) Public Workshops documentation; B) Statutory
Requirements; C) Tax Increment Financing; D) Resolution R2015-64 authorizing the Atwood Redevelopment
District; and E) a map of the ECUA proposed Atwood Sewer Expansion Area.



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

INTRODUCTION & GEOGRAPHIC CONTEXT

Atwood Redevelopment District represents one of multiple unincorporated districts of Escambia County and
contains 11 platted neighborhoods, including: Atwood, Charter Oaks, Ferry Pass, Frichez Heights, Gregg Court,
Kipling Oaks, Klinger, North Cross Village, Oakhurst, Pandora Place, and Skycrest. The 456-year-old city of
Pensacola, around which Escambia County developed, is the closest urban entity to Atwood, and the westernmost
city of the Florida Panhandle (Fig. 1.1), the location of a large U.S. naval air station, and a tourist destination for
residents of Louisiana, Alabama, and Mississippi. Pensacola’s long and rich history as a trading center occupied by
settlers under no fewer than five different flags since the 1550s and its unique white sand beaches have made the
city today a popular destination for tourists, which the city capitalizes on by way of its numerous festivals year-
round that draw visitors from all areas within Pensacola’s vicinity. Although not a particularly large economic draw,
Pensacola’s visitors traveling east on I-10 and North on Davis Highway pass through Atwood on their way to
Pensacola and Escambia County’s beaches.

| : OpEnE N
| f . Columbus o
Frattville L8 . u
! | o Saia attville 53] Auburn T
= d c = )
flv) Mendian Montgome:
| i = Amaar-:-_s
55
| @ v | Eufaula <
| g oty Troy g {
Jured Q. ! : na
P o % Albany
| e gk 55 Czark |
urg 7 Andaiusia 2 g
LN Q. Dothan C
pp Enterprise” g a

|
|

| At o 3 Mq
| Banbndge _
| BEs 4

| ) et Crestriew Chigley.
| Mobile'® aphne™s Miton,, B Mananna See |
| 2ol i P Miceville . D
|e=zBilo #od F ° prnge Tallahassee
il % 7 assee|,
oo o af & a
| Gulfport Pascagoula {Pensacola|fort Walton Lynn Haven
Beach . o O
I ‘ - Panama

: Sy arrabedle
O [}

homasy
o

- e
FIGURE 1.1: MAP SHOWING ESCAMBIA COUNTY’S
LOCATION IN FLORIDA. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

FIGURE 1.2 PENSACOLA’S REGIONAL CONTEXT. GOOGLE MAPS

The southern part of Escambia County is served by Interstate 10 and the Interstate 110 spur that leads south to
downtown Pensacola. This metro area is 50 miles east of Mobile, Alabama, 200 miles west of Tallahassee, and 165
miles south of Montgomery, Alabama—the three largest cities in the vicinity of Pensacola (see Fig. 1.2).
Commercial air traffic in the Pensacola and greater northwest Florida area is handled by Pensacola Regional
Airport.

As elsewhere in the Florida Panhandle, Escambia County’s overall growth in the postwar period has been
significantly aided by tourism, even while naval and air force operations continue to support and define much of
the character of the Panhandle coast. While the beaches and historic downtowns have prospered, many other
areas, particularly in the unincorporated parts of the county, have started to face challenges in economic and
residential growth. In 1995, Escambia County established a community redevelopment agency in order to provide
direction for urban revitalization and future growth. Since then, a total of nine redevelopment districts were
designated for unincorporated parts of the county, including Atwood. These redevelopment districts focus on
historic urban residential and commercial centers in Escambia County.



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

REDEVELOPMENT AREA BOUNDARY
The Atwood Redevelopment District (Fig. 1.3) is bounded by Olive Road and Johnson Ave to the north, Davis

Highway and Nerth-HilburnRead Ira Drive to the west, Interstate 10 to the south, and Caminitti Lane to the east.
The total area comprises 618.47 acres and is composed of 12 neighborhoods.

ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT EXPANSION AREA

JOHNSON

L

{ROLD J0HNSG

2
%
%

UNIVERSITY

OUNTRY

CHAFRERAL

RNESTiNE

CESERT QAK

i

i

|

—— STREETS

0-%“'88 PROPOSED ATWOOD EXPANSION
B ~7w00D REDEVELOPMENT AREA

FIGURE. 1.3: ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Atwood is one of Escambia County’s nine community redevelopment districts situated immediately north of
Interstate 10. It is the first district accessed when entering Escambia County from the east on I-10. (Fig. 1.4.)

o
&
& LIAMS D =
= ITeH KD
g £
§ % i civmipr|
] z T > MeLLUne RN ECEN L g
= Z o = I ERD.
5 Lo tEe 5, e
& o < Byl 8 &
FER I e g
CANTONMENT; KATHLE
Ed = LEEN avE
Lo ITARD- T Q.
See % @?;
>
g e
g =
2 «©
- % o]
5 % 5
= gt (,% & 15
E ¥ LN 1% dﬁ“
& = ) INS N
e 2
=
g ﬁ & aufyRUSIN 10
o) I i
& g EXNGsTEn 5 RE FERN D B
PNEBROOK (IR = p 2
~ 2/|| Wedmerteng e o 2
in ERRILANEfDR T ORayy &
2 = ICRE 2y
o & 3 H SOk HAM ko 2 =
- | =
& J| FRANKReEDER ko E DEVINE FaRNA o =cig = = 5 vﬁe =
- u = 3
< s PXPRJ ig 2 2 ol F
£ £ miwanes o e — § oo A
£ g (e Fika Dl £e = £
o rt TARA RD & = =]
8 z whine iz mo . e, 2 25, E8=508 B £ 5 i
= 4 = 97, 3 FO L a>fo 3 =S %,
i = > S < 7 R 1] A
B CHURGH RD 2 o S 3rsT¥ER
a Fa YOURON R sh-sr Sl=lz eEE P
8 x = & 3 E0F TER R
E o' peERFEw DR 32 @ g
= % £ WOED\'F()I H <4 Ly
o R & = ENSLUE ABplE LN BikEY <5
a Ao, a m 1] S 31)5 ELUOTTSY IEHNSON AVE &
SA§SER IN Se §§ g S 5 ) Sl N 10A " >
HELMS RD 1 BE 8z 3 e - s 5 “ ';(J‘
5 E s
Ry | LEXIIN (iﬂ HOLLYHILL R} ATWOGD, % 7
THORAN g % & INDAAVE . § 8A g =
o
& LA 11 % S L
z z 2, %, T CRElcHTON R,
8 4 % T f S 2 \
E 3 Pl 2% " 1=y /o) o]
ke LONGLEAF DR e IANGLEY AYEL (@7 0 S 0 o
0 [BANKHEAL 2% OAKFEIELD, 0 7 v
2 FaBrisAvE bl S 15
5 o 3 § Tenadey
& < i Q=% S
& o p PR & & f i
o = . § 2z N 3 &Qy
& i 25y, 7. 3 A .
= 2 EELLVEW A § % 'y S ” N ~ &) A
SRRAGUE AvE | 182 = A% e & g 3
o ) — i) 2R 2 = e, & o~ 3
Y tir—dl W MIGRIGAN AYE i v 3 S,
D"‘Esq of Anerrhz 3 53 i i /0
g g &7 oy PALIREO X g = %"? /
[CERNY RO %ED X < ey,
) My
g O® Arg, ey
o, AT cR- _
B )
2N TonawaNDRNGR DS oY DR ;
215 EHEROKM TRL
i WS ENGLEWOOD, L
WAL, of 4 - =L LE MR oRiflsr
gSut Sel 5y Bl e = LR e
A S = Z oz AT | SBfporo,
=T o E e s BROWNSVILLE |7 78]z G SRR
-] &iE = 245 3y
298 = Z f'e, 2 < =
~ o
K4 P i 5
T USE fp  PENTON 8T ‘3,;& et 574 1 LEGEND
¢ SUTHBAYDR |MER HENHT R R | Bt COMMUNTY REDEVELPENT DISTRETS
il WHIGHWAY 03] = 7 i K2 . 98 I sviocn
z5 Tk e =
s S S oA g N ] e
& &y & 3 > CANTONVENT
sovsonpo | o 2 NENG B BARRANCAS e B ecenoc
Fe oy £ WARRINGTON @
2 AN & oY SZEw W
o) \t) o=
= b Ly w sk ge )
H -~ zaf g o B
E/ Y 4 £ P41 63 ©
3 = RN 1l o
7 g £
0 Bty i B »
£ g{},\v\ " -] PENSACOLA BAY
P S,
ol 2 =i
;@N’“ 3 L Jescausiacounrr
CELNE SfAcer warer
“—_¢>[ 0 05 1 2 3
Miles
s

FIGURE. 1.4: ESCAMBIA COUNTY’S NINE REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS



CHAPTER 2: INVENTORY AND ANALYSIS

EXISTING LAND USE

The Atwood Redevelopment District is composed of
848 parcels across 617.47 acres, excluding roads and
rights-of-way. Five primary land uses are
represented: Residential (comprising approximately
65.81% of total Commercial
(approximately 17.22%), Vacant (approximately
7.65%), (approximately 0.92%), and
Institutional (approximately 3.21%). Other land
uses, such as: public properties and utilities
comprise the remaining 5.19% of land uses identified
in the Redevelopment District. A more detailed

description of these land uses follows below.

land  use),

Industrial

Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Land Use Type Acreage Percent
Residential 406.46 65.81%
Single-Family Detached 309.97 50.20%
Single-Family Attached 12.09 1.96%
Multi-Family Residential 34.82 5.64%
Mobile Home Park 7.96 1.29%

Mobile Home 41.62 6.74%

Commerecial 106.3 17.22%
Industrial 5.65 0.92%
Institutional 19.83 3.21%
Public 22.59 3.66%
Utilities 9.42 1.53%
Vacant/Undeveloped 47.22 7.65%
Total 617.14 100%

TABLE 2.1: EXISTING LAND USES IN THE REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

7.65 5.19

3.21
0.92

M Residential
B Commercial
M Industrial

M Institutional
m Vacant

 Other (public and utilities)

FIGURE 2.1: DISTRIBUTION OF EXISTING LAND USES BY PARCEL COUNT AS A PERCENT OF TOTAL PARCELS. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

11.22%

3.32%

4.11%

M Residential

B Commercial

M Industrial

M Institutional

W Vacant

M Other (conservation, parks, public
and utilities)

FIGURE 2.2: DISTRIBUTION OF EXISTING LAND USES BY ACREAGE AS A PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL ACRES. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

-9-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

—— MAJOR ROADS
B suRFACE WATER
I coMMERCIAL
I ousTRIAL

| INSTITUTIONAL

[ ] mMoBILE HOME

e
tJ Arwoop DisTRICT BounpARY [l MOBILE HOME PARK

I MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

| PUBLIC

[ ] SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED

N
i @ ; SINGLE-FAMILY DETAGHED
!

I uTiiTies

[ VACANT/UNDEVELOPED

EINTERSTATETT0 RAmp 53

E OLIVE RD

%.0
\’ ’
INTERSTATE 10, RAME. 2

UNIVERSITY PRy

INTERSTATE 10 RAMR.E _ZINTERSTAT

E\10 RAME B

(

N DAVIS HWY-

E JOHNSON AVE

INTERSTATE 10— |

0 500 1,000 2,000 3,000

[ ew eeesss—— 36

FIGURE 2.3: EXISTING LAND USE IN THE ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

-10-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

RESIDENTIAL

Of the 406.46 acres of residential land, single-family homes account for 322.06 acres, or 52.16% of the total
residential acreage of the Redevelopment District. Single-family residential uses account for a total of 549 parcels,
or 64.74% of the total number of parcels in the Redevelopment District. This is by far the most dominant land use
type in the Redevelopment District. Comprising 41.62 acres (6.74% of the district), mobile homes on individual
parcels are the second most common residential use in Atwood.

At a much smaller fraction of residential land use are the other residential types — multi-family (32.82 acres over 19
parcels) and mobile home parks (7.96 acres over 4 parcels). Their combined share of acreage is approximately
6.93% of the residential acreage of the Redevelopment District.

RESIDENTIAL HOMES, ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. CRA STAFF

COMMERCIAL

The second-largest land use contingent occupies 106.3 acres, or 17.22% of the total Redevelopment District
acreage, covering 83 parcels. These uses are located primarily along the commercially-oriented East Olive Road
and North Davis Highway corridors. Smaller concentrations of commercial uses are also found along Kipling Street.

Atwood’s two major commercial corridors (East Olive Road and North Davis Highway) are vibrant and well-
travelled. Big Box stores are highly-visible and anchor local shopping centers. Unique local restaurants, shops and
services round out the commercial offerings along the corridors. Kipling Street also is a mixed-commercial corridor
of small businesses and residential uses.

In Atwood, commercial uses are generally stable with many local businesses remaining in place for generations.
Atwood’s geographic location north of Pensacola serves both the suburban clientele of those who consider
themselves living in ‘North Pensacola’ as well as the more rural residents who live in Gonzalez, Cantonment,
Quintette and Molino. Escambia County’s rural residents are likely to shop in Atwood as it is the northern most
commercial area in the county and it is more convenient for those living in north Escambia to travel to Atwood
rather than driving further south into Pensacola.

-11-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

COMMERCIAL USES, ATWOOD CRD. GOOGLE MAPS

VACANT USES

As a testament to the redevelopment potential of the area, Atwood’s third largest land use category is vacant or
undeveloped land. Approximately 7.65% of the redevelopment area consisting of 47.22 acres across 68 parcels is
undeveloped. In Atwood, most of the vacant properties are smaller in size and scattered throughout the
Redevelopment District.

Vacant structures and abandoned lots are strong indicators of economic distress and lead to deterioration of the
physical environment and are detrimental to the investment image of the community. The presence of vacant and
underutilized buildings contributes both as an opportunity and a liability for redevelopment. Vacant parcels of
considerable size can be assembled to support significant adaptive reuse of underutilized and deteriorating
buildings.

Vacant Properties, ATWOOD DISTRICT. GOOGLE MAPS

PuBLIC USES AND UTILITIES

The fourth largest use in the Redevelopment District is public uses and utilities. Public uses in Atwood, as
categorized by Escambia County GIS, include a wide variety of uses for the public benefit such as schools and
stormwater detention areas. Public uses consist of 14 parcels, spanning 22.59 acres, representing 3.66% of the
Redevelopment District.

-12 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

FUTURE LAND USE & COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The Escambia County Comprehensive Plan is a guiding document that sets forth goals, objectives, and policies that
help define the character, rate of growth, and timing for future development in the County. It also corresponds

with the County’s future land use map (Fig. 2.4) that identifies all of the Atwood Redevelopment District as a
candidate for mixed-use urban redevelopment.

E JOHNSON AVE

UNIVERSITY prwy

"

E OLIVE RD

\NTERSTATE 110 RAMP.D

D emmmemn

e INTERSTATE .10 RAMP.E == INTERSTATELT0 RA
————

110 RAMP B

INTERSTATE 10 RAP B2

5 ELVLSHE{.NN'

| ATWOOD DISTRICT BOUNDARY
—— MAJOR ROADS R

I SURFACE WATER ‘@"

FUTURE LAND USE Y
] 500 1,000 2,000 3,000 J MIXED USE - URBAN
Fee

N DAVIS HwY.

[0 diivd 0Lk

RSTATE 10 RAMP F2

FIGURE 2.4: FUTURE LAND USE IN THE ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

-13-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

The following sections are excerpts from the Goals, Policies and Objectives of the Escambia County Comprehensive
Plan. These goals, policies and objectives have a direct impact on the Atwood Redevelopment District and are
included below:

Chapter 7: Future Land Use (FLU) Element

GOAL FLU 1 FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PATTERN

Escambia County will implement a planning framework that defines, supports and facilitates the desired future
development pattern in Escambia County while protecting and preserving natural and historic resources.

OBJECTIVE FLU 1.1 Growth Strategies

Apply accepted planning principles and utilize innovative and flexible planning strategies to achieve orderly and
balanced growth and development.

OBJECTIVE FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designations

Designate land uses on the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, compact development in urban
areas, and support development compatible with the protection and preservation of rural areas.

POLICY FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories General descriptions, range of allowable uses and residential

densities and non-residential intensities for all future land use categories in Escambia County in the Atwood
Redevelopment District are listed below:

FLUM Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U)

General Description: Intended for an intense mix of residential and nonresidential uses while promoting

compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses within the category as a whole.

Range of Allowable Uses: Residential, retail and services, professional office, light industrial, recreational facilities,

public and civic.

Standards: Residential Maximum Density 25 du/acre, Non-Residential Minimum Intensity: 0.25 Floor Area Ratio
(FAR), and Maximum Intensity: 2.0 FAR. Escambia County intends to achieve the following mix of land uses for
new development within a % of mile arterial roadways or transit corridors by 2030: Residential — 8% to 25%,
Public/Rec./Inst. — 5% to 20%, Non-Residential: Retail/Service — 30% to 50%, Office — 25% to 50%, and Light
Industrial — 5% to 10%. In areas beyond a % mile of arterial roadways or transit corridors, the following mix of land
uses is anticipated: Residential — 70% to 85%, Public/Rec/Inst.— 10% to 25%, and Non-Residential — 5% to 10%.

OBJECTIVE FLU 1.4 Protect Existing Communities

Escambia County will protect and enhance existing communities by eliminating nonconforming uses and structures
over time and through an active code enforcement program.

POLICY FLU 1.4.1 Nonconformity Escambia County will prohibit the expansion of nonconforming land uses or
structures within the County. The LDC will restrict any activity that would expand the land use in question, improve
structures or expand improvements associated with a nonconforming land use.

POLICY FLU 1.4.2 Code Enforcement Escambia County will conduct a combination of complaint-driven and
systematic code enforcement actions to reduce property maintenance code violations.

-14 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

OBJECTIVE FLU 1.5 Sustainable Development

Escambia County will promote sustainable development by encouraging compact, mixed- and multi-use land
patterns.

GOAL FLU 2 DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC SERVICES

Escambia County will promote urban strategies for compact development, the efficient provision of infrastructure
and urban services, and the protection of natural resources. Urban strategies will include infill development,
mixed-use development and coordinated land use and transportation planning.

OBJCETIVE FLU 2.1 Urban Development

Direct growth toward those areas where infrastructure and services exist to support development at approved
densities and intensities.

POLICY FLU 2.1.1 Infrastructure Capacities Urban uses will be concentrated in the urbanized areas with the most

intense development permitted in the Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) areas and areas with sufficient central water and
sewer system capacity to accommodate higher density development. Land use densities may be increased through
Comprehensive Plan amendments. This policy is intended to direct higher density urban uses to those areas with
infrastructure capacities sufficient to meet demands and to those areas with capacities in excess of current or
projected demand. Septic systems remain allowed through Florida Health Department permits where central
sewer is not available.

POLICY FLU 2.1.2 Compact Development To promote compact development, FLUM amendments and residential

re-zonings to allow for higher residential densities to be allowed in the MU-U and Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S)
future land use categories.

OBJECTIVE FLU 2.3 Infill Development

Encourage infill development in appropriate urbanized areas where infrastructure is sufficient to meet demands,
such as in MU-U and MU-S.

POLICY FLU 2.3.1 Area Designation All Community Redevelopment Areas as adopted by the BCC, are hereby

designated as an Urban Infill and Redevelopment Area in conformance with Florida Statutes.

POLICY FLU 2.3.2 Community Redevelopment Areas Escambia County will use its fiscal resources to encourage infill

residential, commercial and public development, particularly in the Community Redevelopment Areas.

OBJECTIVE FLU 2.4 Community Redevelopment

The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) will continue to implement the recommendations of the
Community Redevelopment Strategy, as may be updated from time to time.

POLICY FLU 2.4.1 Strategy The CRA and other County agencies will implement the recommendations of the

Community Redevelopment Strategy through the Palafox, Englewood, Brownsville, Warrington and Barrancas
Redevelopment Plans.

-15-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

POLICY FLU 2.4.2 Block Grants Escambia County will direct its Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) efforts
primarily to the Community Redevelopment Areas, but in any case, the program requirements promulgated by the

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) will be met.

Chapter 8: Mobility Element

The purpose of the Mobility Element, serving as the Transportation Element, is to establish the desired and
projected transportation system in Escambia County and to plan for future motorized and non-motorized traffic
circulation systems. This element provides guidelines to prepare for and establish an effective multi-modal
transportation system.

GOAL MOB 1 TRANSPORTATION

Escambia County will provide a safe, cost-effective and functional roadway and transportation system for all
residents and visitors to Escambia County.

OBJECTIVE MOB 1.1 Transportation System

Continue to provide a safe, convenient, efficient and cost-effective multimodal transportation system and roadway
network for present and future residents.

POLICY MOB 1.1.3 Non-motorized Transportation All new public road construction projects in urban areas or

community redevelopment areas shall accommodate non-motorized transportation. At a minimum, sidewalks and
bicycle facilities should be included. Consideration should also be given to include storage racks, striping, or
signage.

POLICY MOB 1.1.11 Required Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities Escambia County will encourage through

private/public partnerships the installation of sidewalks along the street frontage of new development (including
but not limited to new development along routes shown on the TPO Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, the County’s
Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, or the “Transportation Alternative” Plan) to provide connectivity and utility for
existing sidewalks in the vicinity of the development.

POLICY MOB 1.1.12 Coordination with School District and Sidewalk Planning Participation Escambia County will
coordinate with the Escambia County School District regarding new school siting and needs at existing schools

when determining locations for improvements to pedestrian facilities. Escambia County will also seek public input
from citizens, the Escambia County School District, and the development community regarding sidewalk needs and
priorities.

-16 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

OBJECTIVE MOB 1.2 Transportation and Land Use

Assure the continual coordination of land use decisions with the future traffic circulation system by coordinating
traffic circulation improvements with the FLUM and maintaining consistency between land use decisions and
traffic circulation system improvements.

POLICY MOB 1.2.2 Non-motorized Transportation Facilities Escambia County will provide or require the provision

of non-motorized transportation facilities to link residential areas with recreational and commercial areas in a safe
manner. This may include the construction of sidewalks, bike lanes, installation of signage, striping of roadways, or
the like so as to accommodate non-motorized transportation facilities.

GOAL MOB 2 TRANSIT

Escambia County will encourage the provision and use of a safe, efficient and financially feasible mass transit
transportation system, which is responsive to community needs, consistent with land use policies, and
environmentally sound and promotes economic opportunity and energy conservation.

OBJECTIVE MOB 2.2 Mass Transit and Growth Patterns

Operate an efficient and accessible fixed route mass transportation service in support of the projected growth
patterns of the service area while maintaining or increasing ECAT’s operating ratio.

POLICY MOB 2.2.1 Route Modernization ECAT shall modernize service from the existing radial route system into a

modified grid system to improve efficiency.

POLICY MOB 2.2.2 Service Area Adjustments ECAT will realign or adjust existing routes to provide service to areas

requiring service while at the same time reducing service to lower use areas in order to provide more efficient
service to more riders at comparable cost.

Chapter 9: Housing Element

The purpose of the Housing Element is to provide guidance for the development of safe, sanitary and affordable
housing for all residents of Escambia County. In particular, the goals, objectives and policies contained in this
element are intended to identify and address current and future deficits in the provision of moderate, low and
very-low income housing, group homes, foster care facilities and housing for those with special needs. In addition,
this element is intended to provide guidance to public and private sector housing providers, as well as the
residents of Escambia County, regarding redevelopment of existing neighborhoods, removal of substandard
housing, relocation assistance and critical housing assistance programs.

GOAL HOU 1 Provision of Housing

Escambia County will provide safe, sanitary and affordable housing for the current and future residents of the
County.

OBJECTIVE HOU 1.1 Housing Delivery Process

Provide guidance and direction to both the public and private sectors to assist in the provision of adequate housing
that varies in type, density, size, tenure, ownership, cost and location.

-17 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

POLICY HOU 1.1.1 Residential Areas The Escambia County Future Land Use Map FLUM and Zoning maps will
identify areas suitable for residential development and/or redevelopment.

OBJECTIVE HOU 1.2 Affordable Housing

Assure the provision of safe, sanitary and affordable housing for moderate, low and very-low income residents.

POLICY HOU 1.2.1 Definition Escambia County shall define affordable housing as housing with costs, including

monthly rents or mortgage payments, taxes, insurance, and utilities, not exceeding 30 percent of the amount that
represents the percentage of the median adjusted gross annual income for the households in Florida Statutes as
amended.

POLICY HOU 1.2.2 Location Escambia County will allow the location of affordable housing in any residential FLUM

category provided the housing is compatible with all applicable rules and regulations of the LDC.

POLICY HOU 1.2.3 Development Types Escambia County will promote affordable housing opportunities by allowing

cluster developments, zero-lot line developments, planned unit developments and other types of housing layouts
that may reduce the cost of individual dwelling units.

POLICY HOU 1.2.4 Mobile or Manufactured Home Location Escambia County will encourage the use of modular

homes, mobile, and/or manufactured as a type of housing as defined by Florida Statutes within the appropriate
zoning and FLU categories.

OBJECTIVE HOU 1.4 Existing Neighborhoods and Redevelopment

Protect the character of existing residential neighborhoods, provide opportunities for redevelopment and infill
development and reduce the number of substandard housing units through the continued implementation of
structural and aesthetic improvement programs such as but not limited to: preservation and infill, regulation
enforcement, construction inspection, improvement aid, unsafe building abatement, substandard home removal,
infrastructure improvement, and rental units and housing stock conservation/rehabilitation.

OBJECTIVE HOU 1.5 Relocation Assistance

Provide housing assistance, including relocation housing for persons displaced by public programs, projects or
housing rehabilitation.

POLICY HOU 1.5.1 Grants Escambia County will pursue grants to provide for relocating moderate, low, and very

low income persons displaced during the housing rehabilitation process.

POLICY HOU 1.5.2 County Policy Escambia County will utilize its “Relocation Policy” that was developed in

compliance with Public Law 93-383 (The Housing and Community Development Act of 1974) and adopted by the
BCC on November 28, 1988, including any revisions thereto.

OBJECTIVE HOU 1.6 Housing Programs

Continue implementation of critical housing programs. Implementation will include, but not be limited to,
County/Private partnerships, County/City partnerships, private non-profit, and technical assistance providers.

POLICY HOU 1.6.1 Program Information Escambia County will continue its housing outreach program to assure

dissemination of housing information.

-18 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

POLICY HOU 1.6.2 Non-discrimination Escambia County will enforce its nondiscrimination policies and provisions so

as to ensure access to housing opportunities by all segments of the County’s population.

POLICY HOU 1.6.3 Low-Interest Mortgage Loans Escambia County will cooperate with appropriate local, state and

federal agencies to facilitate bond-backed low- interest mortgage loans for homes purchase by qualified
individuals or families.

POLICY HOU 1.6.4 Housing Finance Authority Escambia County will participate with the Escambia County Housing

Finance Authority (HFA) in the issuance of bonds to provide low interest mortgage loans for home purchases by
qualified families.

POLICY HOU 1.6.5 State and Federal Assistance Escambia County will participate in affordable housing programs as

made available by the state, federal, or other appropriate agencies.

POLICY HOU 1.6.6 Neighborhood Enterprise Division (NED) Escambia County will provide affordable
homeownership opportunities and home repair assistance opportunities for moderate, low, and very low income

homebuyers and homeowners.

POLICY HOU 1.6.7 SHIP Fund Initiatives Escambia County will use State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP)
Program funds to expand and/or enhance ongoing activities designed to develop new affordable housing initiatives

conforming to the statutory requirements of Florida Statutes.

Chapter 10: Infrastructure Element

The purpose of the Infrastructure Element is to provide guidance in the provision of services necessary to
accommodate existing and future development in a way that is environmentally sensitive, efficient, and cost-
effective. Included within this Element are goals, objectives and policies regarding potable water provision,
wastewater treatment, solid waste disposal, stormwater management and aquifer protection. The adequate
provision of these services is intended to promote orderly growth within areas best suited to accommodate
development, protect sensitive natural resource systems and rural and agricultural areas, and preserve the public
health, safety, and general welfare of Escambia County’s citizens.

GOAL INF 1 WASTEWATER

Escambia County shall ensure the provision of environmentally safe and efficient wastewater collection,
treatment, and disposal concurrent with the demand for such services.

OBJECTIVE INF 1.1 Provision of Wastewater Service

Ensure the safe and efficient provision of wastewater services through coordination with service providers,
maximized use of existing facilities, maintenance of appropriate levels of service, correction of existing deficiencies
and protection of natural resources.

-19-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

POLICY INF 1.1.1 Service Agreements Wastewater service shall be provided at established levels of service within

Escambia County consistent with the Interlocal Agreement between the County and the ECUA, the Escambia
County Utilities Authority Act, Chapter 2001-324, Laws of Florida, and agreements with other wastewater
providers.

POLICY INF 1.1.2 Provider Consistency with Plan Escambia County will coordinate with ECUA and other providers
relative to their capital improvements and program formulation to assure consistency with this Comprehensive

Plan. Sewer availability will also be defined in Florida Statutes.

POLICY INF 1.1.4 Required Septic Tank Retirement Escambia County will, in coordination with the Escambia County

Health Department and wastewater service providers, require all onsite sewage treatment and disposal system
(i.e., septic tank) users to connect to an available central sewer system within the times prescribed Florida
Statutes.

POLICY INF 1.1.5 Coordination on System Expansions Escambia County shall coordinate with ECUA and other
wastewater service providers on the extensions of sanitary sewer collection lines and the siting or increase in

capacity of wastewater treatment facilities to meet future needs.

GOAL INF 3 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

Escambia County will ensure the provision of environmentally safe and efficient stormwater management
concurrent with the demand for such services.

OBJECTIVE INF 3.1 Provision of Stormwater Management

Ensure the safe and efficient provision of stormwater management through maximized use of existing facilities,
maintenance of appropriate levels of service, correction of existing deficiencies and protection of natural
resources.

POLICY INF 3.1.2 County System Improvements Escambia County shall continue its practice of enhancing localized

and regional drainage systems to increase the LOS associated with development prior to current stormwater
management requirements.

Chapter 13 Recreation and Open Space Element

The purpose of the Recreation and Open Space Element is to ensure adequate recreational opportunities for the
citizens of Escambia County through the provision of a comprehensive system of public and private park facilities.
These facilities may include, but are not limited to, natural reservations, parks and playgrounds, trails, beaches and
public access to beaches, open spaces and waterways.

-20-



LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

Atwood’s land is divided into five zoning categories.
Two primary zoning categories represented in the
Atwood Redevelopment District are residential and
Commercial. As with land use, the share of each
zoning designation reflects the dominance of the
corresponding land use, with residential (HDMU,
HDR, and MDR) occupying 66.99% of the total
acreage and commercial (Commercial and HC/LI)
occupying 33.01% (Table 2.2). Atwood’s zoning
categories are mapped in Figure 2.5 and described

below.

Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Zoning Category Acreage Percent
HDMU 298.62 48.35%
HDR 28.14 4.56%

MDR 86.98 14.08%
Commerecial 201.79 32.67%
HC/LI 2.1 0.34%

Total 617.63 100%

TABLE 2.2: DISTRIBUTION OF ZONING CATEGORIES. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

E JOHNSON A\/L

UNIVERSTY PKWY

E OLIVE RD

I i INTERSTATE 110 RAMP D
—-——"‘“L—-Ed,______
MP.E —aINTERSTAT,

N DAVIS HWY.

E JOHNSON AVE

=)
B EAERERRAR —
e & 0

———
HTTTTH
J_u,L__L‘JI‘Li__VV

—

INTERSTATE 1 ———

L
—— MAJOR ROADS

I SURFACE WATER
ZONING
B coMMERCIAL

| HIGH DENSITY MIXED USE
I HiGH DENSITY RESIDENTIAL
| MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

r--_-l ATWOOQOD DISTRICT BOUNDARY HEAVY COMMERCIAL / LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

N

e
s

FIGURE 2.5: ZONING CATEGORIES IN THE ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

-21-




Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

High Density Mixed-Use district (HDMU): The High Density Mixed-use district establishes appropriate areas and
land use regulations for a complimentary mix of high density residential uses and compatible non-residential uses
within urban areas. The primary intent of the district is to provide for a mix of neighborhood retail sales, services
and professional offices with greater dwelling unit density and diversity than the Low Density Mixed-use district.
Additionally, the HDMU district is intended to rely on urban street connectivity and encourage vertical mixes of
commercial and residential uses within the same building to accommodate a physical pattern of development
characteristic of village main streets and older neighborhood commercial areas. Residential uses within the
district include all forms of single-family, two-family and multi-family dwellings.

High Density Residential district (HDR): The High Density Residential (HDR) district establishes appropriate areas
and land use regulations for residential uses at high densities within urban areas. The primary intent of the district
is to provide for residential neighborhood development in an efficient urban pattern of well-connected streets and
at greater dwelling unit density and diversity than the Medium Density Residential district. Residential uses within
the HDR district include most forms of single-family, two-family and multi-family dwellings. Non-residential uses
within the district are limited to those that are compatible with urban residential neighborhoods.

Medium Density Residential district (MDR): The Medium Density Residential district establishes appropriate areas
and land use regulations for residential uses at medium densities within suburban or urban areas. The primary
intent of the district is to provide for residential neighborhood development in an efficient urban pattern of well-
connected streets and at greater dwelling unit density than the Low Density Residential district. Residential uses
within the MDR district are limited to single-family and two-family dwellings. The district allows non-residential
uses that are compatible with suburban and urban residential neighborhoods.

Commercial district (Com): The Commercial district establishes appropriate areas and land use regulations for
general commercial activities, especially the retailing of commodities and services. The primary intent of the
district is to allow more diverse and intense commercial uses than the neighborhood commercial allowed within
the mixed-use districts. To maintain compatibility with surrounding uses, all commercial operations within the
Commercial district are limited to the confines of buildings and not allowed to produce undesirable effects on
surrounding property. To retain adequate area for commercial activities, new and expanded residential
development within the district is limited, consistent with the Commercial (C) future land use category.

Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (HC/LI): The Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district
establishes appropriate areas and land use regulations for a complementary mix of industrial uses with a broad
range of commercial activities. The primary intent of the district is to allow light manufacturing, large-scale
wholesale and retail uses, major services, and other more intense uses than allowed in the Commercial district.
The variety and intensity of non-residential uses within the HC/LI district is limited by their compatibility with
surrounding uses. All commercial and industrial operations are limited to the confines of buildings and not allowed
to produce undesirable effects on other property. To retain adequate area for commercial and industrial activities,
other uses within the district are limited.

-22-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

PARCEL SIzE
The size of parcels (Fig. 2.6) has a significant impact on redevelopment potential for any proposed project

Typically, older subdivision plats and commercial properties may be too small for redevelopment and may exhibit

non-conformance with current zoning codes.

- _§ ATWOOD DISTRICT BOUNDARY
—— MAJOR ROADS

B sURFACE WATER “é’*
PARCEL SIZE Y
Shape_area

LESS THAN 3,000 SQ. FT.
3,000 SQ. FT. - 10,000 SQ. FT.
10,001 SQ. FT. - 1 ACRE

I 1 ACRE - 2 ACRES

Il ORE THAN 2 ACRES

_E JOHNSON AVE

UNIVERSITY PRy
— AL

INTERSTATE ‘110 RAMF, G I INTERS TATE 110.RAMR F2
_INTERSTATE 10 RANIE. BZ_\NTERSTATE 10 RAME.E — INTERSTATE, 10 RAME s -
——
INTERSTATE 10" e earm 1

INTERSTATE 10 == ____|

TERSTATE 10 RAMP B2
P 500 1,000 2,000 3,000
‘ I Feet]

FIGURE 2.6: PARCEL SIZE IN THE ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

Table 2.5 summarizes the parcel counts and distribution of various parcel sizes. The majority (58.48%) of parcels in
Atwood are between 10,000 square feet to 1 acre (43,560 square feet) in size. The next most common parcel sizes
in Atwood are lots that are between 3,000 to 9,000 square feet — representing nearly 18.20% of the

Redevelopment District.

Parcel Size Count Percent
< 3,000 square feet 39 4.44%
3,000 — 9,999 square feet 160 18.20%
10,000 square feet — 1 acre 514 58.48%
1-2 acres 106 11.95%
> 2 acres 61 6.94%
Total 879 100

TABLE 2.3: DISTRIBUTION OF PARCEL SIZE. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

-23-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

HousING CONDITION

Housing conditions in the Redevelopment District are mostly dilapidated and poor. The distribution of substandard
housing is clustered throughout the Redevelopment District (Fig. 2.7), while the neighborhoods of Ferry Pass and
Oakhurst contain a relatively higher concentration of poor quality housing compared to the rest of Atwood.

CRA staff conducted a neighborhood housing survey throughout the Atwood Redevelopment District. Houses
were evaluated based upon the following established conditions criteria:

1. [ 3CEEATEIREE] — None or very minor repair required.

2. [cleleleldenliilers — Possibly requiring paint. There may be evidence of aging. No structural repair necessary.

3. Fair condition — Repair or rehabilitation is required. Shingles may be curling. There may be evidence of the
need for energy improvements. Roofing may be required as well.

4, _ — Obvious structural damage exists. The Entire structure may be leaning, the floor may be
settling in places, and there may be evidence of water damage.

5. DIETILEIEL LT [iile)y] — Typically beyond feasible rehabilitation and in need of demolition. The building may
be burned out or otherwise structurally unsafe. Portions of the structure may already be down.

Conditions of deterioration in a neighborhood are a negative influence on surrounding residents, and the condition
of these units can be a deterrent to continuing investment and maintenance of other units. Of the 777 houses in
Atwood, over 48.2% are in either poor or dilapidated condition and 51.7% is in fair condition.

S - E
- £

: 4

7

FYERETT aye

STANGE 1y

LOCE §7an Ve

s 57

sy e

s by
E R ek i 3

;

-]
CharE
AR A

LANZNG DR

FIGURE 2.7: HOUSING CONDITIONS IN THE ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENTDISTRICT. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

-24-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

TRANSPORTATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Vehicular circulation through Atwood’s commercial corridors is logical and efficiently planned. Davis Highway
intersects Olive Road and E Johnson Ave as grade-separated interchanges that keeps the north-south flow of traffic
unhindered. E. Johnson Avenue and E. Olive Road provide the primary east-west access through the residential

and lesser commercial areas of the redevelopment area.

Atwood has a traditional city-like street grid with a traditional interconnected street layout that connects to

neighboring residential areas.

Olive Road East is a Roadway Reconstruction and Drainage project located east of Davis Highway. 2.3 miles of
roadway reconstruction will be completed from Davis Highway to Johnson Avenue. Construction will include a two-
lane curb and gutter with a center continuous left-turn lane; bike paths; sidewalks; re-alignment of Johnson
Avenue with Harbour Square Drive and a complete overhaul of the drainage system, including two stormwater
ponds and other safety improvements will be incorporated into the project. This project will be constructed in two
phases. Construction of Phase one is currently underway and is estimated to be completed by April 2017. Phase

two is construction is anticipated to start in 2017.

N

E JOHNSON AVE

UNIVERSITY PKWY

E OLIVE RD

wili T
I
— LT

| /

| /
% INTERSTATE 110 RAMPG e
INTERSTATE 10 RAMP, 52 s INTERSTATE 10 RAMELE s INTERSTATE 10 AT =

e |
\‘ [ ]7_\ « INTERSTATE 10
g INTERSTATE 10 Ramp
z ;r "1 ATWOOD DISTRICT BOUNDARY
€ s 2nird
g 2 ——— MAJOR ROADS i
5 il' ——— STREETS w—-@—e
0 500 1,000 2,000 3,0('):0 | I sURFACE WATER :
ee

FIGURE 2.8: VEHICULAR CIRCILATION IN THE ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

-25-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION

Pedestrian circulation in Atwood is deficient.
throughout the District. Sidewalks are only located along the commercial corridor on N Davis Highway and extends

a few feet east & west on E Olive Rd where the two intersect.

—

Atwood does not have an interconnected sidewalk network

’\— E JOHNSON AVE

UNIVERSITY PKwyy

E OLIVE RD

et || [ [T]
INTERSTATE "10'

EXISTING SIDEWALKS
7771 ATWOOD DISTRICT BOUNDARY
—— MAJOR ROADS 5.1

I sURFACE WATER :

FIGURE 2.9: SIDEWALKS IN ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

The Olive Road East Roadway Reconstruction and Drainage will include bike lanes and sidewalks on E Olive Rd
throughout the length of this heavily-travelled corridor from Davis Highway to E. Johnson Ave in the

Redevelopment District.

With the funded and planned improvements in the Atwood Redevelopment District, pedestrian circulation will be
vastly improved throughout the district. See concept map with proposed sidewalks Fig 3.1.

-26 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

SANITARY SEWER

The sewer network in Atwood is concentrated in the northern residential area of district above Olive Road and
scattered along Davis Highway in the Commercial Corridor. Sewer is available in the Klinger, Skycrest and Kipling
Neighborhoods. Sewer service is also limited to businesses on Davis Highway from I-10 to Oliver Rd.

E JOHNSON AV/E

E JOHNSON AVE
|
I~ |

I | |
[l

|
H
.
b

UNIVERSITY PKWY

R SRR
E I |||
E [IHI‘I S
‘Ji_lg.\ L1 l;t
MTH
.

f

I T T ——
il s SN RN -
| . | 1 =

— 1 L
I TT
| iy
= UL B L
| 7‘_\‘:'\””&”'\\\ g (=
‘ | | f } B |
. I 1§ S I
2 memmmeme NTERSTATE 110 RAMR.G
:INTERSTAfﬁWINTERSTATE.10 RAMP.E =~ NTERSTAT, _
— -
Z INTERSTATE 10— |
m
2 INTERSTATE 1
afe 9RAMP —
NAE Lo J ATWOOD DISTRICT BOUNDARY
AE ——
HIE > —— MAJOR ROADS
74 B B =
E % I I SURFACE WATER "
el H —— LATERALLINE k@.ﬂ
Al = ——— GRAVITY MAIN b
0 500 1,000 2,000 3,0?:0 FORCE MAIN
o 0 e o C

FIGURE 2.10: SEWER LINES IN THE ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

-27-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

SEWER EXPANSION
To ensure that sewer is available to all neighborhoods within the Atwood Redevelopment District, the sewer

system will be expanded to the south side of Olive Rd. (see figure 2.11). The expansion will be completed in two
phases. Phase one is the Atwood East Expansion and Phase two is the Whitmore Expansion.

\EJDHNSONA /

\_JE

E JOHNSON AVE

UNIVERSITY PKWY

E OLIVE RD

= ~ o |
.'j,_,rJr'L'_'-7' ———
T

INTERSTATE 10

l
5 INTERSTATE 10 RaMIP T JATWOOD DISTRICT BOUNDARY
o .
a = LATERAL LINE N
5 - e GRAVITY MAIN “<¢—a
o ; ——— FORCE MAIN y
o o>_1 ATWOOD EAST EXPANSION
g
= - = [ ] WHITMIRE EXPANSION
7] —— MAJOR ROADS
0 500 1,000 2,000 3,0?:0 Il SURFACE WATER
| == 2 O eeeeeessss———— g

FIGURE 2.11: SEWER LINES IN THE ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

-28-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

DEMOGRAPHICS

This section uses data provided by Nielsen Site Reports as compiled by the Haas Center of University of West
Florida to discuss the demographic, housing and economic conditions in the Atwood Redevelopment District and
compare them to the same conditions across the whole of Escambia County.

POPULATION

Atwood’s population has been very stable over the past fifteen years and is expected to remain so in the near
future. The 2000 Census identified 2,362 residents and 2,939 residents in 2010. Estimated population in 2015 was
3,136. Projected population in 2020 is 3,363. Population in the Redevelopment District increased 24.40% from
2000-2010 and increased 6.72% from 2010-2015. Atwood is expected to grow 7.24% from 2015-2020.

As reflected in Table 2.4 below, the Atwood Redevelopment District is growing at a much faster pace than the

county as a whole. In the period from 2000-2010, Atwood Redevelopment District grew 6.72%. Population grew

slower in Escambia County from 2010-2015 with a growth rate of 3.03%. Projected growth rate of the county as a
whole is expected to pick up to 4.49% from 2015-2020.

POPULATION % change 2020 % change

Location from 2010 (estimated) from 2014
Atwood CRD 2,939 3,136 6.72% 3,363 7.24%
Escambia County 297,619 306,630 3.03% 320,397 4.49%

TABLE 2.4 POPULATION. 2010 U.S. CENSUS/ESRI/UNIVERSITY OF WEST FLORIDA

HOUSEHOLDS

Household data (Tables 2.5 and 2.6) are important indicators of housing demand, household characteristics, and
market potential in a community. The 2010-2015 percent increase of households in Atwood (5.97%) is more than
the rate in household growth in Escambia County (3.42%). Despite this difference, the percentage of home owners

living in their homes is nearly similar when comparing Atwood to the county as a whole.

HOUSEHOLDS % change 2020(estimated) % change

Location from 2010 from 2015
Atwood CRD 1,294 1,371 5.97% 1,465 6.88%
Escambia County 116,238 120,219 3.42% 125,949 4.77%

TABLE 2.5 HOUSEHOLDS. 2010 U.S. CENSUS/ESRI/UNIVERSITY OF WEST FLORIDA

HOME OWNERSHIP RATE IN 2015 Atwood Escambia County
% Owner-occupied 51.62% 64.78%
% Renter-occupied 48.80% 35.22%

TABLE 2.6 HOME OWNERSHIP RATES. 2010 U.S. CENSUS/ESRI/UNIVERSITY OF WEST FLORIDA

Median household income is another very significant indicator of an area’s economic strength. Atwood’s median
household income in 2015 was $36,501. Escambia County’s median income in 2015 was $43,533. The discrepancy
in Atwood’s median income is $7,032 or 16.15% less than the County’s median income.

-29-




Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

ETHNIC COMPOSITION

Compared to Escambia County as a whole, the Atwood Redevelopment District has a higher concentration of white
citizens. (Table 2.7). Atwood’s ethic composition is 70.38% white and 18.27% Black or African American with other

listed races combined only make-up 11.35%.

ETHNIC COMPOSITION ATWOOD CRD ESCAMBIA COUNTY
White 70.38% 57.56%
Black or African American 18.27% 5.97%
Amer. Indian or Alaska Native 1.18% 1.70%
Asian 2.14% 1.13%
Native Hawaiian and other Pacific Islander .06% 0.21%
Some other race 3.79% 23.24%
Two or more races 4.18% 10.19%

TABLE 2.7: ETHNIC COMPOSITION. 2010 U.S. CENSUS/ESRI/UNIVERSITY OF WEST FLORIDA

AGE

Age breakdowns are comparatively similar in Atwood and Escambia County as a whole (Table 2.8). In the Atwood
Redevelopment District, 74.68% of the population is over 18 years of age while countywide the percentage is
78.4%. Comparison of the elderly population is nearly equal. Although slight, the greatest age comparison
difference is in children in Atwood. Atwood has about 1.6% more young children and 2.1% more school-aged

children than the county as a whole.

AGE ATWOOD CRD ESCAMBIA

COUNTY
0-4 6.89% 6.23%
5-17 15.08% 15.36%
18-64 63.72% 62.75%
65+ 14.32% 15.67%
Over 18 78.03% 78.41%

TABLE 2.8: AGE. 2010 U.S. CENSUS/ESRI/UNIVERSITY OF WEST FLORIDA

-30-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

EMPLOYMENT

The total working-age population of Atwood in 2015 was estimated at 4,504, of those 2,595 are employed. In
2015, unemployment rate in Atwood was 7.86%. 37.04% of the working age population of Atwood is not in the
labor force. Among Atwood residents (Table 2.9), the highest percentages are employed people who work in food
preparation/serving (18.84%) and office/administration support (18.23%).

EMPLOYMENT ATWOOD CRD ESCAMBIA COUNTY
Architect/Engineer 1.73% 1.30%
Arts/Entertain/Sports 0.08% 1.66%
Building Grounds Maintenance 3.43% 5.12%
Business/Financial Operations 1.35% 3.33%
Community/Social Services 1.39% 1.65%
Computer/Mathematical 1.12% 1.27%
Construction/Extraction 4.78% 5.02%
Education/Training/Library 4.35% 5.43%
Farm/Fish/Forestry 0.23% 0.43%
Food Prep/Serving 18.84% 8.52%
Health Practitioner/Tech. 8.79% 7.60%
Healthcare Support 5.51% 2.78%
Maintenance Repair 4.59% 3.61%
Legal 0.54% 0.97%
Life/Phys/Social Science 1.35% 0.57%
Management 3.47% 8.28%
Office/Admin. Support 18.23% 15.84%
Production 0.81% 3.40%
Protective Services 1.31% 2.15%
Sales/Related 7.90% 11.82%
Personal Care/Service 5.47% 3.33%
Transportation/Moving 4.70% 5.90%

TABLE 2.9: EMPLOYMENT. 2010 U.S. CENSUS/ESRI/UNIVERSITY OF WEST FLORIDA

EDUCATION

Economic conditions in a community are often analyzed through indicators such as per capita income, median and
average household incomes, employment rate, educational attainment, labor force participation, and poverty rate,
but there may be correlations as well between income performance and educational attainment.

As shown is Table 2.10, in 2015, it is estimated that 30% of Atwood residents have received their high school
diploma, while an additional 28% have attended college (with nearly 13% of the population attaining a Bachelor’s
Degree). In contrast, 14% of the Redevelopment Area adults have not completed high school.

In comparison with Atwood to the county as a whole, the difference isn’t dramatic — with slightly lower
educational attainment in Atwood. However, Atwood does lead the county with the percentage of adults who
have a high school diploma and have attended college.

-31-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT ATWOOD CRD ESCAMBIA COUNTY
(population 25+ in 2015) (population 25+ in 2015)
Less than 9% grade 6.56% 4.03%
Some High School, no diploma 7.86% 8.81%
High School Graduate (or GED) 30.05% 29.00%
Some College, no degree 27.97% 24.49%
Associate Degree 9.58% 10.40%
Bachelor’s Degree 12.62% 14.77%
Master’s Degree 4.79% 6.33%
Professional School Degree 0.26% 1.32%
Doctorate Degree 0.34% 0.85%

TABLE 2.10: EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT. 2010 U.S. CENSUS/ESRI/UNIVERSITY OF WEST FLORIDA

INCOME

In 2015, residents of Atwood on average earned 25.3% less than a resident elsewhere in Escambia County. The
difference in median income was not quite as drastic with Atwood residents earning 16.15% less median income
than in the county as a whole. Despite this discrepancy, Atwood has higher percentages of residents in the

$35,000 - $99,999 income range than compared countywide.

INCOME BRACKETS ATWOOD CRD ESCAMBIA COUNTY
2015 Average Income $49,529 $58,243
2015 Median Income $36,501 $43,533
<$15,000 14.15% 15.44%
$15,000 - $24,999 20.57% 12.08%
$25,000 - $34,999 13.49% 13.48%
$35,000 - $49,999 18.09% 15.82%
$50,000 - $74,999 14.37% 17.37%
$75,000 - $99,999 6.71% 12.13%
$100,000 - $124,999 5.91% 5.68%
$125,000 - $149,000 3.06% 2.68%
$150,000 - $199,999 2.77% 2.93%
$200,000 - $249,999 0.88% 0.95%
$250,000 - $499,999 0.07% 1.12%
$500,000+ 0.00% 0.33%

-32-

TABLE 2.11: INCOME BRACKETS, 2010 U.S. CENSUS/ESRI/UNIVERSITY OF WEST FLORIDA




Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

CRIME

With a limited dataset, it is difficult to establish a deep understanding of crime trends in the Atwood
Redevelopment District. The data in Table 2.12 shows that larceny is the highest number of crimes in Atwood from
2008 -2014. Only one murder was reported in the seven year period in 2013. When compared to Escambia County
as a whole, Atwood is extremely low in all categories. In all aspects of measured crime, the Atwood
Redevelopment District has a much lower rate than the county as a whole. Crime and the perception of crime can
always be viewed as an impediment to redevelopment. This data provides a baseline for future improvement as
the Redevelopment Area progresses.

TOTAL INCIDENCE OF CRIME 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 PAONE] 2014

Location Reports Reports Reports Reports | Reports Reports Reports
Atwood CRD (pop. 3,363)

Murder 0 0 0 0 0 1 0

Forcible Sex Offenses 3 2 2 4 1 0 4
Robbery 15 6 11 6 8 9 3

Aggravated Assault/Battery 18 13 12 15 15 20 10
Burglary/Break-and-Enter 49 48 49 35 49 47 33
Larceny 55 42 68 62 69 70 55

Motor Vehicle Theft 22 13 14 7 13 13 8
Narcotics 12 10 29 12 16 21 25

Escambia County (pop. 306,630)

Murder 18 15 26 14 15 23 18
Forcible Sex Offenses 225 307 313 272 264 224 234
Robbery 554 534 461 463 412 370 306

Aggravated Assault/Battery 1,420 1,392 1,128 1,033 1,269 1,169 1,203

Burglary/Break-and-Enter | 2,417 2,610 2,665 2,600 3,156 2,776 2,356

Larceny | 6,364 6,593 7,271 7,543 7,579 7,588 6,908

Motor Vehicle Theft 687 630 519 858 550 654 554

Narcotics | 1,369 1,526 1,458 1,641 1,701 1,600 1,122

TABLE 2.12 TOTAL INCIDENCE OF CRIME IN ATWOOD AND ESCAMBIA COUNTY. ESCAMBIA COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

-33-




Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

CHAPTER 3: CONCEPT PLAN

CONCEPT PLAN PHILOSOPHY

This chapter presents the Concept Plan for future land use and redevelopment within the Atwood Redevelopment
Plan. The Concept Plan elements were conceived based on the priority issues and assets identified during the
public workshops and surveys. The Concept Plan presents a general outline of the recommended elements for
redevelopment of the Atwood Redevelopment District followed by a brief description of the objectives and the
recommended action strategies to achieve these objectives. The Concept Plan serves as the foundation for future
policy decisions by the County. The following general principles form the basis for recommendations and
strategies contained in the Concept Plan:

e The Plan identifies, in general, where future land use changes and redevelopment activities should occur
to make best use of limited resources and attract desirable businesses and reinvestment.

e The Plan offers a comprehensive strategy from which the Community Redevelopment Agency can plan its
activities for the Atwood Redevelopment District.

e The Plan emphasizes public safety and the passive means that help achieve this; i.e., street lighting, Crime
Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) design, signage, etc.

e The Plan considers business development, particularly small-scale and local enterprise, as the future
economic foundation for the Atwood Redevelopment District.

In summary, the Concept Plan supports desirable social, physical and economic development strategies as
expressed by community stakeholders, including:

e Improving physical conditions and visual character of the area’s primary transportation corridors.

e Encouraging infill, renovation, reconstruction and enhancement of single-family residential areas.

e Creating natural centers of social, entertainment, and retail activity that help anchor neighborhoods and
form gateways into Atwood.

e Promoting denser and fuller commercial development on Atwood main commercial corridors.

e Appropriately buffering non-harmonious adjacent land uses in order to preserve residential character and
help stabilize property values.

e Identifying appropriate locations in the Redevelopment District to introduce mixed-use developments
through adaptive reuse, new infill construction and future land use revisions.

e Enforcing code regulations as they apply to housing and property upkeep, visual blight, and safety
requirements.

e Enhancing the pedestrian orientation of the Atwood Redevelopment District by increasing its walkability;

e Providing infrastructure, especially sanitary sewer connections to enable infill development of single-
family homes.

e Devising strategies to support increased home ownership and improved housing rehabilitation efforts
such as soft second mortgages and low-interest loans without income restrictions.

-34-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

ATwoob CRD CONCEPT PLAN

L o JATWOOD DISTRICT BOUNDARY  [JIl] PROPOSED OPEN SPACE
B NFILL OPPORTUNITY SITES

PRIMARY GATEWAY MAJOR ROADS
2B SURFACE WATER

FERRY PASS
VOLUNTEER
FIRE DEPT.

%ﬂ% SECONDARY GATEWAY F77] RETENTION POND —
TREE CANOPY ! /

EEEE COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR FUTURE LAND USE E JOHNSON AvE / H
EEEE RESIDENTIAL CORRIDOR [ ] MIXED-USE URBAN 7 . -

EXISTING SIDEWALKS J
—— PROPOSED SIDEWALKS n |
—m—= PROPOSED WALKING TRAIL w@'— e FERRY PASS B  cncersr
B COMMUNITY AMENITIES ELEMENTARY 5 T

s SCHOOL \ g =

PROPOSED COMMUNITY CENTER

UNIVERSITY PKwy

- NELSON ST,

LAWTON &7,
e ]

CARL DEAN 5T,

— FARBURN ST

v

m =

BINKLEY 57
EEEEEEER

ERWIN DR

—— BLACKWELL LN -‘f i
[+ IJ

OLD BLACK 1

WHITMIRE oy
GRAVES RD___
f:
i
|
|| &
|:g
i
3
w
I

-
/ --"'-l-._
"y,
SABRA o

- DESERT ST

FITCH AVE
1]

— 1

WILSON REAvES |1y

C— INTERSTATE 10 RAMP 52 —— INTERSTATE 10 RAMEE—INrERsmT.m RAMRE B

INTERSTATE 10

.....__L |
= 0 e - PANDORA P
INT !

ERSTATE 10 Rafjp

' , F 500 1,000 2,000 3,000

I}

Feet

FIGURE 3.1: CONCEPT PLAN FOR THE ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT. ESCAMBIA COUNTY GIS

CORRIDORS

Primary corridors serve as major access routes for vehicular and pedestrian movement. Highly visible and easily
accessible business locations are essential components of market development, and effective traffic circulation is
Primary corridors carry the largest amounts of traffic and are the most recognizable and

an important factor.
Integration of transportation and land use considerations become important in designing

convenient routes.
primary corridors that are effective at moving traffic, allowing curbside access, and presenting an appealing and

welcoming image to motorists and pedestrians alike.
Existing conditions on the Redevelopment Area’s primary corridors are somewhat deficient in terms of
infrastructure quality, commercial activity, personal safety, and aesthetic character. These deficiencies must be

addressed in order to create the conditions that will lead to reinvestment in the Redevelopment Area. The
Concept Plan identifies three primary corridor types within the Atwood Redevelopment Area that could potentially

act as catalysts for the redevelopment of the area. These corridors are:

-35-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

1. Primary Commercial Corridors:

N. Davis Highway , E. Olive Road, and E. Johnson Ave
2. Neighborhood Commercial Corridors

Kipling Street
3. Neighborhood Connectors

Lawton Street, Hilburn Road, Klinger Street and Binkley Street

PRIMARY COMMERCIAL CORRIDORS

N. Davis Highway is the primary north-south route through the Atwood District. Land use along N. Davis Highway
is primarily highway-commercial with numerous driveways and access points along the road. Economic vitality
along the corridor is moderate with retail, industrial and institutional uses. Retail uses are more concentrated
along the intersection of N. Davis Highway and E. Olive Road. Some areas of the corridor are vacant or under-
utilized, with excellent redevelopment potential.

Although traffic is heavy during peak hours, a significant road improvement is currently under way for E. Olive
Road from N Davis Highway to Johnson Avenue. The Escambia County Engineering project will improve safety for
vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians in addition to widening the roadway to include a left-turn center lane.

E. Olive Road is the primary east-west route that runs through the center of the Atwood District. Commercial
activity along E. Olive Road is as intense as is found on N. Davis Highway through the Redevelopment District.
Large shopping centers are anchored by large national retailers and are supported by smaller shops and services.
Commercial redevelopment opportunity is available in pockets along E. Olive Road.

E. Johnson Avenue is also a primary east-west route that runs across the northern boundary of the Atwood
Redevelopment District. There is a mixture of residential and business uses along this route that also present
opportunities for redevelopment.

Objective: Integrate existing commercial development into the functional and aesthetic framework of the
redevelopment vision that retains the economic benefits of these uses, while improving their visual impact.
Establish an identity for the corridor and stimulate quality development in the Atwood Redevelopment District.

Action Strategies:

e |Initiate physical improvements to enhance the overall visual appearance of the commercial corridor.
These include constructing elements such as landscaped medians, street lighting, sidewalks, and shared
access to adjacent uses.

e Concentrate and consolidate existing commercial uses to prepare for any new development and use the
services of a real estate agent and/or the County’s land management team to acquire and assemble land
for the development of large marketable retail or office sites.

e Identify priority sites for developing neighborhood retail and entertainment centers. These centers would
centralize important neighborhood features, such as grocery stores, banks, dry cleaners, restaurants, etc.

-36-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

e Provide business owners and developers with incentives such as a tax breaks to upgrade existing buildings
and property to meet minimum code standards.

e Encourage adaptive reuse of underutilized and obsolete commercial uses wherever possible.

e Adopt and enforce design standards to ensure visual integration and a sense of identity for the entire
corridor.

e Extend and/or complete sewer infrastructure to all properties in the corridor.

EXISTING CONDITION: N. DAVIS HIGHWAY. CRA STAFF Photo simulation of desired improvements for a
PRIMARY COMMERCIAL CORRIDOR. IBI GROUP, INC.

TYPICAL SECTION AN IMPROVED COMMERCIAL CORRIOR. IBI GROUP, INC.

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL CORRIDORS

Preserving neighborhood character and unity was mentioned as being important to the residents of Atwood, and
the proposed development program for Atwood’s neighborhood commercial corridor intends to build upon their
existing character.

Kipling Street is the secondary north-south route through the Redevelopment District. There are residential uses
concentrated along the north and south ends of Kipling Street with businesses along the center of the corridor. A
variety of businesses exist along this corridor such as chiropractor, electrician, and auto sales.

Residential streets provide pivotal links between different neighborhoods, between different uses in the same
neighborhoods, and form the road network that residents use to interact with each other. Their character is
generally leisurely; wide lanes and tree canopies combine to create a sense of tranquility that is unavailable on
busier roadways. Streets with mixed commercial and residential uses require modified strategies to properly

-37-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

manage their character and uses. Also, there is high pedestrian traffic with no pedestrian infrastructure. Citizens
transition through an unsafe and comfortable pedestrian environment.

Objective: Transform the functional and visual
character of the street as primary neighborhood
commercial corridor at a scale that is pedestrian
friendly and compatible with the residential
neighborhoods. Establish an identity for the corridor
and encourage private sector investment that
addresses the needs of the neighborhood.

EXISTING CONDITION: E. OLIVE ROAD. CRA STAFF

Action Strategies:

e Implement physical improvements to enhance the overall visual appearance of these residential corridors.
Such improvements should be made to help soften the street view, provide pedestrian comfort and
safety, and slow traffic to reasonable speeds. Tree canopy, landscaping, street lighting, sidewalk repair
and construction, and vegetative screens to hide undesirable views are all appropriate.

e  Encourage neighborhood commercial development that is compatible with the adjacent uses.

e Provide business owners and developers with incentives such as tax breaks to upgrade existing buildings
and property to meet minimum code standards.

e Adopt and enforce design standards to ensure visual integration and a sense of identity for the entire
corridor.

e  Focus redevelopment efforts at neighborhood gateway intersections.

e Improve pedestrian safety and amenity where deficient, particularly in the form of street lighting,
crosswalks and signals, and sidewalks.

e Increase code enforcement and augment public security.

-38-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

NEIGHBORHOOD CONNECTORS

Lawton Street is a neighborhood connector that runs north and south the full extent of the district from E. Johnson
Avenue to Pandora Place at I-10. It provides access for neighborhood pedestrian and vehicle traffic to transition
back and forth across E. Olive Road. Lawton Street is proposed for sidewalks to create a safer pedestrian
environment.

Hilburn Road is also an important north-south connector at the western boundary of the District that extends from
E. Olive Road to I-10. Hilburn Rd connects to Atwood Drive on the south boundary providing access to the Frichez
Heights neighborhood.

Klinger Street and Binkley Street will provide the neighborhood and Ferry Pass Elementary School students direct
access to the proposed community center and park. This road is also proposed for sidewalks to create a safer
pedestrian environment.

Objective: Maintain and improve the residential character of the neighborhoods. Connect important
neighborhood destinations. Enhance the community’s sense of place and identity by establishing higher quality
architectural design standards in the residential areas.

Action Strategies:

e Implement physical improvements to enhance the overall visual appearance of these residential
connectors. Such improvements should be made to help soften the street view, provide pedestrian
comfort and safety, and slow traffic to reasonable speeds.

e Encourage adaptive reuse of vacant properties that is compatible with the neighborhoods.

e Adopt and enforce design standards to ensure visual integration and a sense of identity for the entire
corridor.

e Improve pedestrian safety and amenity where deficient, particularly in the form of street lighting
crosswalks and signals, and sidewalks.

e Increase code enforcement and augment public security.

PHOTO SIMULATION OF DESIRED IMPROVEMENTS FOR A BINKLEY STREET. CRA STAFF
NEIGHBORHOOD CONNECTOR. IBI GROUP

-39-




Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

GATEWAYS

Gateways are important visual landmarks that reinforce the entrance into a geographic area. They commonly
make use of a combination of complementary elements to create a pleasing and welcoming image to residents and
visitors. Such elements include signage, landscaping, hardscape features like fountains or plazas, outdoor kiosks or
vending stalls, and various forms of retail or dining activity. Gateways, when designed in this manner, help to
provide focal points for people to spend time away from work or home. In addition to serving as landmarks, they
can be zones of social and retail/dining activity for local residents.

In the Atwood Redevelopment District, there are seven intersections where gateways of primary and secondary
magnitude could eventually be developed. The primary ones are located at major intersections, while the
secondary ones serve largely residential blocks.

PRIMARY GATEWAYS
All primary gateways can be designed and developed on common principles, with particular strategies added to
each gateway appropriate to the area around it. The implementation of any of these town-center gateways will
require close cooperation between the public and private sectors. Escambia County and various state and federal
agencies must ensure that public utilities, rights-of-way, zoning requirements
are able to accommodate the proposed primary gateways.

Proposed primary gateway locations:

e on N. Davis Highway at I-10

e on N. Davis Highway at E. Johnson Avenue

e on N. Davis Highway at E. University Parkway
e onE. Olive Road at Hilburn Road

e onE. Olive Road at Caminitti Lane

e on E. Johnson Avenue at Caminitti Lane
EXAMPLE OF A GATEWAY
FEATURE. GOOGLE MAPS
SECONDARY GATEWAYS

Secondary gateways are intended to highlight the instance of entering a particular neighborhood or district. In
these cases, signage, landscaping, and paving are combined in ways that draw attention to the intersection and the
streets that lead to it. For example, Lawton Street at E. Johnson Avenue is an ideal street to build secondary
gateways in Atwood. In addition to being located parallel to busy U.S. Highway 29, it is anchored on the south end
by the Interstate 10 overpass, representing an important opportunity to brand the entrance into the
Redevelopment District along a lower-speed corridor.

Proposed secondary gateway location:

o on E. Johnson Avenue at Lawton Street

Objective: Create entrance gateways at critical intersections to create a sense of arrival and neighborhood identity

for the Atwood Redevelopment District.

Action Strategies:

e Install unique landscaping elements and signage directing people to the Atwood Redevelopment District.

- 40 -




Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

e  Prioritize construction of gateway improvements in conjunction with other planned improvements.

e  Establish neighborhood identification and directional signage programs announcing the entrance to the
Atwood Neighborhood at the identified prime entry points.

e Continue to bury utilities during new construction where feasible to provide safe pedestrian access and
improve visual qualities.

e Ensure a coherent design for all the proposed gateways with an integrated landscaping and unified
signage theme.

EXAMPLES OF NEIGHBORHOOD GATEWAY DESIGN. IBI GROUP, INC.

COMMUNITY AMENITIES

There are no existing community amenities in the Atwood Redevelopment District. This Redevelopment Plan
proposes to develop a community center and park that encourage outdoor recreation and social interaction.
Neighborhood parks should be created on vacant lots that are strategically located near neighborhoods. The goal is
to provide a neighborhood park within a 10-minute walk of any residence in the Atwood Redevelopment District.

Objective: Improve resident’s quality of life by providing recreational opportunities for residents of the Atwood
Redevelopment District. Such amenities should be readily accessible and serve to strengthen and enhance the
community.

-41 -




Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Action Strategies:

e Strategically locate neighborhood pocket parks within a 10-minute walking distance from residential
blocks. Identify such pocket park opportunity sites through acquisition of privately owned vacant,
dilapidated or uninhabitable structures, when possible.

e Increase the number of neighborhood groups and strengthen neighborhood group collaboration.

e  Fund the community center project identified in the capital improvement section of this plan.

REDEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES

This section of the plan highlights three particular redevelopment opportunities that could have far-reaching
positive impact on the Redevelopment Area:

e Commercial Redevelopment and Infill

e Infill Opportunities for Single- and Multi-Family Housing
e Encourage Citizen Groups and Civic Pride

e Public Health and Safety

COMMERCIAL REDEVELOPMENT AND INFILL

With 7.65% of the Redevelopment Area being vacant, this represents a good opportunity for redevelopment of
underutilized areas and infill development for new businesses. The Concept Map (on page 34) identifies vacant
parcels 1-acre and larger. These identified parcels are opportunities for new development.

Objective: Encourage the redevelopment and infill development of vacant properties with commercial
potential. Such economic growth benefits both Atwood and Escambia County.

Action Strategies:

e Initiate the Sign Grant and Commercial Fagade, Landscape & Infrastructure Grant programs. These grant
programs match commercial property owners in a reimbursement grant for 50% of the project cost
according to the grant program guidelines. If the amount of the TIF and Community Development Block
Grant funding allows, consider expanding the maximum match to a higher amount to accommodate
larger improvement projects.

e Meet with developers to find out what the County can do to help promote commercial growth in the
Atwood Redevelopment District.

Before

\ ——

EXAMPLE OF A COMMERCIAL FACADE GRANT RECIPIENT. CRA STAFF

-42 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

EXAMPLE OF A COMMERCIAL SIGN GRANT ECPIENT. CRA SAFF

INFILL OPPORTUNITIES FOR SINGLE- AND MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING

Several smaller undeveloped tracts remain in the Atwood Redevelopment District for future residential
development. As Escambia County continues to grow its economy, new residential development will follow. The
ongoing expansion of the Navy Federal Credit Union campus is expected to place additional demand for housing
units as the credit union’s employees relocate to the area and new jobs are created.

The Community Redevelopment Agency will work with partners such as Escambia County Neighborhood Enterprise
Division, Habitat for Humanity, and CEll to consider creating new affordable housing opportunities. By partnering
with a wide variety of agencies and non-profits, a greater pool of funding is available for home repairs and
construction.

Objective: Encourage the redevelopment and infill development of vacant properties with residential potential.

Action Strategies:
e Work with local partners to increase the affordable housing opportunities in Atwood.
e Create community amenities, beautification and streetscapes to make Atwood an attractive place to live.
e  Use TIF funds to expedite funding of infrastructure improvements in the Atwood CRD.

ENCOURAGE CITIZEN GROUPS AND Civic PRIDE

Citizen involvement in the redevelopment of an area is critical to its success. Citizen groups, such as neighborhood
watch groups or other civic-minded organizations are a great way to advocate for improvements to elected
officials. Motivated neighbors also are a great resource to get small projects completed whether it is helping
someone paint a house or hosting a park clean-up day. These neighborhood groups will receive support and
guidance from Escambia County to maximize their effectiveness in the community. The Ferry Pass Neighborhood
Watch is an active group of citizens whose goal is to improve the neighborhood and has interest in the issues
affecting the Atwood Community Redevelopment District.

In the past, the Escambia County Redevelopment Agency hosted a Neighborhood Leadership Workshop for the
heads of the neighborhood groups of all the CRA districts to attend a workshop to network, trade information, and
learn new skills. The CRA hopes to reinvigorate this practice in the future which will include leaders from the
Atwood Redevelopment District.

Objective: Help foster a sense of civic pride in the Atwood Redevelopment District through neighborhood groups,
beautification projects, and neighborhood conferences.

-43-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Action Strategies:

e  Work with residents to establish community groups and provide support to help those groups have
maximum effectiveness in their community.

e Host an annual Neighborhood Leadership Workshop and invite leaders from all CRA districts in Escambia
County and the City of Pensacola.

PuBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY

Crime in Atwood can be an impediment to the revitalization of the District and the surrounding areas. The
Escambia County CRA, the Atwood Community and the Atwood Neighborhood Groups will continue to work
towards the common goal of decreasing and/or eliminating crime by implementing a comprehensive strategy
addressing the need for additional law enforcement, community policing, prevention, intervention and treatment,
neighborhood and economic development.

Objective: The CRA will continue to work with the Escambia County Sheriff's Department, Atwood
Neighborhood Groups, Area churches, Commercial businesses and community stakeholders.

Action Strategies:

e Seek to have a Sheriff sub-station located within the Atwood Redevelopment District.

e Promote representatives from the Escambia County Sheriff’s Department to conduct regular clean-
sweeps of the Atwood area.

e Continue to solicit assistance from citizens for code enforcement violations.

e  Support Crime Prevention Programs throughout the community.

e Continue to provide residential and commercial street lighting for safety.

e Install additional sidewalks for pedestrian safety.

RESIDENTIAL PRESERVATION AND ENHANCEMENT

The Atwood Redevelopment District contains 11 neighborhoods. The housing condition is fair with a number of
dilapidated homes scattered across the Redevelopment District. In addition, crime and public safety are also
concerns of the community. The efforts to revitalize the Redevelopment District and improve the quality of life
should be supported by a harmonizing effort to revitalize and preserve existing neighborhoods. The Plan calls for
continued neighborhood improvements to create a strong, safe and vibrant community.

To preserve and improve the quality of the existing housing conditions, the Plan recommends utilizing existing
incentives such as the CRA’s residential rehabilitation grant to encourage housing restoration across the
Redevelopment District, and continuing to collaborate with non-profit organizations and faith-based institutions.

To improve neighborhood connections and pedestrian walkability, the Plan suggests enhancing the existing
neighborhood character, continuing with public realm improvements to provide a safe and aesthetically pleasing
environment, and in particular, improving the connections with local schools, parks and other neighborhood
destinations. The Plan also recommends pursuing infill development opportunities in the neighborhood to
develop pocket parks and multi-family housing development through land assembly and acquisition, where
possible.

-44 -




Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Objective: Preserve and enhance the residential character of the neighborhood through investment in public
infrastructure and by establishing or promoting programs that support investment in residential renovations and
redevelopment of existing housing stock.

Action Strategies:

e  Establish the residential improvement grant to encourage housing restoration across the Redevelopment
District.

e  Establish residential design standards for building renovations and infill development.

e Acquire lots or building sites, or execute land exchanges for infill development.

e Actively pursue code enforcement including demolition of dilapidated structures. Parcels that become
available as a result of the demolition may be used for infill housing development or neighborhood parks.

e Identify opportunities to develop pocket parks through acquisition of privately owned vacant, dilapidated
or uninhabitable structures so that no Atwood resident is more than a 10-minute walk from a park.

e Continue to provide financial assistance to further sewer system expansion throughout the
redevelopment area together with ECUA and developer funding.

e Consider the provision of flexible development standards in future zoning code revisions for minimum lot
sizes to enable development of smaller residential lots.

e Enhance pedestrian safety employing a combination of traffic calming measures such as reduced speed
limits, better signage, and the use of elevated decorative crosswalks at primary intersections.

e Initiate community-based activities involving the youth and public safety staff to generate support and
participation in local anti-crime programs and improve public relations with the staff.

e Continue to work with neighborhood associations to conduct neighborhood planning exercises on a
periodic basis to determine the specific needs of each neighborhood within the Redevelopment Area.

e  Support enhanced law enforcement.

e  Support neighborhood promotional programs.

HOUSES IMPROVED WITH THE CRA RESIDENTIAL REHAB GRANT PROGRAM. CRA STAFF

-45-




Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

CHAPTER 4: CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Capital investment in improvement projects, including pedestrian-targeted improvements, will help to achieve the
goals and desires of the Atwood community. It is through such projects that Escambia County will enhance the
functional and aesthetic quality of the Atwood Redevelopment District and provide the basis for leveraging private
redevelopment investment. The table below presents a list of proposed capital projects and programs that could
be pursued by the county to implement the recommendations of this Redevelopment Plan.

The strategies herein are divided into short-term (within 5 years), mid-term (5 to 10 years), and long-range (+10
years) time horizons to help facilitate budgeting and provide a guide to what projects may be considered a higher
priority at first. It is important to note that these proposed capital improvement strategies are not a pledge of
expenditure of funds on a given project in a given year. Actual funding allocations will be determined annually
through the county’s budget process. Also, as years pass, priorities may change and the capital improvement
strategies may need to be amended to reflect that.

County funds can be used to leverage grants and commercial financing to accomplish a substantial number of
capital improvements and planning activities. With successful revitalization, Escambia County should see a
substantial increase in the tax base and realize a healthy return on its investment through increased ad valorem
tax revenues, sales tax receipts and other formulated revenue sharing programs.

The Atwood Redevelopment Plan contains several projects consisting of public, private and joint public/ private
efforts that may take up to twenty years to complete. It is essential that the county incorporates a sound project
implementation strategy when identifying priorities. The community should understand that the county will be
pursuing multiple elements of the Redevelopment Plan at all times, and it is important to note that the summary
of capital implementation strategies in this chapter is flexible in nature. It is the best estimate of project costs
based on a measure of the order of magnitude for projects in relation to anticipated revenues. As a matter of
practice the county will continue to prepare annual budgets as well as establish five-year and long-range work
programs for budgetary and administrative purposes. Ultimately project costs will be refined during the design
and construction phase of any given project.

- 46 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Project Description Estimated Costs Funding Estimated
Sources Timeframe
Bike Lanes
E. Olive Road from Davis Construct bike lanes on north and | Funded as part of the LOST 2018
Highway to E. Johnson Rd south sides of E. Olive Road Olive Rd East Project
Bus Stop Improvements
General transit improvements Transit improvements are made TBD | ECAT, LOST | Short-term. TBD

to bus stops in Atwood CRD
Project

Community Center

on an as-needed basis.
Description

Estimated Costs

Funding
Sources

Estimated
Timeframe

from Blackwood Ln to Atwood Dr.

Atwood Community Center Community Center with similar $1,800,000 LOST, TIF Mid range. TBD
layout and size as Ebonwood.

Drainage

E. Olive Road from Davis A complete overhaul of the | Funded as part of the LOST 2018

Highway to Johnson Road drainage system, including two | Olive Rd East Project
stormwater ponds.

Parks

Atwood Neighborhood Park Construct a new neighborhood 1,000,000 LOST, Mid range. TBD
park. Parks, TIF

Olive Rd Walking Trail Construct walking trail around TBD TBD Mid range. TBD
Olive Rd retention pond.

Road Improvements

E. Olive Road from Davis This project will be approx. 2.3 | Funded as part of the LOST 2017/2018

Highway to E. Johnson Rd miles of roadway reconstruction. Olive Rd East Project

Project Description ‘ Estimated Costs Funding ‘ Estimated

Sources Timeframe

Sidewalks

Atwood Drive Construct sidewalk on Atwood $208,652 | LOSTIV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD
Dr. from Gregg Rd. to Lawton St.

Blackwell Lane Construct sidewalk on Blackwell $179,326 | LOSTIV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD
Ln. from Whitmire Dr. to N Davis
Hwy.

Binkley Street Construct sidewalk on Binkley St $196,400 | LOSTIV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD
from Klinger St. to East Olive Rd.

Caminitti Lane Construct sidewalk on Caminitti $266,130 | LOSTIV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD
Ln. from E. Johnson Ave. to E.
Olive Rd.

E. Johnson Avenue Construct sidewalk on East $353,159 | LOSTIV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD
Johnson Ave. from N. Davis Hwy.
to Caminitti Ln.

Faith Lane Construct sidewalk on Faith Ln. $56,564 | LOST IV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD
from E. Johnson Ave to Klinger St.

Ferry Pass Elementary School Construct sidewalk on the North $119,623 | LOSTIV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD
and East sides of Ferry Pass Elem.
School to include Berg St, Beal St,
and Fairburn St

Kipling Street Construct sidewalk on Kipling St. $263,753 | LOST IV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD
from E. Johnson Ave. to E. Olive
Rd.

Klinger Street Construct sidewalk on Klinger St. $119,047 | LOSTIV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD
from N. Davis Hwy. to Binkley St.

Lawton Street Construct sidewalk on Lawton St. $490,917 | LOSTIV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD
from Pandora Place to E. Johnson
Ave.

Lilac Lane Construct sidewalk on Lilac Ln. $127,502 | LOSTIV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD

-47 -




Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Hilburn Road Construct sidewalk on Hilburn Rd. $187,000 | LOSTIV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD
from E. Olive Rd. to south Hilburn
Rd.
Whitmire Drive Construct sidewalk on Whitmire $195,719 | LOSTIV, TIF | Mid-term. TBD
Dr. from E. Olive Road to the end
of Atwood Dr.
Additional sidewalks to be The County will perform a TBD TBD Long-range. TBD
identified in a Atwood pedestrian study to identify
pedestrian study additional sidewalks needs.
Street Corridor Beautification
Gateway signage and On N. Davis Highway at I-10. $50,000 | TIF, CDBG Mid-term. TBD
beautification
Gateway signage and On N. Davis Highway at E. $50,000 | TIF, CDBG Mid-term. TBD
beautification Johnson Avenue.
Gateway signage and On N. Davis Highway at E. $50,000 | TIF, CDBG Mid-term. TBD
beautification University Parkway.
Gateway signage and On E. Olive Road at Hilburn Rd. $50,000 | TIF, CDBG Mid-term. TBD
beautification
Gateway signage and On E. Olive Road at Caminitti Ln. $50,000 | TIF, CDBG Mid-term. TBD
beautification
Gateway signage and On E. Johnson Ave. at Caminitti $50,000 TIF, CDBG Mid-term. TBD
beautification Ln.
Gateway signage and On E. Johnson Ave. at Lawton St. $25,000 TIF, CDBG Mid-term. TBD
beautification
Street Lights
New streetlights to be Encompasses the Atwood $200,000 | CDBG, SN, | Short-term.
identified by Gulf Power District. TIF 2016-2018
Utility Expense Monthly electric costs to power $30,000 SN, TIF Recurring
the new streetlights. annual expense
Traffic light on E. Olive Rd & The County will perform a study. TBD TBD TBD

Binkley St

Project Description Estimated Costs Funding ‘ Estimated
Sources Timeframe
Sewer
Atwood East Sewer Expansion Sewer project will serve 290 new $3,050,000 | ECUA,LOST, | Long-range. TBD
Area customers. TIF
Whitmire Expansion Area Sewer project will serve 75 new $1,600,000 | ECUA,LOST, | Long-range. TBD
customers. TIF

TABLE 4.1: CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

List of Acronyms:

CDBG Community Development Block Grant
LOST Local Option Sales Tax

LOGT Local option Gas Tax

EPA Environmental Protection Agency

TIF Tax Increment Financing

SHIP State Housing Initiatives Partnership
TBD To Be Determined

FDOT Florida Department of Transportation
SN Safe Neighborhoods

-48 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

CHAPTER 5: IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES

IMPLEMENTATION STRATEGIES

The success of the Atwood Redevelopment Plan will depend on the coordinated efforts of the community’s various
stakeholders and agencies including the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency, neighborhood
associations, business and property owners, and residents. This chapter outlines the implementation functions
and organizational framework that are critical components for successful realization of the planning and design
objectives that have been developed for Atwood.

Implementation Functions
The implementation process can be divided into two major dimensions:

e  Functional areas related to non-financing as well as financing considerations; and
e Responsible groups or agencies charged with addressing the functional areas.

Financial and non-financial considerations are equally important to the effective implementation of the Atwood
Redevelopment Plan. Non-financing considerations deal with developing an organizational framework to define
the roles for various stakeholders involved in the redevelopment effort. Financing mechanisms are perhaps more
easily defined, but not to be focused on until organizational elements are put into effect.

1. Non-Financing Functions
Non-financing functions fall into six general categories:
Site Assembly

The redevelopment of an urban area requires assemblage of multiple parcels of land to maximize the development
potential of constrained properties. Site assembly efforts are vital in pursuing land trades and creating
development partnerships to ensure controlled growth in the neighborhood. In Atwood, the primary opportunity
for economic growth lies in the redevelopment of the substandard parcels located along the area’s commercial
corridors and the development of the proposed primary gateways which are located in areas where site assembly
is advised.

Capital Improvements

Escambia County employs dedicated funding sources such as the Local Option Sales Tax Plan (LOST) and Local
Option Gas Tax (LOGT) to fund capital improvements such as street improvement and upgrading utilities. With the
creation of a redevelopment district for Atwood, tax increment financing will soon be available for use.

Standards and Controls

Design guidelines and development controls for controlling future development assures tenants and developers
that quality future development will occur. In addition, promotion of high-quality design for the community
improves aesthetic character and raises the market value of the neighborhood.

-49-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Physical Development

This concerns the actual construction of new facilities and rehabilitation of older facilities. Physical development is
dependent upon several factors, the most important of which is the ability to effectively rehabilitate existing
facilities and to attract and integrate new development in concert with a comprehensive redevelopment plan.

Development Incentives

To further stimulate private investment, Escambia County can provide development incentives through various
means such as the following: commercial fagade, landscape, signage, and property improvement grants; payment
of impact fees; provision of site specific infrastructure improvements to address any deficiencies; participation in
environmental clean-up of contaminated sites; flexibility in the application of use restrictions and increasing
intensity of site use; flexible parking regulations; grants or low interest loans for life safety improvements; and
joint business support ventures such as district business identification signage or centralized marketing strategies.

Code Enforcement, Neighborhood Clean Ups, and Housing Rehabilitation

CRA will continue to partner with the County’s Environmental Code Enforcement Division and Safe Neighborhood
Program to help reduce blight within the designated areas. Code Enforcement will be an important element of this
redevelopment program to systematically enforce all relevant codes, including those dealing with dilapidated
structures, deteriorated housing, weeds and litter, zoning, signs, abandoned vehicles, etc. The CRA will support
and fund the initiatives of Keep Pensacola Beautiful, neighborhood clean ups, demolition and lot abatements,
monitoring sites, and supporting minimum housing standards codes.

Property Acquisition

The CRA is authorized under F.S. 163, Part 3 to sell, lease, exchange, subdivide, transfer, assign, pledge encumber
by mortgage or deed of trust, or otherwise dispose of any interest in real property. All real property acquired by
the CRA in the Redevelopment District shall be sold or leased for development for fair value in accordance with the
uses permitted in the Plan and as required by the Act. This plan will support the acquisition of vacant land for
housing construction or commercial development; the land may or may not be acquired by the County.

Seasonal Lawn Maintenance

CRA will continue to support the Seasonal Lawn Maintenance Program to remove blight and control litter along
selected corridors and residential roadways by mowing and weed-eating during the high seasonal summer/fall
growth periods.

-50-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2. Financing
Grants

Federal grants have long been a source of funds for development projects, especially for public improvements.
Such sources as Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) and Section 108 grants are available, although the
extent of their uses is diminishing as the volume of the grant decreases. They have the advantage of directly
mitigating development costs and their benefits are predictable and readily understood. The Section 108 loan
program allows municipalities to convert a portion of the funds they will receive through the CDBG program into
loans to use in economic revitalization projects. Local governments often use their current and future CDBG funds
as collateral to guarantee the loans. Other sources of financing include the State Housing Initiatives Partnership
(SHIP) Program, and HOME Program. All of these programs should be leveraged as much as possible.

Tax Increment Funds

Tax increment funds are the increased revenues generated by taxes gained from growth in property values
resulting from successful redevelopment activities in a designated CRA district. Because this is a commonly relied-
upon source of funding for redevelopment, it is addressed in more detail in Appendix C.

Redevelopment Bonds

Redevelopment bonds are issued by the Redevelopment Agency and approved by the County to finance
renovation of specific projects, but are not guaranteed by the general revenues of the County. Anticipated TIF
revenue may be pledged as the collateral for these bonds.

Private Investment

A general rule for successful revitalization is that private investment usually must exceed public funding by a factor
of three to four. Private investment, therefore, is the single most important source of redevelopment funding.
Such funding takes the form of equity investment and conventional real estate loans.

Project Equity Position

When a community redevelopment agency takes an equity position in a project, the agency contributes cash or
land to the project with a return in the form of profit-sharing. This manner of participation can reduce developer
costs.

Leasing

County-owned land, buildings, and equipment can be leased to developers for projects. For the developer, this
reduces the need for capital investment in land, buildings, etc. or debt service on money borrowed to finance the
purchase of the same. The County would then receive lease payments deductible from the developer’s income
tax. Such leases may also include a purchase option.

-51-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Joint Ventures

In real estate syndication ventures, the community redevelopment agency can contribute equity capital to a
project, thereby reducing equity requirements from the developer and/or reducing the amount of debt service.
Through equity syndication, tax subsidy benefits can be passed on to investors in the form of depreciation,
investment tax credits, deferral of taxes and capital gains.

Mortgage Write-Downs

Mortgage write-downs (funded through the Escambia County Neighborhood Enterprise Division) are mechanisms
typically used to encourage residential development and home ownership in the Redevelopment District. Funds
from the agency are offered to qualified potential home buyers (low-moderate income, first time buyers, etc.) to
increase their down payment, thereby decreasing mortgage payments. The agency usually takes an ownership
interest, such as a soft second mortgage, in the dwelling for a predetermined period of time to guarantee against
misuse of the funds.

County support and management of the program’s activities will provide the system to carry out the
recommendations presented in this plan. It is necessary to establish lines of communication between all sectors of
the community to positively effect change in the Atwood neighborhoods. Developers and entrepreneurs will be
key contributors to the success of this project. Strong public-private partnerships will be crucial to the long-term
success of the redevelopment effort.

Faith-based Institutions

Atwood Redevelopment District churches and other faith-based institutions have an important social role in the
successful implementation of the redevelopment plan. Escambia County should work closely with faith-based
organizations to develop community development programs that capitalize on their strengths and outreach
capacity. Participation from faith-based organizations can aid in obtaining community-wide support, addressing
the social service needs such as instituting daycare centers, organizing neighborhood clean-up drives and crime
prevention campaigns, and encouraging youth participation in community development programs such as
mentorship and job training programs to enhance their sense of responsibility.

Private Sector

Private-sector leadership can come from local banks, real estate development entrepreneurs, and property owners
within the community. Local banks may provide financing for private developments and establishing a consortium
to provide a revolving loan pool at below market interest rate. This activity may provide an opportunity for these
financial institutions to meet their goals with respect to the Community Reinvestment Act that is designed to
provide capacity building support and financial assistance for the revitalization of low and moderate income
communities. Additionally, Escambia County should connect with companies dedicated to investing in local
communities. A number of companies actively invest in several communities across Florida with a mission of
enhancing the quality of life for the community. First Union Corporation (Northwest Florida, Lee County) and the
Corporate Partners Program (St. Petersburg) are examples of programs that involve corporate investment in
community development. Similar companies may exist in Escambia County.

-52-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

However, in order to encourage private investment, the right set of conditions must be in place that facilitate
investment and help reduce risk. Creating new business incubators and working closely with interested property
owners to develop and/or redevelop vacant land and structures in accordance with the community’s overall vision
for the Redevelopment District’s future growth is a recommended start. Ensuring that property owners are familiar
with the brownfield development procedures and financial incentives available for brownfield redevelopment
would also help significantly.

Planning and Development Strategies

Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency staff should be responsible for the execution of this
redevelopment plan, and the following are recommendations towards such implementation:

e  Prioritize and develop detailed programs for projects to implement major strategies illustrated in the
Redevelopment Plan including phasing, project financing, land acquisition, land disposition, funding
sources and financing.

e Contact affected property owners to determine their level of interest in participating in proposed
redevelopment activities.

e Solicit the services of a realtor and/or utilize the County’s community development team to devise a land
acquisition strategy for potential purchases of property in the neighborhood.

e Support residential renovation and rehabilitation programs through the use of grant funding such as SHIP,
CDBG, HOME, and TIF.

e Increase awareness of funding resources and program initiatives available to residents interested in
improving their property as means to increasing home ownership and property values.

e Conduct traffic analysis and market feasibility studies to assess the impact of proposed projects in
surrounding areas.

e Initiate discussions with the City of Pensacola to coordinate joint improvement projects planned for the
Atwood Redevelopment District.

Housing Rehabilitation and Commercial Reinvestment Financing

A variety of funding sources will continue to provide an array of mechanisms to assist in rehabilitation and
reinvestment activities to help spur economic development. This will include Community Development Block
Grant funds, State housing assistance funds, and TIF resources. Of particular importance will be a housing
rehabilitation loan pool with low interest rates geared to assist low and moderate-income homeowners in bringing
their houses up to code. The CRA will work with the Neighborhood Enterprise Division to implement these
programs.

-53-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

APPENDIX A: PuBLIC WORKSHOPS

Atwood residents and business owners were invited to participate in a series of public workshop at Ferry Pass
Elementary School located at 8310 North Davis Highway. Dates and themes of the workshops were:

e January 26, 2016 Kick-off meeting, identify issues

e February 16, 2016 Prioritize Atwood’s needs

e March 29, 2016 Review results, learn about the draft plan

e April 26, 2016 Final meeting: Presentation of the draft final plan

CITIZENS ATTENDING THE ENVISION ATWOOD WORKSHOPS. CRA STAFF

Citizens were encouraged to contribute their ideas to the redevelopment of the Atwood Redevelopment District.
The results of their input are summarized below and were integrated into the concept plan development.

At the January 26" and February 16" workshops the following strengths, weaknesses, issues and opportunities
regarding Atwood were identified by the participants:

Strengths Weaknesses
- Citizens like their neighbors, there is community - Abandoned houses, trash, overgrowth
pride - No communication or newsletter
- The community is conveniently located near major - No community center or parks
intersection and services - Needs sidewalks, sewer, street lighting
- Proximity to University of West Florida, Navy - No place for community to meet
Federal, and West Florida Hospital - Housing/rentals in poor condition
- Affordable - Homeless congregating in area
- Family legacy, grew up here - Atwood does not have a post office
-Established Neighborhood watch - Many areas need sewer system
- Feel safe here
Issues Opportunities
- Crime/robbery/drugs - Room for development and infill
- Lack of information for citizens - Add a Community center and park
- Lacking community outreach/resources - Information sharing through community website
- Stray animals in the neighborhood and social media
- Lack of sidewalks & lighting - Add a walking trail
- Need a light on E. Olive Rd & Binkley St - Volunteering to help neighbors
- People loitering on vacant properties - Increase participation in the Neighborhood
- No outdoor recreation facility or walking trail watch/association
-Mosquito control -Sidewalks throughout the District
-Drainage Issues on Forsyth St & Sabra Drive

-54-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

The February 16th Envision Atwood workshop built upon the community attributes identified above. Residents
were tasked with identifying the short and long-term improvements they wanted include in the Atwood
Redevelopment Plan. The following improvements were identified:

e Need a light on E. Olive Rd & Binkley St

e (Clean up overgrown and vacant lots

e More police presence

e Streetlights and sidewalks on all major thoroughfares and side streets
e  Expand sewer system throughout Atwood District

e Street lights throughout the District

e  Add sidewalks throughout the District

e Extend Sidewalks down E. Olive Road

e Design retention ponds to double as public spaces and walking trail
e Develop Community Center on Klinger St

e Develop park at Klinger St and Faith Lane

e Need a Sherriff’s Office substation

o Bike lanes on E Olive Rd and E. Johnson Ave

e Traffic merging issues/congestion on Davis Highway

e Trim trees hanging over in the roads

e Drainage Issues on Forsyth St & Sabra Drive

At the March 29t and April 26" workshops, citizens had the opportunity to review and comment on the draft plan.

-55-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

APPENDIX B: STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

This section addresses certain specific requirements of Chapter 163, Part lll, Florida Statutes, as they relate to the
preparation and adoption of Community Redevelopment Plans in accordance with Sections 163.360 and 163.362.
Provided below is a brief synopsis of each subsection requirement from 163.360 and 163.362, and a brief
description of how the redevelopment plan and adoption process meet those requirements.

163.360 — Community Redevelopment Plans

Section 163.360 (1), Determination of Slum or Blight By Resolution

This section requires that a local governing body determine by resolution that an area has been determined to be a
slum or blighted area before a redevelopment area can be established.

Action: Escambia County previously conducted a blight study which established conditions of blight in Atwood and
designated the area as appropriate for community redevelopment.

Section 163.360 (2)(b), Completeness

This section requires that the Redevelopment Plan be sufficiently complete to address land acquisition, demolition
and removal of structures, redevelopment, improvements and rehabilitation of properties within the
redevelopment area, as well as zoning or planning changes, land uses, maximum densities, and building
requirements.

Action: These issues are addressed in Chapters 2 and 3 of the Redevelopment Plan.
Section 163.360 (2)(c), Development of Affordable Housing

This section requires the redevelopment plan to provide for the development of affordable housing, or to state the
reasons for not addressing affordable housing.

Action: The Redevelopment Plan anticipates the need to maintain and expand affordable housing in Atwood. The
Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency will coordinate with local housing developers to seek
opportunities for the development of additional affordable housing.

Section 163.360 (4), Plan Preparation and Submittal Requirements

The Community Redevelopment Agency may prepare a Community Redevelopment Plan. Prior to considering this
plan, the redevelopment agency will submit the plan to the local planning agency for review and recommendation
as to its conformity with the comprehensive plan.

Action: Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency staff prepared the Atwood Redevelopment Plan.
Section 163.360 (5), (6), (7)(a)(d), Plan Approval

163.360 (5). The Community Redevelopment Agency will submit the Redevelopment Plan, along with written
recommendations, to the governing body and each taxing authority operating within the boundaries of the
redevelopment area.

-56-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Action: The Escambia County Board of County Commissioners, sitting as the Escambia County CRA, will pass a
resolution for the final adoption of the Redevelopment Plan as provided by statute. The Board of County
Commissioners will proceed with a public hearing on the Redevelopment Plan as outlined in Subsection (6), below.

163.360 (6). The governing body shall hold a public hearing on the Community Redevelopment Plan after public
notice by publication in a newspaper having a general circulation in the area of operation of the Atwood
Redevelopment District.

Action: A public hearing on the Atwood Redevelopment Plan will be held at a future date.

163.360 (7). Following the public hearing described above, Escambia County may approve the redevelopment plan
if it finds that:

(a) A feasible method exists for the location of families who will be displaced from the Redevelopment
area in decent, safe, and sanitary dwelling accommodations within their means and without undue hardship to
such families;

Action: To minimize the relocation impact, the CRA will provide supportive services and equitable financial
treatment to any individuals, families and businesses subject to relocation. When feasible, the relocation impact
will be mitigated by assisting relocation within the immediate neighborhood and by seeking opportunities to
relocate within new/redeveloped buildings that will contain residential and commercial space.

(d) The Redevelopment Plan will afford maximum opportunity consistent with the sound needs of the
county or municipality as a whole, for the rehabilitation or redevelopment of the redevelopment area by private
enterprise.

Action: The need for, and role of, private enterprise and investment to ensure the successful rehabilitation or
redevelopment of the Atwood District is described throughout the Plan.

Section 163.360 (8)(a)(b), Land Acquisition

These sections of the statute establish requirements for the acquisition of vacant land for the purpose of
developing residential and non-residential uses. The Redevelopment Plan supports future development of both
residential and non-residential uses at various locations in the redevelopment area as described in Chapter 3. The
Plan identifies strategies that will promote and facilitate public and private sector investment in vacant land
acquisition for these purposes.

Chapter 163.362 - Contents of Community Redevelopment Plans
Every community redevelopment plan shall:
Chapter 163.362(1) Legal Description

Contain a legal description of the boundaries of the redevelopment area and the reasons for establishing such
boundaries shown in the plan.

Action: A legal description of the boundaries of the redevelopment area and the reasons for establishing the
boundaries is contained in Escambia County Board of County Commissioner Resolution R2015-64 and the Finding
of Necessity Report, which are attached and incorporated herein by reference.

-57 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Chapter 163.362(2) Show By Diagram and General Terms:

(a) Approximate amount of open space and the street layout.

Action: This task is achieved in the Redevelopment Plan in Chapter 2.

(b) Limitations on the type, size, height, number and proposed use of buildings.

Action: These are described in general terms in Chapter 2 however, it is expected that the County’s zoning
ordinance and land development regulations will continue to provide the regulatory framework for any building
dimension or style limitations.

(c) The approximate number of dwelling units.

Action: Based on the future land use concepts contained in the Plan, and the expressed desire to increase
residential opportunities in Atwood, it can be reasonably expected that new investment in housing will occur over
time. Future developments of moderate to high density residential projects are encouraged in other areas of the
redevelopment district, as well as new investment in single family infill. Currently, there are approximately 777
houses in Atwood and the residential density expected to increase.

(d) Such property as is intended for use as public parks, recreation areas, streets, public utilities and public
improvements of any nature.

Action: Proposed future uses and activities of this nature are described in Chapter 2.
Chapter 163.362(3) Neighborhood Impact Element

If the redevelopment area contains low or moderate income housing, contain a neighborhood impact element
which describes in detail the impact of the redevelopment upon the residents of the redevelopment area and the
surrounding areas.

The Atwood Redevelopment District contains a significant number of dwelling units which may be considered low
to moderate-income units. The Redevelopment Plan makes provisions for affordable housing through
rehabilitation and new construction. Shortages in affordable housing will be addressed through existing and new
affordable housing development strategies, with an emphasis on developing ways in which affordable housing can
be integrated within market rate housing projects.

The implementation of the Atwood Redevelopment Plan will contribute significantly in improving the quality of life
for Atwood residents. Potential impacts are summarized below for each category required by statute: relocation,
traffic circulation, environmental quality, availability of community facilities and services, effect on school
population, and other matters affecting the physical and social quality of the neighborhood.

Relocation

The Redevelopment Plan as proposed supports the preservation of existing residential areas and does not require
the relocation of any of the low or moderate income residents of the redevelopment area. To minimize the
relocation impact, the Community Redevelopment Agency will provide support services and equitable financial
treatment to any individuals, families and businesses subject to relocation. When feasible, the relocation impact
will be mitigated by assisting relocation within the immediate neighborhood and by seeking opportunities to
relocate within new/ redeveloped buildings that will contain residential and commercial space.

-58 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Traffic Circulation

The implementation of the Redevelopment Plan recommendations related to streetscape improvements and
traffic circulation are anticipated to positively impact the Atwood Redevelopment District. The primary corridor
improvements, a component of the Redevelopment Plan, envisions enhancing identified roadways through
streetscape improvements that encourage pedestrian mobility and improve vehicular circulation within the area.

Environmental Quality

Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency will work closely with developers to ensure anticipated new
development does not negatively affect the drainage capacity of the area, and, when feasible, support on-site
provision of stormwater retention facilities for new development. The development of vacant and/or
underutilized sites within Atwood may result in minor increases in the amount of stormwater runoff which may
contain pollutants. The Redevelopment Plan recommends pursuing environmental remediation in close
cooperation with property owners to ensure that the pollutants are handled adequately prior to new development
on identified brownfield sites.

The county will closely monitor the capacity of the existing and planned stormwater infrastructure to ensure
sufficient capacity exists, and there are no negative impacts from development. In terms of vegetation and air
quality, proposed streetscape improvements are anticipated to add vegetation to Atwood and preserve existing
mature tree canopies.

No negative impact on the existing sanitary sewer is expected from implementation of the Redevelopment Plan,
and expansion of said sewer may be required to spur redevelopment. If future deficiencies are projected, the
county and the Redevelopment Agency will ensure that adequate capacity is available at the time of development.

Community Facilities and Services

The Redevelopment Plan presents strategies to create a number of town-center-styled gateway areas that will
accommodate a diverse range of community and cultural facilities serving the needs of the local population.
Currently there are no open space/recreation facilities in the Atwood District however locations have been
identified for a proposed community center and park. The Plan recognizes the importance of these facilities and
supports development of these facilities.

Effect on School Population

The Redevelopment Plan does not anticipate significantly affecting Atwood’s school population. Any increase in
school population is expected to be absorbed by the existing schools in the area. The Redevelopment Plan
recommends streetscape improvements and sidewalks connecting the area schools to improve pedestrian safety
and walkability for students and parents who walk to school. The County and the Redevelopment Agency will
continue to work closely with Escambia County School Board to ensure the board’s plans for area schools are
consistent with the Redevelopment Plan.

Physical and Social Quality

The Redevelopment Plan’s recommendations to continue with improvements to the existing streetscape
environment, to redevelop vacant land and former industrial sites, to establish urban design and architectural
standards for new development, and to continue code enforcement will have a positive impact on Atwood’s
physical and visual character.

-59-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Implementation of the Redevelopment Plan will also improve community access to the social service network
currently available to local residents. Job training, apprenticeship opportunities, and mentorship programs created
through commercial and industrial redevelopment and establishment of a community center will support the
development of human capital, increase employment opportunities and serve as a tool to improve the household
income.

Chapter 163.362(5) (6) Safeguards and Retention of Control

Contain adequate safeguards that the work of redevelopment will be carried out pursuant to the plan. Provide for
the retention of controls and establishment of any restrictions or covenants running with land sold or leased for
private use.

Action: The following safeguards and procedures will help ensure redevelopment efforts in the redevelopment
district are carried out pursuant to the redevelopment plan:

The Atwood Redevelopment Plan is the guiding document for future development and redevelopment in and for
the Atwood Redevelopment District. In order to assure that redevelopment will take place in conformance with
the projects, goals and policies expressed in this Plan, the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency
will utilize the regulatory devices, instruments and systems used by Escambia County to permit development and
redevelopment within its jurisdiction. These include but are not limited to the Comprehensive Plan, the Land
Development Code, the Zoning Code, adopted design guidelines, performance standards and County-authorized
development review, permitting and approval processes. Per Florida Statute, Escambia County retains the vested
authority and responsibility for:

e The power to grant final approval to Redevelopment Plans and modifications.

e  The power to authorize issuance of revenue bonds as set forth in Section 163.385.

e The power to approve the acquisition, demolition, removal or disposal of property as provided in Section
163.370(3), and the power to assume the responsibility to bear loss as provided in Section 163.370(3).

In accordance with Section 163.356(3)(c), by March 31 of each year the Redevelopment Agency shall file an Annual
Report with Escambia County detailing the Agency’s activities for the preceding fiscal year. The report shall include
a complete financial statement describing assets, liabilities, income and operating expenses. At the time of filing,
the Agency shall publish in a newspaper of general circulation a notice that the report has been filed with the
County and is available for inspection during business hours in the office of the County Clerk and the Escambia
County Community Redevelopment Agency.

The Community Redevelopment Agency shall maintain adequate records to provide for an annual audit, which
shall be conducted by an independent auditor and will be included as part of the Escambia County Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for the preceding fiscal year. A copy of the Agency audit, as described in the CAFR will be
forwarded to each taxing authority.

The Agency shall provide adequate safeguards to ensure that all leases, deeds, contracts, agreements, and
declarations of restrictions relative to any real property conveyed shall contain restrictions and/or covenants to
run with the land and its uses, or other provisions necessary to carry out the goals and objectives of the
redevelopment plan.

The Redevelopment Plan may be modified, changed, or amended at any time by the Escambia County Community
Redevelopment Agency provided that; if modified, changed, or amended after the lease or sale of property by the

-60 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Agency, the modification must be consented to by the developer or redevelopers of such property or his
successors or their successors in interest affected by the proposed modification. Where the proposed
modification will substantially change the plan as previously approved by the governing body, the County
Commission will similarly approve the modification. This means that if a developer acquired title, lease rights, or
other form of development agreement, from the Agency to a piece of property within the redevelopment area
with the intention of developing it in conformance with the redevelopment plan, any amendment that which
might substantially affect his/her ability to proceed with that development would require his/her consent.

When considering modifications, changes, or amendments in the redevelopment plan, the Agency will take into
consideration the recommendations of interested area property owners, residents, and business operators.
Proposed minor changes in the Plan will be communicated by the agency responsible to the affected property
owner(s).

Chapter 163.362(7) Assurance of Replacement Housing for Displaced Persons

Provide assurances that there will be replacement housing for the relocation of persons temporarily or
permanently displaced from housing facilities within the community redevelopment area.

Action: As previously stated, to minimize the relocation impact, the Agency will provide supportive services and
equitable financial treatment to any individuals, families and businesses subject to relocation. When feasible, the
relocation impact will be mitigated by assisting relocation within the immediate neighborhood and by seeking
opportunities to relocate within new/redeveloped buildings that will contain residential and commercial space.

Chapter 163.362(8) Element of Residential Use

Provide an element of residential use in the redevelopment area if such use exists in the area prior to the adoption
of the plan or if the plan is intended to remedy a shortage of housing affordable to residents of low to moderate
income, including the elderly.

Action: There are residential uses of various types and character, including, single-family, multi-family, rental units,
owner-occupied units, and detached units in existence in the redevelopment area at the time of this writing. The
efforts undertaken by the Agency, as described in this Redevelopment Plan, are intended to retain and enhance a
high quality of residential use, particularly with regard to developing and maintaining sustainable neighborhoods.
Redevelopment program activities will strive to cultivate the positive neighborhood characteristics cited by the
community during public workshops and reduce or eliminate any negative characteristics.

The establishment of a revitalized and expanded residential base in Atwood is essential to achieve a successful
economic redevelopment program. Residents living within the redevelopment district will comprise components
of the work force and the market, which will generate economic activity.

Chapter 163.362(9) Statement of Projected Costs

Contain a detailed statement of the projected costs of development, including the amount to be expended on
publicly funded capital projects in the community redevelopment area and any indebtedness of the community
redevelopment agency or the municipality proposed to be incurred for such redevelopment if such indebtedness is
to be repaid with increment funds.

Action: Project costs and funding sources are described in Chapter 4 of the Redevelopment Plan.

-61-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

Chapter 163.362(10) Duration of Plan
Provide a time certain for completing all redevelopment financed by increment revenues.

Action: The Atwood Redevelopment Plan shall remain in effect and serve as a guide for future redevelopment
activities in the redevelopment area through 2046.

-62-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

APPENDIX C: TAX INCREMENT FINANCING

Tax increment financing (TIF) is a tool that uses increased revenues generated by taxes gained from growth in
property values resulting from successful redevelopment activities. Because it is a frequently relied-upon tool for
project financing, it is explored more fully here. This section presents a brief history of tax increment financing,
types of expenses allowed, and TIF revenue projections that the Atwood Redevelopment District may generate in
the next forty years.

History of Tax Increment Financing

TIF was originally developed over 50 years ago as a method to finance public improvements in distressed areas
where redevelopment would not otherwise occur. TIF is separate from grants or government funds, and given
reductions in federal funds available for local projects in recent years TIF has increasingly developed into a primary
means to finance local redevelopment.

State law controls tax increment financing. Because of this control, tax increment financing takes on a number of
different techniques and appearances throughout the country. In Florida, tax increment financing is authorized in
the Community Redevelopment Act of 1969, which is codified as Part Ill, Chapter 163 of the Florida Statutes. This
act, as amended in 1977, provides for a combination of public and private redevelopment efforts and authorizes
the use of tax increment financing. Under the Statutes, municipalities must go through a number of steps to
establish a redevelopment area and implement a tax increment financing district for that area.

Upon approval of the governing body, a trust fund for each community redevelopment area may be established.
The revenues for the trust fund are obtained by allocating any increases in taxable assessed value to the area. The
current assessed value of the district is set as the base and any increases (the tax increment revenues) are
available for improvements to the area. The property tax paid on the base assessed value continues to be
distributed to the local governments. The tax collector collects the entire property tax and subtracts the tax on the
base value, which is available for general government purposes. Of the remaining tax increment revenues, 75
percent are deposited to the trust fund. The remaining 25 percent of the incremental growth is kept by the local
government as a collection fee.

Type of Expenses Allowed

Funds from the redevelopment trust fund may be expended for undertakings of the community redevelopment
agency which are directly related to financing or refinancing of redevelopment in the redevelopment area
pursuant to an approved community redevelopment plan for the following purposes, including, but not limited to:

e Establishment and operations: The implementation and administrative expenses of the community
redevelopment agency.

e Planning and analysis: Development of necessary engineering, architectural, and financial plans.

e Financing: Issuance and repayment of debt for proposed capital improvements contained in the
community redevelopment plan.

e Acquisition: The acquisition of real property.

e  Preparation: Tasks related to site preparation, including the relocation of existing residents.

-63-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

According to F.S. 163.370(2), TIF funds may not be used for the following purposes:

e To construct or expand administration buildings for public bodies or police and fire buildings unless each
taxing authority involved agrees,

e Any publicly-owned capital improvements which are not an integral part of the redevelopment if the
improvements are normally financed by user fees, and if the improvements would have other-wise been
made without the Redevelopment Agency within three years, or

e General government operating expenses unrelated to the Redevelopment Agency.

In addition, tax increment funds cannot be spent on capital projects contained in the local government’s Capital
Improvement Plan for the preceding three years.

-64 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

APPENDIX D: RESOLUTION R2015-64

2015-000522 BCC

Coun
Escambla ty May 21, 2015 Page 1

Clerk’s Original

le&.l.mﬁ_-s-'ﬂl"“ Ay RESOLUTION R2015-Le4

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, PURSUANT TO PART Illl, CHAPTER 163,
FLORIDA STATUTES, RELATING TO COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT:
FINDING THAT THERE IS A BLIGHTED AREA WITHIN ESCAMBIA COUNTY,
FLORIDA, AND A SHORTAGE OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING FOR LOW AND
MODERATE INCOME HOUSEHOLDS, SPECIFICALLY WITHIN THE ATWOOD
COMMUNITY; FINDING THAT REHABILITATION CONSERVATION,
REDEVELOPMENT, OR A COMBINATION OF THESE IN THE ATWOOD
COMMUNITY IS NECESSARY IN THE INTEREST OF THE PUBLIC HEALTH,
SAFETY, MORALS, AND WELFARE OF THE RESIDENTS OF ESCAMBIA
COUNTY; FINDING THAT THERE IS A NEED TO DESIGNATE ATWOOD AS A
REDEVELOPMENT AREA; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA THAT:

Section 1. Authority. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of Part il
Chapter 183, Florida Statutes, known as the “Community Redevelopment Act of 1969."

Section 2. Definitions. The definitions of the terms as provided in §163.340, Florida

[

Statutes, are hereby adopted by reference whenever used or referred to in the Resolution. In
addition, the term, “Proposed Atwood Redevelopment Area” when used in this Resolution means
the area within the boundaries of Escambia County, Florida, as outlined in the map and legal
description attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.
Section 3.  Findings and Determinations. The Board of County Commissioners of
Escambia County, Florida finds and determines as follows:
a) The Board of County Commissioners finds that the area referred to as
the “Proposed Atwood Redevelopment Area” is a slum or blighted area which
substantially impairs the sound growth of the County, and is a threat to the public

Date: 5/2'?/:20/5' Verified By

health, safety, morals, and welfare of the residents of the County, and that the
existence of blight further creates an economic and social liability by hindering
development, discouraging private investment, reducing employment opportunities,
retarding the construction and improvement of housing accommodations, causing an
excessive proportion of expenditures for crime prevention and other forms of public
services, and depressing the tax base.

b) The Board of County Commissioners finds that a combination of
rehabilitation, conservation and redevelopment of the area identified as the
Proposed Atwood Redevelopment Area is necessary in the interest of the public
health, safety, morals, and welfare of the residents if the County in order to eliminate,

remedy and prevent conditions of slum and blight.

-65-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC
May 21, 2015 Page 2

c) The Board of County Commissioners finds and determines that there exists a
need for the Community Redevelopment Agency created pursuant to Part |, Article
VI, Section 78.151 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, to carry out
redevelopment purposes pursuant to Part lll, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes in the
Proposed Atwood Redevelopment Area.

d) The Board of County Commissioners finds and determines that the area
described in Exhibit A and entitled Proposed Atwood Redevelopment Area is
appropriate for redevelopment projects and is hereby designated a Community
Redevelopment Area.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption

by the Board of County Commissioners.

Adopted this_ (<!~ dayof "/’%mg- , 2015.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

-
i

Approved as to form and legal
sufficiency. fl .

By/Title: / BY:
Date: 7 Steven Barry, Ghairman
Attest. Date Executed
PAM CHILDERS s|2el2015
Clerkfof the Circuit Court

B

el
<
-
9]
)

P

SEo
s

F
)
1)

Ll »

LT

\RD 0

% N SF
", a A
AN

2

-66 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC
May 21, 2015 Page 3

N1 LIS

Exhibit A

DESERT 57

15 oA

WILSON REAvES Ly

LR a0 T

BROOKLYN 5T

PANDERA £

T N aHE
[Eatmm
T WVALNG |

T Afwrang
':_ 18 NOS TN

ARBLUAN

KLINGER 57
[

ST
|

FRAZIER 571

 NORTHCAOSS LN

ATWDOD DR

m©
@

—
<
=

[}

&=

Q.
9

[

>

@D
e

Y 0 e
m |
©

(o]

O

2

<

O

@

wn

O

Q.

o

et

o

)

ATWOOD DR

INTERSTATE 110 nu:J [

LGS g

B0 i o ———

B Vi

E E fr o
e e N )
ERwm by
BLACKWELL LN




Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC
May 21, 2015 Page 4

EXHIBIT "A”
Description
Atwood Community Redevelopment Area (CRA)
April 13, 2015

This description is intended solely for the purpose of identifying the Atwood Community
Redevelopment Area referenced in this ordinance and is not intended to be used when
conveying or otherwise defining interests in real property.

Begin at the intersection of the East right-of-way line of the North Hilburn Road (R/W varies) and
the South right-of-way line of Olive Road (R/W varies); thence run Easterly along said South
right-of-way line of Olive Road (R/W varies) to the intersection of the South right-of-way line of
Olive Road (R/W varies) and the West right-of-way line of North Davis Highway (R/W varies);
thence run Easterly to the intersection of the South right-of-way line of Olive Road (R/W varies)
and the East right-of-way line North Davis Highway (R/W varies); thence run Northeasterly
along said East right-of-way line of North Davis Highway (R/W varies) to the intersection of said
East right-of-way line of North Davis Highway (R/W varies) and the South right-of-way line of
East Johnson Avenue (R/W varies); thence Easterly along said South right-of-way line of East
Johnson Avenue (R/W varies) to the intersection of the South right-of-way line of East Johnson
Avenue (R/W varies) and the West right-of-way line of Caminitti Lane (R/W varies); thence
South along said West right-of-way line of Caminitti Lane (R/W varies) to the North right-of-way
line of East Olive Road (70" R/W); thence South to the Northwest corner of that parcel of land
recorded in Official Record Book 272 at page 593 of the public records of Escambia County,
Florida; thence South along the West line of said parcel to the Northwest corner of Charter Oaks
Unit No. 5 as recorded in Plat Book 15 at pages 30 and 30A of the public records of Escambia
County, Florida; thence continue South along the West line of said Oaks Unit No. 5 to the North
right-of-way line of Interstate 10 (300° R/W); thence Westerly, Northerly and Westerly along said
North right-of-way line of Interstate 10 and Interstate 10 Ramp to the East right-of-way line of
North Davis Highway (R/W varies);thence continue West to the West right-of-way line North
Davis Highway (R/W varies); thence South along said West right-of-line of North Davis Highway
(R/W varies) to the North right-of-way line of Interstate 10 (R/W varies); thence West and
Northwesterly along said North right-of-way line of Interstate 10 (R/W varies) to the Northwest
corner of that parcel of land recorded in Official Record Book 3598 at page 855 of the public
records of Escambia County, Florida; thence East along the North line of said parcel to the
intersection of said North line and the extension of the aforementioned East right-of-way line of
North Hilburn Road (R/W varies); thence North along said East right-of-way line to the Point of
Beginning.

-68 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC
May 21, 2015 Page 5

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Escambia County, Florida

Al-8184 10.
BCC Regular Meeting

Meeting Date: 05/21/2015

Issue: Atwood Redevelopment Area

From: Keith Wilkins, Department Director

Organization: Community & Environment

i:
lCAO Approwa:' bt & it
RECOMMENDATION:

5:31 p.m. Public Hearing for consideration of adopting a Resolution creating the Atwood
Redevelopment Area.

Recommendation: That the Board adopt a Resolution of Escambia County, Florida,
relating to Community Redevelopment; finding that there is a blighted area within
Escambia County, Florida, and a shortage of affordable housing for low and moderate
income households, specifically within the Atwood community; finding that rehabilitation
conservation, redevelopment, or a combination of these in the Atwood community is
necessary in the interest of the public health, safety, morals, and welfare of the residents
of Escambia County; finding that there is a need to designate Atwood as a
redevelopment area; and providing for an effective date.

BACKGROUND:

The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA), a division of Community and
Environment Department, was directed to conduct the necessary research and analysis
to support findings that would determine whether areas located within the Atwood
community would meet the statutory criteria to be designated as a redevelopment area.
The CRA has completed the "Findings of Necessity", and a copy is attached. A draft
copy of the Resolution has been prepared for consideration and adoption. A copy of the
map for the proposed area is attached.

On April 23, 2015, at 8:45 a.m., a CRA meeting was convened to recommend to the
Board to schedule and advertise a Public Hearing on Thursday, May 21, 2015, at 5:31
p.m.

On May 21, 2015, at 8:45 a.m., a CRA Meeting was convened to recommend to the
Board to conduct a Public Hearing to adopt a Resolution designating Atwood Community
as a redevelopment area.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:

5:31 p.m. P.H.

-69 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC
May 21, 2015 Page 6

There is no budgetary impact.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:

Resolution has been reviewed and signed off as to form and legal sufficiency by
Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney.

PERSONNEL:
There is no additional personnel needed to carry out this process.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:

Conduct a Public Hearing to adopt a Resolution for the proposed redevelopment area
designation is in compliance with the Board guidelines and procedures.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:

The CRA staff will coordinate the process for the implementation of this program. CRA
will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments

Resolution-Atwood-May2015

—

5:31 p.m. P.H.

-70-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC
May 21, 2015 Page 7

RESOLUTION R2015-___

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, PURSUANT TO PART lll, CHAPTER 163,
FLORIDA STATUTES, RELATING TO COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT:
FINDING THAT THERE IS A BLIGHTED AREA WITHIN ESCAMBIA COUNTY,
FLORIDA, AND A SHORTAGE OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING FOR LOW AND
MODERATE INCOME HOUSEHOLDS, SPECIFICALLY WITHIN THE ATWOOD
COMMUNITY; FINDING THAT REHABILITATION CONSERVATION,
REDEVELOPMENT, OR A COMBINATION OF THESE IN THE ATWOOD
COMMUNITY IS NECESSARY IN THE INTEREST OF THE PUBLIC HEALTH,
SAFETY, MORALS, AND WELFARE OF THE RESIDENTS OF ESCAMBIA
COUNTY; FINDING THAT THERE IS A NEED TO DESIGNATE ATWOOD AS A
REDEVELOPMENT AREA; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA THAT:

Section 1.  Authority. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of Part Ili,
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, known as the “Community Redevelopment Act of 1968.”

Section 2. Definitions. The definitions of the terms as provided in §163.340, Florida
Statutes, are hereby adopted by reference whenever used or referred to in the Resolution. In
addition, the term, “Proposed Atwood Redevelopment Area” when used in this Resolution means
the area within the boundaries of Escambia County, Florida, as outlined in the map and legal
description attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

Section 3.  Findings and Determinations. The Board of County Commissioners of
Escambia County, Florida finds and determines as follows:

a) The Board of County Commissioners finds that the area referred to as

the “Proposed Atwood Redevelopment Area” is a slum or blighted area which
substantially impairs the sound growth of the County, and is a threat to the public
health, safety, morals, and welfare of the residents of the County, and that the
existence of blight further creates an economic and social liability by hindering
development, discouraging private investment, reducing employment opportunities,
retarding the construction and improvement of housing accommodations, causing an
excessive proportion of expenditures for crime prevention and other forms of public
services, and depressing the tax base.

b) The Board of County Commissioners finds that a combination of
rehabilitation, conservation and redevelopment of the area identified as the
Proposed Atwood Redevelopment Area is necessary in the interest of the public
health, safety, morals, and welfare of the residents if the County in order to eliminate,
remedy and prevent conditions of slum and blight.

5:31 p.m. P.H.

-71-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC
May 21, 2015 Page 8

c) The Board of County Commissioners finds and determines that there exists a
need for the Community Redevelopment Agency created pursuant to Part |, Article
VI, Section 78.151 of the Escambia County Code of Crdinances, to carry out
redevelopment purposes pursuant to Part Ill, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes in the
Proposed Atwood Redevelopment Area.
d) The Board of County Commissioners finds and determines that the area
described in Exhibit A and entitied Proposaed Atwood Redevelopment Area is
appropriate for redevelopment projects and is hereby designated a Community
Redevelopment Area.

Sectiond.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effectimmediately upon adoption

oy the Board of County Commissioners.

Adopted this day of ., 2015.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Approved as to form and legal

sufiiciency.
ByiTille _ i BY:
i 77 Steven Barry, Chairman
Attest:
PAM CHILDERS
Clerk of the Circuit Court
By:
Deputy Clerk
(SEAL)

5:31 p.m P.H

-72-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC

May 21, 2015 Page 9

e i

MW NLEoNGeo e wey - T
B PG b sy FREERE LOA T g e BRI Santa Busnenlad .
12 S b s Slogragits 13 posiwdorhing S PR BE S It _

Vst st A Gt W SR S W WD AR Ee sy

do..«M /
i

18 183san

nqﬂ..l.t :

\m
s (S

——

WO LEEHIANG

§ =

—— |

15 3MZViHva

n T -,
< THG e

BN,

P

T u nada v

—_— e
H GOGMAINGH

T OMatE

— g

e

LA ET=EET
T

B

MV AREAY

N

(T TREECTCEIN)

ﬂc BE Ty

T HYDINA Ny

7 HaIiux4

THE CONDITION OF THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT IS REFLECTED IN THE IMAGE AND IS NOT THE

FAULT OF THE MICROFILMING PROCESS

ealy Juswdojanapay poom)y pasodold

-73-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC
May 21, 2015 Page 10

EXHIBIT “A"
Description
Atwood Community Redevelopment Area (CRA)
April 13, 2015

This description is intended solely for the purpose of identifying the Atwood Community
Redevelopment Area referenced in this ordinance and is not intended to be used when
conveying or otherwise defining interests in real property.

Begin at the intersection of the East right-of-way line of the Nerth Hilburn Road (R/W varies) and
the South right-of-way line of Olive Road (R/W varies); thence run Easterly along said South
right-of-way line of Olive Road (R/W varies) fo the intersection of the South right-of-way line of
Olive Road (R/W varies) and the West right-of-way line of North Davis Highway (R/W varies);
thence run Easterly to the intersection of the South right-of-way line of Olive Road (R/W varies)
and the East right-of-way line North Davis Highway (R/W varies); thence run Northeasterly
along said East right-of-way line of North Davis Highway (R/W varies) to the intersection of said
East right-of-way line of North Davis Highway (R/W varies) and the South right-of-way line of
East Johnson Avenue (R/W varies); thence Easterly along said South right-of-way line of East
Johnson Avenue (R/W varies) to the intersection of the South right-of-way line of East Johnson
Avenue (R/W varies) and the West right-of-way line of Caminitti Lane (R/W varies); thence
South along said West right-of-way line of Caminitti Lane (R/W varies) to the North right-of-way
line of East Olive Road (70' R/W); thence South to the Northwest comer of that parcel of land
recorded in Official Record Book 272 at page 593 of the public records of Escambia County,
Florida; thence South along the West line of said parcel to the Northwest corner of Charter Oaks
Unit No. 5 as recorded in Plat Book 15 at pages 30 and 30A of the public records of Escambia
County, Florida; thence continue Scuth along the West line of said Oaks Unit No. 5 to the North
right-of-way line of Interstate 10 (300’ R/W); thence Westerly, Northerly and Westerly along said
North right-of-way line of Interstate 10 and Interstate 10 Ramp to the East right-of-way line of
North Davis Highway (R/W varies);thence continue West to the West right-of-way line North
Davis Highway (R/W varies); thence South along said West right-of-line of North Davis Highway
(R/W varies) to the North right-of-way line of Interstate 10 (R/W varies); thence West and
Northwesterly along said North right-of-way line of (nterstate 10 (R/W varies) to the Northwest
corner of that parcel of land recorded in Official Record Book 3598 at page 855 of the public
records of Escambia County, Florida; thence East along the North line of said parcel to the
intersection of said North line and the extension of the aforementioned East right-of-way line of
North Hilburn Road (R/W varies); thence North along said East right-of-way line to the Point of
Beginning.

5:31 p.m P.H

-74 -



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC
May 21, 2015 Page 11

Findings of Necessity
Proposed Atwood Redevelopment Area

Introduction

As directed by the Board of County Commissioners and Committee of the Whole,
Escambia County Community & Environment Department/Community Redevelopment
Agency prepared a Findings of Necessity report to support the proposed creation of an
Atwood Redevelopment Area. A map depicting the proposed redevelopment area and
boundary description for the proposed area are presented as Exhibit A. Data obtained
from UWF Haas Center for Business Research using 2010 U.S. Bureau of Census
Population and Housing with 2014 forecasts and field surveys were used to formulate
these findings. The following data and analysis support the legislative finding that
conditions in the proposed redevelopment area meet the criteria of blight as described
in Florida Statute 163.340(8) (a) and (b).

Findings

A “blighted area” is an area experiencing economic distress, endangerment to life or
property due to the presence of a substantial number of deteriorated structures. The
proposed area exhibits conditions of blight as defined in Florida Statute to include the
following:

Finding 1: Predominance of defective or inadequate street layout, parking facilities.
roadways, bridges, or public transportation facilities:

The proposed redevelopment area lacks public
infrastructure to inciude adequate sireet layout, paved
roads, stormwater management systems, and sanitary
sewer service. While some of the area is served by
sanitary sewer, cther areas in the proposed are not served
by a public sewer system which hinders reinvestment and
redevelopment opportunities. The faulty lot layouts, lack of fasd ;
accessibility or usefulness of property, and marginal sewer service in the proposed
redevelopment area supports the need for redevelopment.

Finding 2: Deterioration of site or other improvements:

Based upon windshield surveys conducted, there is a predominance of deteriorated or
dilapidated housing in the proposed area. One of the mare apparent elements of blight
is the deterioration of buildings. A significant number of deteriorating or dilapidated
buildings in an area are an indication of a lack of private investment in maintaining the

5:31 p.m P.H

-75-



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC
May 21, 2015 Page 12

integrity and value of existing development or in redevelopment. Single family residents
were scored based upon a point system
ranging from 1, Excellent Condition to 5,
Dilapidated  Condition. The housing
conditions windshield survey results found
99% of the single family houses in the area
fall in the categories of fair, poor, or
dilapidated condition which means they
require some form of repair or rehabilitation,
show signs of structural damage, or need of
demolition. These houses show need for
repair or rehabilitation as indicated by curling
shingles and lack of energy related
improvements. Many of the homes were
constructed prior to 1976. The age and
conditions of the structures in the proposed
area, indicates the houses are in need of
updates, including energy related
improvements.

Economic disuse can be defined in many ways
based on perspective. From the private
sector, economic disuse is defined through the
vacancy of land and buildings and through the
highest and best land use determined by
market conditions. Based on the windshield
survey, approximately 25% of the commercial parcels that have redevelopment
potential are vacant land and/or building. Which means the property values and the tax
base can be benchmarks for determining economic disuse from the public perspective.

Summary

Based upon the findings presented, the proposed redevelopment area exhibits
conditions of blight as defined by Florida Statutes. The condition of numerous
structures within its boundaries, lack of public infrastructure, and the socio-economic
characteristics of the residents all contribute to this recommendation. The proposed
area would benefit from redevelopment programs and projects. There are nearly 25%
of the commercial parcels that have redevelopment potential with vacant land or
building. A combination of rehabilitation, conservation, and redevelopment of the
proposed area will support the elimination, prevention, and remedy of the conditions of

5:31 p.m. P.H

-76 -



slum and blight.

the area.

Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC
May 21, 2015 Page 13

The creation of a redevelopment area will serve to improve the
condition of this blighted area and help bring much needed economic development to

-77 -

5:31 p.m P.H



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

2015-000522 BCC
May 21, 2015 Page 14

i
= &
A F ,
vy iy
ANY L30T e
. ) 20 0CCMmia I
¥ bvis 3007 : -
5
...... % °
Jua sz =
AVM Ty w2
[ k1
& v =
@ z @ 2
= o -
3 5 H
Fi 2
:
< ; .
g e 5 el
g WYLk 3 £ Ty H
§ L
2 2 -
£ o <
H = <E|  uCuEnn
- 2.
= T ]
E F3 2
a 45
E g
g
=} o
E - - T
lo 48 gy
; ' By
K= e
M13565103 B -

40 WV IULE TR

LANSING GH

s HBim

E JOHNSON avg

Iy 2wy

Atwood Redevelopment Area: Housing Conditions

- 5 TEdwnd
S Vg«
= -
= “
= z
z »
£ E
&
15
AN ALISWRAN
.2 2
- gy
£ n g
; g g
& c
D Whay s n}g E’ =
w [+ -1
EN o T ¥ z
o = . z
*, = B H
— 3
& g
§ ot
E 3
5
&
= HD oy e
5 31 u;_m H

THE CONDITION OF THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT IS REFLECTED IN THE IMAGE AND IS NOT THE
FAULT OF THE MICROFILMING PROCESS



Atwood Redevelopment Plan 2016

[this page left intentionally blank]

-79-



/

—J

ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 2018 PROPOSED EXPANSION (EXHIBIT B)
|

V4 14
Hl / GLEN EDEN
~
2
m

JOHNSON | A

\

@)
S
)
L

UNIVERSITY

A oy,

)
4
bs
CARL'DEAN

R

=

ERNESTINE
C,'_*LPPrE%AL

g

LITTLE]

(NR

/

)

N

NORTHCROSS @
g g BROOKLYN

'DESERT OAK

§
mm

|

INTERSTATE\110
= —_ “PANDORA
INTERSTATE 10 —— 8 — |

o PLANTATION :
&
Y.
KANTATION / I I |
N —— STREETS

WILSON REAVES

p

L1
1A

L ——

_\ S
NHILBURN &
l N
VS‘\B\A Coo
é’@é W%%E 0 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 994 PROPOSED ATWOOD EXPANSION
< . L E— \liles
(ORI I ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT AREA




BoARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Escambia County, Florida

Technical/Public Service 3.
Community Redevelopment Agency
Meeting Date: 08/16/2018

Issue: Schedule and Advertise of a Public Hearing to Amend the Ordinance
relating to the Atwood Redevelopment Trust Fund

From: Tonya Gant, Director

Organization: Neighborhood & Human Svcs

CAO Approval:

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommendation Concerning to Schedule and Advertise of a Public Hearing to amend an
Ordinance relating to the Atwood Redevelopment Trust Fund - Tonya Gant. Neighborhood &
Human Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action to schedule and advertise of a Public Hearing
for Thursday, September 20, 2018 at 5:32 p.m., for consideration to amend an
Ordinance of Escambia County, Florida, amending Chapter 46, Article VI, Section
46-292(b) of the Escambia Code of Ordinances relating to the Atwood Redevelopment
Trust Fund; providing for amended legislative findings to expand the boundaries of the
area consistent with R2018-44; providing for severability; providing for inclusion in the
code; and providing for an effective date.

BACKGROUND:

On August 16, 2018, at 9:00 a.m., a CRA meeting was convened to recommend to the
Board to schedule and advertise a Public Hearing for Thursday, September 20, 2018, at
5:32 p.m., for consideration to amend an Ordinance relating to the Atwood
Redevelopment Trust Fund. A map of the area is attached.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:

Funding for the proper advertisement will be provided through the CRA Atwood TIF,
Fund 151, Cost Center 370120.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:

Kristan Hual, Assistant County Attorney, is currently reviewing the draft Ordinance as to
form and legal sufficiency.

PERSONNEL.:




No additional personnel is necessary.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:

Schedule a Public Hearing for the amended Ordinance is in compliance with the Board
guidelines and procedures.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:

Upon Board adoption of the Ordinance, CRA staff, in coordination with other County
Departments, Chris Jones Property Appraisers, and Atwood neighborhood group, will
process the necessary documents for the Atwood Trust Fund which will include the
expanded area.

Attachments
Atwood ORD_August2018




ORDINANCE NUMBER 2018-_____

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER
46, ARTICLE VI, SECTION 46-292(b) OF THE ESCAMBIA CODE OF
ORDINANCES RELATING TO THE ATWOOD REDEVELOPMENT TRUST
FUND; PROVIDING FOR AMENDED LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS TO EXPAND
THE BOUNDARIES OF THE AREA CONSISTENT WITH RESOLUTION R2018-
44; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE
CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, on March 7, 1995, the Board of County Commissioners adopted a Resolution
in which the Board determined there existed the need for a Community Redevelopment Agency
in Escambia County to carry out the community redevelopment purposes set out in Part lil of
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, “The Community Redevelopment Act of 1969”; and

WHEREAS, on March 7, 1995, the Board of County Commissioners adopted Ordinance
Number 96-06, which declared its membership to comprise the Community Redevelopment
Agency of Escambia County and vested in such agency all rights, powers, duties, privileges and
immunities authorized by law; and

WHEREAS, on May 21, 2015, the Board of County Commissioners adopted the Atwood
Resolution of Findings (R2015-64) of slum and blight and a shortage of affordable housing for
low and moderate income households in the Atwood community; and

WHEREAS, on October 20, 2016, the Board of County Commissioners adopted the
Atwood Redevelopment Plan, which included a plan for community redevelopment projects to be
conducted by the Agency and the boundaries of the area to be targeted for such projects; and

WHEREAS, on October 20, 2016, the Board of County Commissioners also adopted
Ordinance Number 2016-38 establishing the Atwood Redevelopment Trust Fund, which included
a legal description of the subject area; and

WHEREAS, on May 17, 2018, the Board of County Commissioners adopted Resolution
R2018-44 amending the Atwood Redevelopment Area Plan as to boundaries only; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners has determined it is in the best interest
of the citizens of Escambia County, Florida that the boundaries of the Atwood Redevelopment
Area as provided in the Atwood Redevelopment Trust Fund Ordinance (now codified as Sec. 46-
292) should be amended consistent with Resolution R2018-44 to include the 2018 Atwood
Redevelopment Expansion Area.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA:

Section 1. Chapter 46, Article VI, Section 46--292(b) of the Code of Ordinances of Escambia
County, Florida is hereby amended to read as follows:

(b) Legislative Findings.

(1) On March 7, 1995, September 4, 1997, and September 19, 2002, the Board of
County Commissioners of Escambia County (hereinafter called the "board")

1




adopted resolutions by which it found and declared: i) that five blighted areas
existed in Escambia County; ii) that the rehabilitation, conservation or
redevelopment, or a combination thereof, of said blighted areas was necessary in
the interest of the public health, safety, morals and welfare of the residents of
Escambia County to eliminate, remedy and prevent conditions of slums and
blights; iii) that said blighted areas were appropriate for community redevelopment
projects; and iv) that there existed the need for a community redevelopment
agency to function in Escambia County to carry out the community redevelopment
purposes pursuant to F.S. ch. 163, pt. lll, "The Community Redevelopment Act of
1969" (hereinafter called “the Act®), as amended. These resolutions designated
the blighted areas as community redevelopment areas.

(2) On March 7, 1995, the Board adopted Ordinance No. 95-6 by which it declared its
membership to comprise the Community Redevelopment Agency of Escambia
County and vested in such agency all rights, powers, duties, privileges and
immunities authorized by the Act.

(3) On October 20, 2016, the Board further adopted the Atwood Redevelopment Plan
which, among other things, adopted a plan, subject to modification from time to
time as appropriate, for community redevelopment projects conducted by the

Community Redevelopment Agency. On May 17, 2018, the Board adopted

Resolutlon R2018-44 amendmg the Atwood Redevelogment Area Plan as to

;t-Fela%es-te-the-punpes,e-ef-ﬂms-seehen- The boundanes of the area, as amended,

are described as follows:

Begin at the intersection of the East right-of-way line of the North Hilburn Road (R/W varies)
and the South right-of-way line of Olive Road (R/W varies); thence run Easterly along said
South right-of-way line of Olive Road (R/W varies) to the intersection of the South right-of-
way line of Olive Road (R/W varies) and the West right-of-way line of the West right-of-way
line of North Davis Highway (R/W varies); thence run Easterly to the intersection of the
South right-of-way line of Olive Road (R/W varies) and the East right-of-way line North
Davis Highway (R/W varies); thence run Northeasterly along said East right-of-way line of
North Davis Highway (R/W varies) to the intersection of said East right-of-way line of North
Davis Highway (R/W varies) and the South right-of-way line of East Johnson Avenue (RW
varies); thence Easterly along said South right-of-way line of East Johnson Avenue (RW
varies) to the intersection of the South right-of-way line of East Johnson Avenue (RW
varies) and the West right-of-way line of Caminitti Lane (R/W varies); thence South along
said West right-of way line of Caminitti Lane (R/W varies) to the North right-of-way line of
East Olive Road (70’ R/W); thence South to the Northwest corner of that parcel of land
recorded in Official Book 272 at page 593 of the public records of Escambia County,
Florida; thence South along the West line of said parcel to the Northwest comer of Charter
Oaks Unit No. 5 as recorded in Plat Book 15 at pages 30 and 30A of the public records of
Escambia County, Florida; thence continue South along the West line of said Oaks Unit
No. 5 to the North right-of-way line of Interstate 10 (300’ R/W); thence Westerly, Northerly
and Westerly along said North right-of-way line of Interstate 10 and Interstate 10 Ramp to
the East right-of-way line of North Davis Highway (R/W varies); thence continue West to
the West right-of-way line North Davis Highway (R/W varies); thence South along said

2



West right-of-line of North Davis Highway (R/W varies) to the North right-of-way line of
Interstate 10 (R/W varies); thence West and Northwesterly along said North right-of-way
line of Interstate 10 (R/W varies) to the Northwest corner of that parcel of land recorded in
Official Record Book 3598 at page 855 of the public records of Escambia County, Florida;
thence East along the North line of said parcel to the intersection of said North line and the
extension of the aforementioned East right-of-way line of North Hilburn Road (R/W varies);
thence North along said East right-of-way line to the Point of Beginning.

TOGETHER WITH

Begin at the Southwest corner of Lot 7 of 3 Subdivision of Section 20, Township 1 South,
Range 30 West, Escambia County, Florida as recorded in Deed Book “P” at Page 375 of
the Public Records of said County; thence North along the West line of said Lot 7 to the
intersection of said West line of Lot 7 and the South right-of-way line of West Olive Road
(66" R/W); thence Easterly along said Scuth right-of-way line to the intersection of the
South right-of-way of West Olive Road (66' R/W) and the East right-of-way line of Hilburn
Road (R/W Varies): thence Scutherly along said Easterly right-of-way line of Hilburn Road
(RW _Varies) to the intersection of said Easterly right-of-way line and the South line of
Section 20, Township 1 South, Range 30 West, Escambia County, Florida; thence proceed
Southerly along_an extension of said East right-of-way line of Hilburn Road to the
intersection of the Southerly right-of-way line of a 33 foot wide parcel of property conveyed
for right-of-way and drainage as described in Deed Book 558, Page 198 of said Public
Records; thence proceed Westerly along said South right-of-way line to a point on the
Northerly right-of-way line of Interstate 10 and Interstate 110 Interchange right-of-way and
the most Westerly point as described in O.R. book 3598, Page 855 of said Public Records,

said point being on the arc of a curve concave to the Southwest, having a radius of 1.103.24
feet; thence proceed Westerly along the arc of said curve to the intersection of the South

right-of-way line as described in Deed Book 558, Page 198 and the North line of that
described in Q.R. Book 6385, Page 1600; thence proceed Westerly along said South right-
of-way line to a point lying 33 feet South, more or less, of the Southwest corner of the
aforementioned Lot 7 of a Subdivision of Section 20, Township 1 South, Range 30 West,
Escambia County, Florida; thence preceed Northerly 33 feet, more or less, to the
Southwest corner of said Lot 7 and the Point of Beginning.

Lying in_and being a portion of Sections 19, 20, Township 1 South, Range 30 west,
Escambia County, Florida. Containing 25.9 acres more of less.

(4) In addition, the Board makes the following findings:

a.The Board finds that the findings, determinations, declarations, and actions set
forth in Resolution R2015-64 and Ordinance 2016-38 are supported by competent
and substantial evidence and that said findings determinations, declarations. and

actions are valid as it relates to the purpose of this Ordinance.

b.The Atwood Redevelopment Plan. incorporated herein by reference, supports
the findings of the Board that the Atwood Redevelopment District is a blighted area
within this meaning of this Ordinance.

c. Each governmental taxing authority, which levies ad valorem taxes on taxable
real property contained within the boundaries of the Atwood Redevelopment

3



District, was furnished notice of the proposed Ordinance at least fifteen (15) days
prior to the date on which this matter is to be considered, as required by §163.346,
Florida Statutes, as amended.

Section 3.  Severability.

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way affect
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

Section 4. Inclusion in Code.

It is the intention of the Board that the provisions of this ordinance shall become and be
made a part of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances and that such sections of this
ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed to
“section”, “article” or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such
intentions.

Section 5.  Effective Date.
This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State.

DONE AND ENACTED this day of , 2018.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:
Jeff Bergosh, Chairman
ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS
Clerk of the Circuit Court
By: Approved as to form and | al
Deputy Clerk sufliciency.
(SEAL) By/Title?
Date "
: /
ENACTED:

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:
EFFECTIVE DATE:



BoARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Escambia County, Florida

Budget/Finance 1.
Community Redevelopment Agency
Meeting Date: 08/16/2018

Issue: Cancellation of Residential Rehab Grant Program Liens
From: Tonya Gant, Director

Organization: Neighborhood & Human Svcs

CAO Approval:

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommendation Concerning the Cancellation of Residential Rehab Grant Program Liens -
Tonya Gant, Neighborhood & Human Services Department Director

That the Board take the following action concerning the cancellation of the Residential
Rehab Grant Program Liens:

A. Approve the following cancellations of seven Residential Rehab Grant Program Liens,
as the Grant recipients have met their one-year of compliance with the Residential
Rehab Grant Program:

|Property Owners |Address |Amount
|Joseph M. Baudendistel 424 Gibbs Road 1$5,900
Richard L. Burdess 1116 West Sunset Avenue 1$3,276
IDK2 R E Investments, LLC, 13981 West Gadsden Street 1$6,000
[John W. and Kelly A. Gilkerson 1121 Gilliland Road 1$3,867
|Robert G. Handshumaker and Anna J. Erikson |104 Brandywine Road |$5,475
|Michael E. Jackson |817 North Green Street |$2,380
IMavis Shelby Rosetti 14117 West Belmont Street 1$3,812

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Cancellation of Lien documents.

BACKGROUND:

The aforementioned property owners have satisfied their one-year compliance with the
Residential Rehab Grant Program.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
There will be no budgetary impact.




LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:

Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney, has reviewed and approved the Cancellation of
Lien documents as to form and legal sufficiency.

PERSONNEL.:

Neighborhood & Human Services/Community Redevelopment Agency (NHS/CRA) staff
coordinates the Residential Rehab Grant Program and all associated administrative
functions.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:

Current practice requires Board approval for Residential Rehab Grant Program lien
cancellation.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:

Upon obtaining the Chairman’s signature, the Clerk of Court will record the Cancellation
of Lien documents for the owners.

Attachments

LienCX_Baudendistel August2018
LienCX_Burdess_August2018
LienCX_DK2REInvestments.LLC_August2018
LienCX_Gilkerson_Augqust2018
LienCX_Handshumaker & Erikson_Aug2018
LienCX_Jackson_August2018

LienCX_Rosetti_August2018



STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA

CANCELLATION OF LIEN

Escambia County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, acting in its
capacity as the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency, the holder of the
Lien in the amount of $5,900 executed by Joseph M. Baudendistel, and recorded in
Official Record Book 7751 at pages 138-139, of the public records of Escambia County,
Florida, and created pursuant to the Escambia County Community Redevelopment
Agency Residential Rehab Grant Program, hereby acknowledges cancellation of the Lien
with the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency Residential Rehab Grant
Program.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:
Jeff Bergosh, Chairman

ATTEST: Pam Childers
Clerk of the Circuit Court

By: Date Executed:
Deputy Clerk

BCC Approved:

Approved as to form and legal
sufficiency. 3

Prepared by:

Max Rogers, AICP

Neighborhood & Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

221 Palafox Place, Suite 305

Pensacola, FL 32502



Pam Childers

Esca'n,biaoc,o,u ';tly CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
igin ESCAMBIA COUNTY FLORIDA
CIerk s Ur g INST# 2017057488 7/27/2017 2.39 PM

OFF REC BK: 7751 PG: 138 Doc Type: L

V) l 297 LA -3 (r7l Recording $18.50
Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency

Datezcyﬂ‘)/o""/ 7 Verified By:

Residential Rehab Grant Program
Administered By: Escambia County Neighborhood and Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

Lien Agreement

Applicant Name Address of Property Property Reference No.
Joseph M. Baudendistel 424 Gibbs Road 50-2S-30-6090-643-029

Pensacola, FL 32507

Total Amount of Lien $5,900

I, the undersigned owner of the residential property referenced above, agree that the
improved residential property will continue to be used for residential purposes for a period of not
less than one (1) year from the date this lien agreement is recorded in the public records. | will
not sell or transfer ownership or possession of the property to any other person, persons,
corporation or other legal entity during this one (1) year period without the express written
permission of the CRA. Such permission shall not be unreasonably withheld nor is this lien
agreement intended to otherwise unreasonably prevent the alienation of the property.

The lien shall be due and payable in total for a period of one (1) year from the date this
lien agreement is recorded in the public records. Upon documentation of compliance with the
provisions of this lien agreement and the Escambia County Residential Rehab Grant Program,
and one (1) year subsequent to the recording of the lien agreement in the public records, this lien
shall depreciate to zero (0), and repayment shall be forgiven. | understand that this lien will not
be subordinated without the prior approval of the CRA, and subordination shall be considered for
approval only to enable the owner to secure financing required to complete further improvements
to the subject property.

If the property is sold or if ownership or possession is otherwise transferred without the
express written permission of the CRA to another party or parties or the funding agreement
executed concurrently with this lien agreement is terminated prior to expiration of the one (1) year
period referenced above, | agree that | or my heir(s) or assigns shall repay the total amount of
grant funds disbursed by the CRA, up to and including the amount recited above.



Jo?ﬂyﬁ. Baudendistel, Property Owner

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA

L
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ( S day of
bygnny , 2017 by Joseph M. Baudendistel, Property Owner. He (—J s
personally knowﬁ to me or (___) has produced as identification.

%QQQWELL ROGERS
EM 2 omrhission # FF 77771
3 s My Commission Expires
e December 18, 2017

ATTEST:  PAM CHILDERS Date Executed: _3/6 (D027
' BCC Approved: _ 03—/6-20/7

%,

&
o s
R\

“SCAMBI O

\)
202104500000

Approved as to form and legal
sufficiency.

By/Title!
Date: Zf

Tt

This instrument prepared by:

Max Rogers, AICP, Development Program Manager
Neighborhood and Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

221 Palafox Place, Ste. 305

Pensacola, FL 32502



[ Before |

Warrington District
424 Gibbs Road

Install new windows and
storm shutter installation

Project Total $11,800
Grant Total $5,900




STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA

CANCELLATION OF LIEN

Escambia County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, acting in its
capacity as the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency, the holder of the
Lien in the amount of $3,276 executed by Richard L. Burdess, and recorded in Official
Record Book 7761 at pages 727-728, of the public records of Escambia County, Florida,
and created pursuant to the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency
Residential Rehab Grant Program, hereby acknowledges cancellation of the Lien with the
Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency Residential Rehab Grant
Program.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:
Jeff Bergosh, Chairman
ATTEST: Pam Childers
Clerk of the Circuit Court
By: Date Executed:
Deputy Clerk
BCC Approved:

Approved as to form and legal

sulliciency. ,f

By/Tit!

Date:

==y

Prepared by:

Max Rogers, AICP

Neighborhood & Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

221 Palafox Place, Suite 305

Pensacola, FL 32502



Escambia County zfsn& 'SF THE CIRCUIT COURT

{ ] -
' ina| ESCAMBIA COUNTY FLORIDA
Clerk > or g INST# 2017063090 8/16/2017 2.32 PM
OFF REC BK: 7761 PG: 727 Doc Type: L

Slaslouq Lom i () o
Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency
Residential Rehab Grant Program
Administered By: Escambia County Neighborhood and Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

Lien Agreement

Applicant Name Address of Property Property Reference No.
Richard L. Burdess 116 West Sunset Avenue 51-28-30-7060-011-009

Pensacola, FL 32507

Total Amount of Lien $3,276

I, the undersigned owner of the residential property referenced above, agree that the
improved residential property will continue to be used for residential purposes for a period of not
less than one (1) year from the date this lien agreement is recorded in the public records. | will
not sell or transfer ownership or possession of the property to any other person, persons,
corporation or other legal entity during this one (1) year period without the express written
permission of the CRA. Such permission shall not be unreasonably withheld nor is this lien
agreement intended to otherwise unreasonably prevent the alienation of the property.

Verified By: % W

The lien shall be due and payable in total for a period of one (1) year from the date this
lien agreement is recorded in the public records. Upon documentation of compliance with the
provisions of this lien agreement and the Escambia County Residential Rehab Grant Program,
and one (1) year subsequent to the recording of the lien agreement in the public records, this lien
shall depreciate to zero (0), and repayment shall be forgiven. | understand that this lien will not
be subordinated without the prior approval of the CRA, and subordination shall be considered for
approval only to enable the owner to secure financing required to complete further improvements
to the subject property.

Date:é/5/o'24/7

If the property is sold or if ownership or possession is otherwise transferred without the
express written permission of the CRA to another party or parties or the funding agreement
executed concurrently with this lien agreement is terminated prior to expiration of the one (1) year
period referenced above, | agree that | or my heir(s) or assigns shall repay the total amount of
grant funds disbursed by the CRA, up to and including the amount recited above.



Aedronl 4 Brilver

Richard L. Burdess, Property Owner

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

A

known td me or (_— has produced f£ Pvivewy Lic

A

é day of

, 2017 by Richard L. Burdess, Property Owner. He (__) is personally
as identification.

-~ Signatur

AN A

WELL ROGERS

etary Public
Eoe  [fore RS

SCo mission # FF 77771
My Commission Expires
December 18, 2017

For:

By:

Pfinted Name of Notary Public

joners of

ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS

17T S A
SO .
A »éD_ puty Clerk

<
: > .
- .‘ .
s ¢ 3
=03 H
s H
X4 Foe S
% . SIS
2 X, o >
% v, N
'4‘ ‘:s. Peooqenn® QQ“Q
“l, CAMB\P\ W

10005530008

This instrument prepared by:
Max Rogers, AICP, Development Program Manager
Neighborhood and Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

21 Palafox Place, Ste. 305

DA o e e I AACAN

. Underhill, Chairman

Date Executed: 5/ 25 ]307

BCC Approved:

OS-25-20107

Approved as to form and legal
sufficiency.

By/Title
Date:

[



Warrington District
116 West Sunset Avenue
Install new windows
Project Total $6,135
Grant Total $3,067



STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA

CANCELLATION OF LIEN

Escambia County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, acting in its
capacity as the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency, the holder of the
Lien in the amount of $3,867 executed by John W. and Kelly A. Gilkerson, and recorded
in Official Record Book 7756 at pages 614-615, of the public records of Escambia County,
Florida, and created pursuant to the Escambia County Community Redevelopment
Agency Residential Rehab Grant Program, hereby acknowledges cancellation of the Lien
with the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency Residential Rehab Grant
Program.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:
Jeff Bergosh, Chairman
ATTEST: Pam Childers
Clerk of the Circuit Court
By: Date Executed:
Deputy Clerk
BCC Approved:
Approved as tg form and degnl
sufficienc !
By/Title: ﬂ a ]
Date: P{(‘{> |2 e

Prepared by:

Max Rogers, AICP

Neighborhood & Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

221 Palafox Place, Suite 305

Pensacola, FL 32502



ESCambia ey
Cierk’s Original

5|sglom Cre TE4(4S

Verified By:

Date:&/5/20r)

Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency
Residential Rehab Grant Program
Administered By: Escambia County Neighborhood and Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

Lien Agreement

Applicant Name(s) Address of Property Property Reference No.
John W. and Kelly A. Gilkerson 121 Gilliland Road 50-2S-30-6090-524-024

Pensacola, FL. 32507

Total Amount of Lien $3,867

I, the undersigned owner of the residential property referenced above, agree that the
improved residential property will continue to be used for residential purposes for a period of not
less than one (1) year from the date this lien agreement is recorded in the public records. | will
not sell or transfer ownership or possession of the property to any other person,: persons,
corporation or other legal entity during this one (1) year period without the express written
permission of the CRA. Such permission shall not be unreasonably withheld nor is this lien
agreement intended to otherwise unreasonably prevent the alienation of the property.

The lien shall be due and payable in total for a period of one (1) year from the date this
lien agreement is recorded in the public records. Upon documentation of compliance with the
provisions of this lien agreement and the Escambia County Residential Rehab Grant Program,
and one (1) year subsequent to the recording of the lien agreement in the public records, this lien
shall depreciate to zero (0), and repayment shall be forgiven. | understand that this lien will not
be subordinated without the prior approval of the CRA, and subordination shall be considered for
approval only to enable the owner to secure financing required to complete further improvements
to the subject property.

If the property is sold or if ownership or possession is otherwise transferred without the
express written permission of the CRA to another party or parties or the funding agreement
executed concurrently with this lien agreement is terminated prior to expiration of the one (1) year
period referenced above, | agree that | or my heir(s) or assigns shall repay the total amount of
grant funds disbursed by the CRA, up to and including the amount recited above.

Pam Childers
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
ESCAMBIA COUNTY FLORIDA
6 INST# 2017060280 8/4/2017 4.07 PM
OFF REC BK: 7756 PG: 614 Doc Type: L
Recording $18.50



STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 7,6“’ day of
\ pil » 2017 by John W. Gilkerson, Property Owner. He (__) is personally
known to mie or (_ has produced -4 Driven, 1€ a5 identification.

F
The fo going; instrument was acknowledged before me this 2et day of
i , 2017 by Kelly A. Gilkerson, Property Owner. She (__) is personally

known to e or (1) has produced _Fr. Dwniw < (¢ as identification.
M T\ —

d Sigr‘%oﬁw Public
( al]MAXWELL ROGERS ALAX Lo Rophkig

\e Commission # FF 77771 Prifited Name of Notary Public

§ My Commission Expires
Dédember 18, 2017

of
ATTEST:  PAM CHILDERS Date Executed: _ 5/, 016/4942'7_
W ermfylerk ot thg Circuit Court
s‘@\\‘_ﬁg«q;%' BCC Approved: _O5-25-2017
S& 745 LTy
Sof i:’z,i z% .
o~ ten -
£3: S -
=i TESY A H
"&, Q‘E "‘ono-""‘% K ~$
%,.CA AR
“targp MBI Jod Approved as to form and legal
This instrument prepared by: sufficiency,, y
Max Rogers, AICP, Development Program Manager ;
Neighborhood and Human Services Department By/Title; /
Community Redevelopment Agency Date: &
221 Palafox Place, Ste. 305 | !

Pensacola, FL 32502



e

Warrington District

121 Gilliland Road

Electrical rewiring
Project Total $7,735
Grant Total $3,867



STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA

CANCELLATION OF LIEN

Escambia County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, acting in its
capacity as the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency, the holder of the
Lien in the amount of $5,475 executed by Robert G. Handshumaker and Anna J.
Erikson, and recorded in Official Record Book 7756 at pages 618-619, of the public
records of Escambia County, Florida, and created pursuant to the Escambia County
Community Redevelopment Agency Residential Rehab Grant Program, hereby
acknowledges cancellation of the Lien with the Escambia County Community
Redevelopment Agency Residential Rehab Grant Program.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:
Jeff Bergosh, Chairman

ATTEST: Pam Childers
Clerk of the Circuit Court

By: Date Executed:
Deputy Clerk

BCC Approved:

Approved as to form and legal

sullicieney. | _
nyn'merjgg%ﬁ‘
Date:

T

A

Prepared by:

Max Rogers, AICP

Neighborhood & Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

221 Palafox Place, Suite 305

Pensacola, FL 32502



Escambla County
Clerk’s Original

312019 Lo d A(S)
Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency
Residential Rehab Grant Program
Administered By: Escambia County Neighborhood and Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

Lien Agreement

Applicant Name(s) Address of Property Property Reference No.
Robert G. Handshumaker and 104 Brandywine Road 50-25-30-5010-024-020
Anna J. Erikson Pensacola, FL 32507

Total Amount of Lien $5,475

|, the undersigned owner of the residential property referenced above, agree that the
improved residential property will continue to be used for residential purposes for a period of not
less than one (1) year from the date this lien agreement is recorded in the public records. | will
not sell or transfer ownership or possession of the property to any other person, persons,
corporation or other legal entity during this one (1) year period without the express written
permission of the CRA. Such permission shall not be unreasonably withheld nor is this lien
agreement intended to otherwise unreasonably prevent the alienation of the property.

The lien shall be due and payable in total for a period of one (1) year from the date this
lien agreement is recorded in the public records. Upon documentation of compliance with the
provisions of this lien agreement and the Escambia County Residential Rehab Grant Program,
and one (1) year subsequent to the recording of the lien agreement in the public records, this lien
shall depreciate to zero (0), and repayment shall be forgiven. | understand that this lien will not
be subordinated without the prior approval of the CRA, and subordination shall be considered for
approval only to enable the owner to secure financing required to complete further improvements
to the subject property.

Date: 7/2/2r7  Verified By:(%c’?/(“o._.

If the property is sold or if ownership or possession is otherwise transferred without the
express written permission of the CRA to another party or parties or the funding agreement
executed concurrently with this lien agreement is terminated prior to expiration of the one (1) year
period referenced above, | agree that | or my heir(s) or assigns shall repay the total amount of
grant funds disbursed by the CRA, up to and including the amount recited above.

Pam Childers
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
6 ESCAMBIA COUNTY FLORIDA
INST# 2017060282 8/4/2017 4.07 PM
OFF REC BK: 7756 PG: 618 Doc Type: L
Recording $18.50



Wzmake Property Owner

Afina J. Erikson, Property Owner

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA

——The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this IO’& day of

Jure , 2017 _by Robert G.,Handshumaker, Property Owner. He (_) is

personally known to me or (_f ) has produced C as identification.
B e

T regoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

\une ., 2017 by Anna J. Erikson, Property Owner. She (__) is personally
known to me or (\"} has produced as identification.
EXC 16-24

Signature of Notaé/Publi

(Notary Seal) Sherey D
Printed Name o} Notary Public

By:
. B. Underhill, Chairman
ATTEST:  PAM CHILDERS Date Executed: __Z (18/20/7
“‘“m;..(;J,gr of the Circuit Court
SCOONTY Gy 0o Z BCC Approved: O~ 1%~ 90\
S8 34/ .
e 5 =<
E'%*E".‘ TR ..: *5.:
A B
%, 4, (:,-‘\s‘
RN
Approved as to form and legal
This instrument prepared by: sufficienc
Max Rogers, AICP, Development Program Manager
Neighborhocod and Human Services Department By/Title:
Community Redevelopment Agency Date:

221 Palafox Place, Ste. 305
Pensacola, FL 32502



Warrington District
104 Brandywine Road
Replace roof
Project Total $10,950
Grant Total $5,475



STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA

CANCELLATION OF LIEN

Escambia County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, acting in its
capacity as the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency, the holder of the
Lien in the amount of $2,380 executed by Michael E. Jackson, and recorded in Official
Record Book 7761 at pages 725-726, of the public records of Escambia County, Florida,
and created pursuant to the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency
Residential Rehab Grant Program, hereby acknowledges cancellation of the Lien with the
Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency Residential Rehab Grant
Program.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:
Jeff Bergosh, Chairman

ATTEST: Pam Childers
Clerk of the Circuit Court

By: Date Executed:
Deputy Clerk

BCC Approved:

Approved as to form and legal
sufliciency. ,

By/Title:
Datc:

Prepared by:

Max Rogers, AICP

Neighborhood & Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

221 Palafox Place, Suite 305

Pensacola, FL 32502



Escambla County
Clerk’s Original

8las)2eq CHr T<(tc)

Date:&/6/34/7  Veritied By: &YW

Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency
Residential Rehab Grant Program
Administered By: Escambia County Community & Environment Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

Lien Agreement

Applicant Name(s) Address of Property Property Reference No.
Michael E. Jackson 817 North Green Street 34-2S-30-0860-005-001
Pensacola, FL 32505
Pam Childers
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
ESCAMBIA COUNTY FLORIDA

INST# 2017063089 8/16/2017 232 PM
OFF REC BK: 7761 PG: 725 Doc Type: L
Recording $18.50

Total Amount of Lien $2,380

I, the undersigned owner of the residential property referenced above, agree that the
improved residential property will continue to be used for residential purposes for a period of not
less than one (1) year from the date this lien agreement is recorded in the public records. | will
not sell or transfer ownership or possession of the property to any other person, persons,
corporation or other legal entity during this one (1) year period without the express written
permission of the CRA. Such permission shall not be unreasonably withheld nor is this lien
agreement intended to otherwise unreasonably prevent the alienation of the property.

The lien shall be due and payable in total for a period of one (1) year from the date this
lien agreement is recorded in the public records. Upon documentation of compliance with the
provisions of this lien agreement and the Escambia County Residential Rehab Grant Program,
and one (1) year subsequent to the recording of the lien agreement in the public records, this lien
shall depreciate to zero (0), and repayment shall be forgiven. | understand that this lien will not
be subordinated without the prior approval of the CRA, and subordination shall be considered for
approval only to enable the owner to secure financing required to complete further improvements
to the subject property.

If the property is sold or if ownership or possession is otherwise transferred without the
express written permission of the CRA to another party or parties or the funding agreement
executed concurrently with this lien agreement is terminated prior to expiration of the one (1) year
period referenced above, | agree that | or my heir(s) or assigns shall repay the total amount of
grant funds disbursed by the CRA, up to and including the amount recited above.



For Recipient(s):

~

Michael E. Jackson,

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA

;‘ A Y
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 2 2 i= day of AO i )
2017 by Michael E. Jackson, Property Owner. He (¥) is personally known to me or (__) has’produced
as identification.

(Notary Seal)

. SHERRY A DUFFEY

T0% . For: f isglongfs of
EXPIRES December 10, 2019
(407) 3080133 o
By:
nderhill, Chairman
ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS Date Executed: 5/ 25 /4‘/ 1
Clerk of the Circuit Court

BCC Approved:  05-25-2017

% K D
% *eeonen® [t
”, AD S

””i?lAi w?‘ ““ ¥

Approved as to form and Jegal
sufficiency. / '

By/Title:

Date:
This instrument prepared by: a

Sherry Duffey, Development Program Manager
Neighborhood and Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

221 Palafox Place, Pensacola, FL 32502



Brownsville District
817 North Green Street
Replace roof
Project Total $4,760
Grant Total $2,380



STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA

CANCELLATION OF LIEN

Escambia County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, acting in its
capacity as the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency, the holder of the
Lien in the amount of $3,812 executed by Mavis Shelby Rosetti, and recorded in Official
Record Book 7756 at pages 616-617, of the public records of Escambia County, Florida,
and created pursuant to the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency
Residential Rehab Grant Program, hereby acknowledges cancellation of the Lien with the
Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency Residential Rehab Grant
Program.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

By:
Jeff Bergosh, Chairman

ATTEST: Pam Childers
Clerk of the Circuit Court

By: Date Executed:
Deputy Clerk

BCC Approved:

Approved as to form and legal
sufliciency. . A

By/Title:
Date:

Prepared by:

Max Rogers, AICP

Neighborhood & Human Services Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

221 Palafox Place, Suite 305

Pensacola, FL 32502



Escambia County
Clerk’s Original

5|28]201 L+(2)

Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency
Residential Rehab Grant Program
Administered By: Escambia County Community & Environment Department
Community Redevelopment Agency

Lien Agreement

Applicant Name(s) Address of Property Property Reference No.
Mavis Shelby Rosetti 4117 West Belmont Street 34-2S8-30-0251-000-022

Pensacola, FL 32505

Total Amount of Lien $3.812

Verified By: (A 2Acee—

I, the undersigned owner of the residential property referenced above, agree that the
improved residential property will continue to be used for residential purposes for a period of not

less than one (1) year from the date this lien agreement is recorded in the public records. | will
not sell or transfer ownership or possession of the property to any other person, persons,

agreement intended to otherwise unreasonably prevent the alienation of the property.

Date: @€ /5/2017

corporation or other legal entity during this one (1) year period without the express written
permission of the CRA. Such permission shall not be unreasonably withheld nor is this lien

The lien shall be due and payable in total for a period of one (1) year from the date this
lien agreement is recorded in the public records. Upon documentation of compliance with the

provisions of this lien agreement and the Escambia County Residential Rehab Grant Program,
and one (1) year subsequent to the recording of the lien agreement in the public records, this lien
shall depreciate to zero (0), and repayment shall be forgiven. | understand that this lien will not
be subordinated without the prior approval of the CRA, and subordination shall be considered for
approval only to enable the owner to secure financing required to complete further improvements

to the subject property.

If the property is sold or if ownership or possession is otherwise transferred without the
express written permission of the CRA to another party or parties or the funding agreement
executed concurrently with this lien agreement is terminated prior to expiration of the one (1) year
period referenced above, | agree that | or my heir(s) or assigns shall repay the total amount of

grant funds disbursed by the CRA, up to and including the amount recited above.

Pam Childers
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
ESCAMBIA COUNTY FLORIDA

6 INST# 2017060281 8/4/2017 4.07 PM
OFF REC BK: 7756 PG: 616 Doc Type: L
Recording $18.50



For Recipient(s):

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF ESCAMBIA l,
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this Qq :L‘- day of ,
17 by Mavis Shelby Rosetti, Property Owner. She (__) is personally known to me or (¥_) has produced

2
F LS).L&F&%’: as identification.
]

(Notary Seal)

Signature of Nofary Public

Printed Name ¢f Notary Public

"D. B. Underhill, Chairman

Date Executed: 5/ is } 20177

ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS

\n'“'"mc e K Circuit Court
s“@ ""~ s BCC Approved: _ O35 - S ~20/7
PR,
oS - ;::;5
Ol AT
"4,'0& WESQ“\&:"‘
TR
Approved as to form and legal
sufficien
By/Title
Date:

This instrument prepared by:
Sherry Duffey, Development Proagram Manager

Neighborhood and Human Services Department

Community Redevelopment Agency
221 Palafox Place, Pensacola, FL 32502



Brownsville District
4117 West Belmont Street
Replace roof
Project Total $7,625
Grant Total $3,812



BoARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Escambia County, Florida

Discussion/Information 1.
Community Redevelopment Agency
Meeting Date: 08/16/2018

Issue: CRA Grants Analysis

From: Tonya Gant, Director
Organization: Neighborhood & Human Svcs
CAO Approval:

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommendation Concerning Community Redevelopment Agency Grant Analysis - Tonya Gant,
Neighborhood & Human Services Department Director

That the Board review for any modifications and provide guidance to the existing CRA
Grant Programs as needed.

BACKGROUND:

On July 19, 2018, the CRA Board requested CRA staff to bring back a report that
analyzed the CRA Grant Programs. Attached are copies the CRA Grant Programs
applications and guidelines.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Legal consideration is not necessary for this recommendation.

PERSONNEL.:
No additional personnel is necessary.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:

If there are Board actions to the existing CRA Grant Programs, staff will proceed with
implementations.




Attachments

CRA GRANTS ANALYSIS_AUG2018
CRA GRANT PROG APPS_GUIDELINES_AUG2018




Z —

CRA GRANT PROGRAM
ANALYSIS

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
CRA Board Meeting

Board Chambers

Suite 100

Ernie Lee Magaha Government Building - First Floor
221 Palafox Place

August 2018
9:00 a.m.

...........
L



" CRA GRANT PROGRAMS

Commercial Facade, Landscape, & Infrastructure
Grant

Commercial Sign Grant

Residential Rehab Grant Program
Hazardous Tree Trimming Program
Residential Painting Program




~Commercial Facade, Landscape, &
Infrastructure Grant Program

Require 50% Match
Funded through CDBG and/or TIF
Reimburse up to $10,000
Property must be located in a CRA District
Property owned by the Applicant
Property must be zoned for Commercial use
Property cannot have outstanding Code liens and/or delinquent property taxes
1yr Lien imposed upon the property
Eligible improvements:
e Total Electrical Rewiring
Landscaping
Install Sprinkler System
Parking lot improvements
ADA Handicap Access
Fencing
Sanitary Sewer connection
Exterior Lighting
Architectural Feature Restoration
Exterior Painting



Commercial Sign Grant Program

Require 50% Match

~unded through CDBG and/or TIF
Reimburse up to $2,000

Property must be located in a CRA District
Property owned by Applicant

Property must be zoned for commercial use

Property cannot have outstanding Code liens and/or
delinquent property taxes

Eligible improvements:
e Exterior Free Standing Sign
e Exterior Wall Sign




Residential Rehab Grant Program

Require 50% Match

TIF funds only

Reimburse up to $6,000

Property must be located in a CRA District

Property owned by Applicant (homestead and rental)
Property must be zoned for Residential use

Property cannot have outstanding Code liens and/or delinquent property
taxes

Not intended for new construction
1lyr Lien imposed upon the property
Eligible improvements:

e Total Electrical Rewiring
Storm Shutter
Convert to Central Heating & Air
New Windows
New Roof
Sanitary Sewer connection



~Residential Exterior Paint Program

and Hazardous Tree Program

Property must be located in a CRA District
Property owned by the Applicant

Property must be zoned for residential use
Property must be homestead exempt

Property cannot have outstanding Code liens and/or
delinquent property taxes

Household income must not exceed 80% of the
Escambia County Area Median Income

Funded 100% through CRA TIF




"~ CRA GRANT AN

CRA GRANT PROGRAM ANALYSIS
PAINT PROGRAM
2015 2016 2017 TOTAL
f# of Grants 24 18 16 58
$ Amount $27,839 $19,294 $18,634 $65,767
HAZARDOUS TREE PROGRAM
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 TOTAL
# of Grants 14 20 1 4 18 12 10 79
S Amount $18,500| $40,965 $1,100 $5,350| $22,325 $9,840 $13,180 $111,260

RESIDENTIAL REHAB PROGRAM
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 TOTAL
# of Grants 26 37 26 29 11 46 54 40 71 95 435
$ Amount $72,514 | $126,000 [ $74,000 | $72,000 | $24,267 | $72,000 | $106,000 | $135,468 |$ 226,699 | $ 318,227 [ $1,227,175
COMMERCIAL FACADE, LANDSCAPE & INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT PROGRAM
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 TOTAL
#of Grants| 8 5 9 12 15 19 18 9 6 5 6 3 8 123
S Amount | $55,000 | 544,982 | 574,836 [5103,000] $96,565 | $146,302 | $141,366 | $64,120 | $51,000 | $42,000 | $37,000 [S 23455[S 40,345| $919,971
COMMERCIAL SIGN GRANT PROGRAM
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 TOTAL
#of Grants| 4 2 6 9 7 13 8 4 4 1 4 2 4 68
SAmount | $6,710 | $3,935 | $10,783 | $15,055 | $12,230 | $23,439 | $14,269 | $6,945 | $6,193 | $2,000 $6409 |$ 3548[$  6358| $117,874




worked in the Communities?

Reduce Blight

Impact Property Insurance
Increase TIF Property values
Environment Eco-friendly

Create Jobs

Economic Impact

Support County and CRA Mission
Promote sustainable and resiliency
Build sense of pride/synergy
Encourage revitalization
Encourage private investment




\\

““Best Practices to Implement

Incentives - Catalyst for distressed areas

e Retain existing businesses

e Recruit new businesses

e Return on Investment (ROI) — avg 1:2 or higher

Public — Private Partnership
_everaging funds

Develop a PLAN

Engage & Empower citizens

Create cleaner and safer communities
Utilizing TIF funds




Residential Grant Examples

108 Jardine Rd. (electrical rewiring & HVAC)
312 Payne Rd. (replacement roof & sewer connection)
217 Chief’s Way (replacement windows)

10



108 Jardine Rd vs Neighbor

S6,000 Grant in 2015 to rewire

electrical and upgrade
apartment to HVAC

2015 assessed value $31,529
2017 assessed value $S50,564

2015-2017 increase in tax
value 37.64%

Next door neighbor did not
seek a Rehab Grant

2015 assessed value $28,546
2017 assessed value $31,481

2015-2017 increase in tax
value 9.32%

11



312 Payne Rd vs Neighbor

S3,727 Grant in 2014 for roof
replacement and sewer
connection

2014 assessed value $54,482
2017 assessed value S68,077

2014-2017 increase in tax value
19.97%

Next door neighbor did not
seek a Rehab Grant

2014 assessed value $S51,839
2017 assessed value $55,439

2014-2017 increase in tax value
6.49%

12



217 Chiefs Way vs Neighbor

S1,685 Grant in 2014 for
window replacement

2014 assessed value $40,305

2017 assessed value S47,554

2014-2017 increase in tax value
15.24%

Next door neighbor did not
seek a Rehab Grant

2014 assessed value $49,629
2017 assessed value $51,433

2014-2017 increase in tax value
3.50%

13



- Commercial Grant Examples

Nedal Mohammad 3706 Navy Blvd. (Warrington)

L&L Fresh Seafood 1611 N. Pace Blvd. (Brownsville)
Linh Le 673 N. Pace Blvd. (Brownsville)

VQK Management, LLC 3015 Mobile Hwy. (Brownsville)

14



-
T
—

" Nedal Mohammac
3706 Navy Blvd.

2017 Grant recipient
Warrington CRA District

Complete renovation of a
dilapidated auto repair shop

Total investment over $30,000

Grant amount $10,000

Private investment ratio more
than 3:1

2017 Tax assessment $37,974
2018 Tax assessment TBD

15



1611 N. Pace BIvd.i

® 2014 Grant recipient
® Brownsville CRA District

* Redevelopment of dilapidated
commercial site to strip mall

* Total investment over $60,000
® Grant amount $10,000

® Private investment ratio more
than 6:1

® 2013 tax assessment $86,328
® 2017 tax assessment $337,552

16



i

nnnnnn

i P 1A
673 N. Pace Blvd.

F

2016 Grant recipient
Brownsville CRA District

Redevelopment of dilapidated
commercial site to strip mall

Total investment over $60,000

Grant amount $10,000

Private investment ratio more
than 6:1

2013 Tax assessment $S44,027
2017 Tax assessment $204,710




—

2015 Grant recipient
Brownsville CRA District

Complete renovation of a
dilapidated building to multi-
tenant rental

Total investment more than
S350,000

Grant amount $10,000

Private investment ratio more
than 35:1

2015 tax assessment $213,609
2017 tax assessment $283,574

-

T
—

VQK Management, LLC

18



Board Direction



Community Redevelopment Agency
Residential Rehab Grant Program

This program provides a 50% matching reimbursement grant, up to $6,000.

ELIGIBLE IMPROVEMENTS
%+ Total Electrical Rewiring ** Central Heating and Air % Replacement Roof
Upgrade Conversion
%+ Storm Shutter “* Replacement Windows % Sanitary Sewer
Installation Connection

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY GUIDELINES

e Property must be located within an Escambia County designed Community
Redevelopment District. Call (850) 595-3217 to verify location.

e Applicant(s) must be the property owner(s).

e Property must be zoned for residential use, and used for residential purposes.

* Property must not have outstanding judgment liens, code violations, and/or delinquent
ad valorem property taxes.

® Notintended for new construction.

Project Commencement
Project must not have commenced until the final grant application and agreement(s) have been

submitted to and approved by the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA), and
Board of County Commissioners (BCC).

Applicant Match

Applicant must provide 100% of project costs upfront. The Com munity Redevelopment Agency will
provide a 50% reimbursement, up to $6,000, for eligible improvements approved under this program
upon project completion, and submittal of all required documentation.

Lien Requirement

Applicant(s) must agree to enter into a lien agreement with the Community Redevelopment Agency.
Lien will be forgiven twelve (12) months from the date the lien agreement is recorded in the public
records provided that:

* Improvements are not altered, modified, removed, demolished, sold, or transferred and/or;
e Property is not converted to 100% non-residential use.

**¥If any of these activities should occur within the above-mentioned twelve (12) month period
and/or without prior approval total funds granted will become due and payable.

Grant funding is based on availability. Grant funding is provided on a first come, first served basis, however,
preference will be provided to first time applicants.



Application Submittal Instructions
CRA Form Rehab Instruction 2015-11

1. Complete and Sign Application Form

Attach the following documentation:

a. Proof of Property Insurance — Current Home Insurance Policy and/or Home Insurance
Bill or Statement
b. Proof of Property Ownership- Copy of Deed

2. Obtain Three (3) Quotes from Licensed Contractors which include Labor and
Materials for Total Project Costs

a. Indicate Selected Contractor
(Selected Contractor must have the lowest bid)
b. Contractor must be licensed in Escambia County.

3. Sign Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Form
4. Sign “Notice to Applicant(s): Florida Public Records Law, F.S. Chapter 119”
5. Complete and Sign W-9 Tax Form

6. Submit documentation listed above (steps 1-5) by mail, fax or email to:

Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency
221 Palafox Place, Suite 305, Pensacola, FL 32502

Phone: (850) 595-3217

Fax: (850) 595-3218

Email: CRA@myescambia.com




Community Redevelopment Agency

Commercial F aéade, Landscape, and
Infrastructure Grant Program

This program provides a 50% matching reimbursement grant, up to $10,000.

ELIGIBLE IMPROVEMENTS
% Electrical Rewiring %+ ADA Handicap Building | < Exterior Lighting
Access
+» Landscaping % Fencing < Architectural Feature
Restoration

%+ Sprinkler System % Sanitary Sewer %+ Exterior Painting
Installation Connection

% Parking Lot
Improvements

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY GUIDELINES

e Property must be located within an Escambia County designed Community
Redevelopment District. Call (850) 595-3217 to verify location.

e Applicant(s) must be the property owner(s).

e Property must be zoned for commercial or industrial use and used for commercial or
industrial purposes.

e Property must not have outstanding judgment liens, code violations, and/or delinquent
ad valorem property taxes.

Project Commencement

Project must not have commenced until the final grant application and agreement(s) have been
submitted to and approved by the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA), and
Board of County Commissioners (BCC).

Applicant Match

Applicant must provide 100% of project costs upfront. The Community Redevelopment Agency will
provide a 50% reimbursement, up to $10,000, for eligible improvements approved under this program
upon project completion, and submittal of all required documentation.

Lien Requirement
Applicant(s) must agree to enter into a lien agreement with the Community Redevelopment Agency.
Lien will be forgiven twelve (12) months from the date the lien agreement is recorded in the public
records provided that:

e Improvements are not altered, modified, removed, demolished, sold, or transferred and/or;
e Property is not converted to 100% non-residential use.

***1f any of these activities should occur within the above-mentioned twelve (12) month period
and/or without prior approval total funds granted will become due and payable.

Grant funding is based on availability. Grant funding is provided on a first come, first served basis, however,
preference will be provided to first time applicants.




Application Submittal Instructions
CRA Form Facade Instruction 2015-11

1. Complete and Sign Application Form

b.

Attach the following documentation:

Proof of Property Insurance — Current Home Insurance Policy and/or Home Insurance
Bill or Statement

Proof of Property Ownership- Copy of Deed or Recent Mortgage Statement and/or
Letter

Color Photograph of Existing Property Conditions

2. Obtain Three (3) Quotes from Licensed Contractors which include Labor and
Materials for Total Project Costs

b.
c.
d.

Indicate Selected Contractor

(Selected Contractor must have the lowest bid)

Attach Selected Contractor’s License

Attach Contractor’s Dun & Bradstreet (DUNS) Number

Contractor must agree to comply with all requirements of the Davis Bacon Act and sign
Davis Bacon Act Packet. Program Administrator will review packet with Selected
Contractor and coordinate signature.

3. Sign Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Form

4. Sign “Notice to Applicant(s): Florida Public Records Law, F.S. Chapter 119”

5. Complete and Sign W-9 Tax Form

6. Submit documentation listed above (steps 1-5) by mail, fax or email to:

Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency
221 Palafox Place, Suite 305, Pensacola, FL 32502

Phone: (850) 595-3217

Fax: (850) 595-3218

Email: CRA@myescambia.com




Community Redevelopment Agency
Commercial Sign Grant Program

This program provides a 50% matching reimbursement grant, up to $2,000.

ELIGIBLE IMPROVEMENTS
¢+ Exterior Free Standing Sign ¢ Exterior Wall Sign (Permanent, Fixed
(Permanent, Fixed Structure Only) Structure Only)

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY GUIDELINES

e Property must be located within an Escambia County designed Community
Redevelopment District. Call (850) 595-3217 to verify location.

e Applicant(s) must be the property owner(s) or commercial leasee(s).

e Property must be zoned for commercial or industrial use and used for commercial or
industrial purposes.

e Property must not have outstanding judgment liens, code violations, and/or
delinquent ad valorem property taxes.

Project Commencement
Project must not have commenced until the final grant application and agreement(s) have been

submitted to and approved by the Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA),
and Board of County Commissioners (BCC).

Applicant Match

Applicant must provide 100% of project costs upfront. The Community Redevelopment Agency
will provide a 50% reimbursement, up to $2,000, for eligible improvements approved under this
program upon project completion, and submittal of all required documentation.

Grant funding is based on availability. Grant funding is provided on a first come, first served
basis, however, preference will be provided to first time applicants.



Application Submittal Instructions
CRA Form Sign Instruction 2015-11

1. Complete and Sign Application Form

Attach the following documentation:

a. Proof of Property Insurance — Current Home Insurance Policy and/or Home Insurance
Bill or Statement

b. Proof of Property Ownership or Leasing Status- Copy of Deed or Recent Mortgage
Statement and/or Letter OR Lease Agreement (Tenants Only)

¢. Color Photograph of Existing Property Conditions

d. Graphic Design of Sign and Lettering Style with Dimensions

2. Obtain Three (3) Quotes from Licensed Contractors which include Labor and
Materials for Total Project Costs

a. Indicate Selected Contractor
(Selected Contractor must have the lowest bid)
b. Attach Selected Contractor’s License
c. Attach Contractor’s Dun & Bradstreet (DUNS) Number

3. Sign Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Form
4. Sign “Notice to Applicant(s): Florida Public Records Law, F.S. Chapter 119”
5. Complete and Sign W-9 Tax Form

6. Submit documentation listed above (steps 1-5) by mail, fax or email to:

Escambia County Community Redevelopment Agency
221 Palafox Place, Suite 305, Pensacola, FL 32502

Phone: (850) 595-3217

Fax: (850) 595-3218

Email: CRA@myescambia.com




Community Redevelopment Agency

Residential Hazardous Tree Program

The intent of the Residential Hazardous Tree Program is to provide hazardous tree removal
or trimming services to income qualifying homeowners located within Escambia County’s
designated Community Redevelopment Area.

Program Summary

The Residential Hazardous Tree Program provides hazardous tree trimming and/or removal services to
income qualifying homeowners located in Escambia County’s designated Community Redevelopment
Areas for damaged and/or diseased trees or limbs which present a danger to the homeowner’s
residence. Eligible applicants receive assistance towards 100% of tree removal and/or trimming services
based on income eligibility set by the 2016 Escambia County Area Median Income Guidelines. Funding
for this program is provided by Tax Incremental Financing (TIF), pursuant to F.S. Chapter 163, the
Community Redevelopment Act, and is based on the availability of funding.

Program Eligibility Guidelines
* Property must be located within Escambia County’s designated Community Redevelopment
Area.
* Applicant(s) must be the property owner and provide proof of property ownership.
e Property must be zoned for residential use, and used for residential purposes.
e Property must be homestead exempt.
e Applicant(s) must not be delinquent on payment of ad valorem property taxes.
e Property must not have outstanding code violations, and/or judgment liens.
e Household income must not exceed 80% of the Escambia County Area Median Income, as set

forth below:
Escambia County Area Median Income Guidelines (2016)
Household
Members 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
80% A
Inc’:m;ea $33,400 | $38,200 | $42,950 | $47,700 | $51,550 | $55,350 | $59,150 | $63,000

Effective March 28, 2016

**ONE -TIME SERVICE PER PROPERTY OWNER




Community Redevelopment Agency
Residential Hazardous Tree Program
CRA Form Tree Info 2016-04

Program Details

Tree or Limb MUST show obvious signs of rot or damage AND;

Present a danger to the homeowner’s residence if it were to fall

Escambia County staff and/or hired contractor will inspect the property to determine extent of
tree rot and/or damage, and determine eligibility for the Residential Hazardous Tree Program.
Escambia County will provide a licensed and insured contractor to conduct tree removal and/or
trimming services.

Documentation Requirements

Applicant(s) must submit the following documentation to receive assistance through the Residential
Hazardous Tree Program:

Proof of Identity:
o Valid driver’s license or state identification card AND;
o Social Security Card(s) for each household member
Proof of Ownership
o Copy of Deed and/or current Mortgage Statement
Proof of Homestead Exemption
o Copy of Homestead Exemption Card
Ad Valorem Property Taxes- Proof of Non-Delinquent Status
o Copy of recent Property Tax Bill and/or Statement
Income Verification Documentation
Applicant(s) must submit income/employment verification for all household members 18 years
or older or notarized affidavit stating unemployment/lack of income and describing source of
financial support. Acceptable forms of documentation include:
o Pay stub issued within the past three (3) months containing pay period, and/or pay
frequency, and rate of pay and/or;
o Federal Income Tax Return from the previous tax year and/or;
o Social Security Administration Letter/Statement issued within the past twelve (12)
months containing current benefit amount and/or;
o SSI Letter/Statement issued within the past twelve (12) months containing current
benefit amount and/or;
o Retirement, Pension and/or VA Payment Letter/Statement and/or;
o Proof of all other sources of income including workers compensation, alimony, child
support, welfare payments, interests, and/or dividends, overtime, bonuses, etc.




Community Redevelopment Agency

eSidential Exterior Painting Program

The intent of the Residential Exterior Painting Program is to provide funding assistance for
exterior painting improvements to residential property located within Escambia County’s

designated Community Redevelopment Areas.

Program Summary

The Residential Exterior Painting Program provides a one-time assistance payment of up to $2,000 for
exterior painting improvements to homesteaded, residential property located within Escambia County’s
designated Community Redevelopment Areas. Eligible applicants receive assistance towards 100% of
total project costs based on income eligibility set by the 2016 Escambia County Area Median Income
Guidelines. Funding for this program is provided by Tax Incremental Financing (TIF), pursuant to F.S.
Chapter 163, the Community Redevelopment Act and is based on the availability of funding.

Program Eligibility Guidelines
* Property must be located within Escambia County’s designated Community Redevelopment
Area.
* Applicant(s) must be the property owner(s) and provide proof of property ownership.
* Property must be zoned for residential use, and used for residential purposes.
e Property must be homestead exempt.
e Applicant(s) must not be delinquent on payment of ad valorem property taxes.
® Property must not have outstanding code violations and/or judgment liens.
* Household income must not exceed 80% of the Escambia County Area Median Income, as set

forth below:
Escambia County Area Median Income Guidelines (2016)
Household
Members A 2 3 1 5 6 7 8
80% A
.nwmr:a $33,400 | $38,200 | $42,950 | $47,700 | $51,550 | $55,350 | $59,150 | $63,000

Effective March 28, 2016

H:Drive> CRA Folder> Programs> Application & Reference Packets> Residential Programs> Residential Exterior Painting Program> CRA Res Exterior Paint Application Packet (2015)



Community Redevelopment Agency
Residential Exterior Painting Program
CRA Form Paint Info 2016-04

Program Details

o Eligible Improvements:

o Light exterior prep work including power washing, and/or sanding;
o Exterior Painting only

e Escambia County will provide a licensed and insured contractor to conduct painting
improvements.

e The Community Redevelopment Agency will provide exterior paint in pre-selected shades of
color. Applicant(s) will select color preference based on available shades at the time of
application.

e Applicant(s) will be responsible for maintaining improvements upon project completion.

Documentation Requirements

Applicant(s) must submit the following documentation to receive assistance through the Residential
Exterior Painting Program:

¢ Proof of Identity:
o Valid driver’s license or state identification card AND;
o Social Security Card(s) for each household member
¢ Proof of Ownership
o Copy of Deed and/or current Mortgage Statement
* Proof of Homestead Exemption
o Copy of Homestead Exemption Card
e Ad Valorem Property Taxes- Proof of Non-Delinquent Status
o Recent Property Tax Bill, and/or Statement
¢ Income Verification Documentation
Applicant(s) must submit income/employment verification for all household members 18 years
or older or signed statement indicating unemployment, and describing source of financial
support. Acceptable forms of documentation include:
o Pay stub issued within the past three (3) months containing pay period, and/or pay
frequency, and rate of pay and/or;
o Federal Income Tax Return from the previous tax year and/or;
o Social Security Administration Letter/Statement issued within the past twelve (12)
months containing current benefit amount and/or;
o SSI Letter/Statement issued within the past twelve (12) months containing current
benefit amount and/or;
o Retirement, Pension and/or VA Payment Letter/Statement and/or;
o Proof of all other sources of income including workers compensation, alimony, child
support, welfare payments, interests, and/or dividends, overtime, bonuses, etc.




	Agenda
	Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes, July 19, 2018
	Att1_CRAMinutes_July192018
	Schedule and Advertise of a Public Hearing to Consider amending the Atwood Redevelopment Area Plan as to boundaries only
	Att1_Atwood Redev Area Plan_Aug2018
	Chapter 1: Overview
	Plan Content And Organization
	Chapter 1: Overview
	Chapter 2: Inventory & Analysis
	Chapter 3: Concept Plan
	Chapter 4: Capital Improvements
	Chapter 5: Project Implementation
	Appendices

	Introduction & Geographic Context
	Redevelopment Area Boundary

	Chapter 2: Inventory and Analysis
	Existing Land Use
	Residential
	Commercial
	Vacant uses
	Public Uses and Utilities

	Future Land Use & Comprehensive Plan
	Land Development Regulations
	Parcel Size
	Housing Condition
	Transportation and Infrastructure
	Pedestrian Circulation
	Sanitary Sewer
	Sewer Expansion

	Demographics
	Population
	Households
	Ethnic Composition
	Age
	Employment
	Education
	Income
	Crime


	Chapter 3: Concept Plan
	Concept Plan Philosophy
	Atwood CRD Concept Plan
	Corridors
	Primary Commercial Corridors
	Neighborhood Commercial Corridors
	Neighborhood Connectors

	Gateways
	Primary Gateways
	Secondary Gateways

	Community Amenities
	Redevelopment Strategies
	Commercial Redevelopment and Infill
	EXAMPLE OF A COMMERCIAL SIGN GRANT RECIPIENT.  CRA STAFF
	Infill Opportunities for Single- and Multi-Family Housing
	Encourage Citizen Groups and Civic Pride

	Public Health and Safety
	Residential Preservation and Enhancement

	Chapter 4: Capital Improvements
	Capital Improvements

	Chapter 5: Implementation Strategies
	Implementation Strategies

	Appendix A: Public Workshops
	Appendix B: Statutory Requirements
	Appendix C: Tax Increment Financing
	Appendix D: Resolution R2015-64

	Att2_Atwood Map_Aug2018
	Schedule and Advertise of a Public Hearing to Amend the Ordinance relating to the Atwood Redevelopment Trust Fund
	Att1_Atwood ORD_August2018
	Cancellation of Residential Rehab Grant Program Liens
	Att1_LienCX_Baudendistel_August2018
	Att2_LienCX_Burdess_August2018
	Att4_LienCX_Gilkerson_August2018
	Att5_LienCX_Handshumaker and Erikson_Aug2018
	Att6_LienCX_Jackson_August2018
	Att7_LienCX_Rosetti_August2018
	CRA Grants Analysis
	Att1_CRA GRANTS ANALYSIS_AUG2018
	�CRA GRANT PROGRAM ANALYSIS
	CRA GRANT PROGRAMS
	Commercial Façade, Landscape, & Infrastructure Grant Program
	Commercial Sign Grant Program
	Residential Rehab Grant Program
	Residential Exterior Paint Program and Hazardous Tree Program
	CRA GRANT ANALYSIS
	How the Grant Programs have worked in the Communities?
	Best Practices to Implement
	Residential Grant Examples
	108 Jardine Rd vs Neighbor
	312 Payne Rd vs Neighbor
	217 Chiefs Way vs Neighbor
	Commercial Grant Examples
	Nedal Mohammad�3706 Navy Blvd.
	L&L Fresh Seafood�1611 N. Pace Blvd.
	Linh Le�673 N. Pace Blvd.
	VQK Management, LLC�3015 Mobile Highway
	Board Direction

	Att2_CRA GRANT PROG APPS_GUIDELINES_AUG2018

